
A G E N D A 
CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL – REGULAR MEETING 

APRIL 7, 2016 – 5:45 P.M. 

Assembly Room – Operations Center 

1. Call to Order

2. Invocation and Pledge of Allegiance

3. Public Comment Time: Up to 15 minutes is reserved for comments from the public 
for items not listed on the agenda 

4. Consideration of Agenda

5. Consideration of Consent Agenda: These items are considered routine, 
noncontroversial in nature and are considered and approved by a single motion and 
vote. 

A. Consideration of Minutes:

i. March 3, 2016 Regular Meeting

ii. February 12, 2016 Special Meeting

B. Consideration of Budget Amendment: NCDOT Reimbursement for Utility
Relocation

C. Consideration of Personnel Amendments:

i. Pay Grade for Deputy Fire Chief Position

ii. Create Senior Planner Position and Eliminate Planning Director Position

D. Consideration of Contract with new Financial Audit Firm

E. Consideration of an Amendment to the Fee Schedule for Patton Pool Passes

F. Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing the Tax Collector to Make Adjustments
for Underpayments or Overpayments and to Set a Minimum Billing Amount

G. Consideration of Easement Agreement with LaMond Properties, LLC, for Certain
Tracts in the Azalea Parking Lot

H. Consideration of Adoption of Mission and Value Statements and Next Steps for
Hendersonville Water and Sewer



 

2 
 

I. Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing the Application for a NC Department 
of Environmental Quality Division of Water Infrastructure SRF Loan to Fund a 
Multi-Area Streambank Restoration Project 

 
J. Consideration of a Resolution Authorizing the Application for a NC Department 

of Environmental Quality Division of Water Infrastructure Grant to Fund a 
Sanitary Sewer Asset Inventory and Assessment (Master Plan) Project 

 
K. Consideration of a Waterline Extension Agreement for extended service within 

the High Vista Community 
 
6.         Recognition – Proclamation for Week of the Young Child 
  Presenter: Mayor Barbara Volk 
 
7.  Presentation of Ninth Avenue Circulation Study by Kimley-Horn and Associates 
  Presenter: City Manager John Connet 
 
8.  Public Hearing – Consideration of Applications from Henderson County for the 

Rezoning of Two Parcels located on N. Oak Street Across from the Joint Health 
Education Center from R-6 High Density Residential to MIC Medical, Institutional, 
Cultural  

  Presenter:  Senior Planner Dave Hazzard 
   
9.  Quasi-Judicial Public Hearing – Consideration of an Application from Flatiron 

Group, Inc. for a Special Use Permit for Lakewood Terrace:  to Construct Five 
Apartment Buildings Consisting of 80 Residential Units, a Community Building, 
Associated Drives and Parking on an Eight-acre Parcel Located off of Lakewood 
Road, and to Rezone a Portion of this Parcel to Planned Residential Development 

  Presenter:  Senior Planner Dave Hazzard 
 
10.  Consideration of Request from Ms. Cheria Duncan for the Waiving of System 

Development Charges 
  Presenter: City Manager John Connet   
 
11.  Consideration of Parking Permit Program and Rates 
  Presenter: Downtown Economic Development Director Lew Holloway  
 
12.  Consideration of a Resolution Requesting the General Assembly To Amend Section 

3.4 of the Hendersonville City Charter Respecting the Change in Compensation for 
Mayor and Council Members 

  Presenter: City Manager John Connet   
 
13.  Consideration of a Proposal from Vannoy Construction (through their contract with 

Henderson County) to widen N. Oak Street, Replace Utility Lines, and Consideration 
of the Associated Budget Amendment and Capital project Ordinance 

  Presenter: Engineering Director Brent Detwiler 
 
14.  Comments from Mayor and City Council Members 
 
 
 



 

\\domain.local\voa\Mydocs\tdrake\Documents\Clerk\Agendas\01 2016\04 Apr\01 Apr 7 agenda.doc 3

15.  Reports from Staff  
 

A. Report on Contingencies 
 

B. Report on Investments 
 
C. Reminder of Upcoming Special Meeting of the Council: May 6, 2016, 8:00 a.m., City 

Hall, for review of the proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2016-17 
 
16. Boards and Commissions:  Consideration of (Re)Appointments, Announcement of 

Upcoming Vacancies 
 

17.    New Business  
 
18.  Staff Request for Closed Session 
 
19.  Continue the Meeting to April 13, 2016, 6:00 p.m., at Fire Station II, 632 Sugarloaf 

Road, to Discuss Fire Inspection Fees 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Submitted By:             Department:   

Date Submitted:            Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________  Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?       If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Brian Pahle Admin

03/24/16 Brian Pahle

04/07/16

Council Action

05b

Budget Amendments (1)
NCDOT Reimbursement | Water & Sewer Fund | Increase $262,396

N/A

Fund 60 | Increase $262,396

I move to approve the attached budget amendment(s).

See below...





CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Submitted By:             Department:   

Date Submitted:            Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________  Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?       If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Joseph Vindigni Fire

March 16, 2016 Joseph Vindigni

April 7, 2016

Council Action

05ci

The Deputy Fire Chief Position is classified as a Grade 18 which is only one pay grade above a Fire Marshal and six pay
grades below the Fire Chief. This is not consistent with other positions within the City. We would request that the Deputy
Fire Chief position be assigned to the grade 20 salary range. This would put this position in the same grade as the
Assistant Police Chief, Assistant Public Works Director, Zoning Administrator, and the Tech & Metering Manager.

0

N/A

I move to transition the Deputy Fire Chief position from a grade 18 in the pay scale to a grade 20 in the pay scale.



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Submitted By:   Department: 

Date Submitted:   Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________ Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?   If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Jennifer Harrell Admin

03/29/16 Jennifer Harrell

04/07/16

Council Action

05cii

The City Manager is requesting the reclassification of the Planning Director, grade 24, position (currently vacant and will
not be filled) to a Senior Planner, grade 17, position. After the merging of the Planning and Zoning Departments there is
no longer a need for two director positions. The Development Assistance Director position will remain as the head
position of that department. The Planning Director job description will be eliminated, and the new Senior Planner job
description is attached. The Position Allocation to Salary Range will be adjusted accordingly.

0

N/A

I move to approve the recommended position changes as presented.

See below



PLANNING DIRECTOR 

General Statement of Duties 

Performs difficult professional and administrative planning work for the City. 

Distinguishing Features of the Class 

An employee in this class plans, organizes and reviews the planning activities 
including current and long range planning programs involving physical, economic and 
social future of the City.  Work involves professional planner responsibilities in the 
formation, installation, modification and improvement of the City's growth and 
development.  Duties include staffing and consulting with boards and committees on 
development issues in the City including zoning, economic development, community 
appearance, and related issues.  Work involves coordination with a variety of other local 
and state jurisdictions and agencies and considerable knowledge of the planning field 
and local ordinances, and extensive public contact skills. Work is performed in an office 
environment under the general supervision of the Development Assistance Director and 
is evaluated through conferences, reports, and progress on planning issues and projects. 

Duties and Responsibilities 

Essential Duties and Tasks 
Plans and organizes project activities; establishes goals and objectives; 

recommends and administers policies and procedures. 
Provides advice to the Development Assistance Director, City Manager, Board, 

and various appointed committees; deals with the public on controversial issues. 
Researches, writes and recommends ordinances related to zoning, subdivision 

regulations, appearance, economic development, park and open space development, 
noise, and other growth and development issues. 

Serves as technical support to the Planning Board, Board of Adjustment, other City 
departments, and civic groups on planning, zoning, and related matters. 

Confers with engineers, developers, architects, a variety of agencies and the 
general public in obtaining information and coordinating planning matters; coordinates 
activities with County and surrounding jurisdictions; participates in plan review process. 

Conducts special studies; researches complex planning problems; prepares a 
variety of comprehensive reports. 

Responds to and resolves difficult citizens' inquiries and complaints regarding 
planning matters. 

Coordinates development review process with various departments, developers 
and contractors. 

Trains and provides performance coaching, to assigned staff. 
Processes street closing and annexation petitions; prepares documents for 

annexation processes and procedures. 



Additional Job Duties 
Performs related duties as required. 

Recruitment and Selection Guidelines 

Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities

Thorough knowledge of the principles and practices of planning, land use, and 
zoning related to long range planning, current planning, and the comprehensive planning 
process. 

Considerable knowledge of computer applications related to GIS, planning, data 
base and statistical analysis. 

Working knowledge of the laws and regulations in building inspections and local 
code enforcement. 

Skill in collaborative conflict resolution. 
Skill in working with committees, tasks forces, and other groups and in public 

presentation. 
Ability to organize work, set and follow effective priorities, and coordinate work with 

others to obtain desired outcomes. 
Ability to communicate effectively in oral and written forms; to interpret planning, 

zoning and building inspection policies to officials and the general public. 
Demonstrated ability to analyze and systematically compile technical and 

statistical information, and to prepare technical reports. 
Demonstrated ability to evaluate the feasibility of planning alternatives in relation 

to trends, costs and social pressures and needs. 
Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with contractors, 

developers, property owners, other City staff, officials, and the general public. 

Physical Requirements 
Must be able to perform the basic life operational skills of fingering, grasping, 

talking, hearing, and repetitive motions. 
Must be able to perform sedentary work, exerting up to 10 pounds of force 

occasionally, and/or a negligible amount of force frequently or constantly to lift or move 
objects. 

Must possess the visual acuity to prepare and analyze data and figures, operate a 
computer terminal, do extensive reading, and perform visual inspections. 

Desirable Education and Experience
Graduation from a four year college or university with a major in planning, 

geography, landscape architecture, or related field and considerable experience in 
municipal, county or regional planning; or an equivalent combination of education and 
experience.  Master’s degree in urban planning preferred. 

Special Requirements
Possession of a valid North Carolina driver's license. 

Prefer certification or ability to obtain from the American Institute of Certified Planners. 



SENIOR PLANNER 

General Statement of Duties 

Performs advanced professional planning, research, and analysis in the City 
Development Assistance Department to ensure the orderly growth of the City and 

efficient administration of City resources. 

Distinguishing Features of the Class 

An employee in this class performs planning work that provides coordinated 
guidance and regulation of the growth and development of the City. Work involves 
leading the detailed review and analysis of applications for site plan approval, special 
use permits, certificates of appropriateness, planned developments, landscape plans,
map amendments, text amendments, subdivisions and related plans/documents. 
Assists property owners, developers and citizens; conducts research and studies for 
zoning, annexation and other issues; develops various types of maps using GIS
software; develops publications using City software and provides staff assistance to 
advisory boards and the public; provides planning consultation to other City 
departments. Work involves providing technical guidance with considerable public 
contact on issues requiring judgment, firmness, and tact. The role also includes 
developing a favorable relationship between the City and the community. Work is 
performed under the general supervision of the Development Assistance Director and is 
evaluated through periodic performance reviews. 

Duties and Responsibilities 

Essential Duties and Tasks 
Reviews development plans for compliance with adopted plans and policies;

researches and prepares staff reports for council, board member and commissioner 
consideration; provides guidance to architects, builders, attorneys, contractors, 
engineers and the general public on the consistency of their interests with City land use 
regulations; conducts on site visits and inspections. 

Creates high quality cartographic materials to be used by city staff, elected 
officials, board members, commissioners and the public. 

Maintains the official City of Hendersonville GIS data sets and maps, such as but 
not limited to the city limits, extraterritorial jurisdictional boundary and zoning districts. 

Serves as staff coordinator or City liaison when deemed appropriate by the 
Development Assistance Director. 

Participates in public meetings, hearings and various presentations; represents 
City at selected public meetings; makes presentations as appropriate; explains 
recommendations and planning work required. 



 

Researches and prepares planning elements necessary for decisions by 
management, council, boards or commissions regarding land use, historic preservation, 
zoning, housing, and environmental impact. 
 

Provides research and input into the development of ordinances, policies, 
procedures and publications for the City and the department; drafts ordinances, plans 
and publications. 
 

Prepares forms, correspondence, reports, presentations, and other written 
materials. 
 

Assists with grant applications and proposals. 
 

Assists the Development Assistance Director in planning activities with federal, 
state, city, county and private agencies. 
 

Develops, coordinates and recommends a variety of special and continuing 
plans related to the growth, development and redevelopment of the City. 
 

Assists in the preparation of budget estimates for the department. 
 

Serves as staff to City Council and Planning Board as directed; serves 
supervisory responsibilities in the absence of the Development Assistance Director. 
 
Additional Job Duties 

Performs related duties as required. 
 

Recruitment and Selection Guidelines 
 
Knowledge, Skills, and Abilities 

Knowledge of the principles and practices of community and economic 
development and public sector planning. 

Knowledge of governmental laws, programs, and services pertinent to the 
community and economic development and planning processes. 

Knowledge of the environmental and socio-economic implications of the planning 
process. 

Knowledge of the City's zoning, land use, and other ordinances and codes.  
Knowledge of grants and grant administration. 
Skill in the collection, analysis, and presentation of technical data and planning 

recommendations. 
Skilled in database development and management. 
Ability to establish and maintain effective working relationships with community 

groups, federal, state, regional, and City officials, and the general public. 
Ability to prepare comprehensive reports and studies. 
Ability to prepare high quality cartographic maps using GIS software. 
Ability to express ideas effectively in oral and written forms. 



 

 Ability to use and adapt to technology. 
Ability to provide leadership to committees and staff, build consensus, and work 

collaboratively with developers, City officials, and the community regarding 
development. 
 
Physical Requirements 

Must be able to perform the basic physical life operational functions of reaching, 
crouching, standing, walking, fingering, talking, hearing, and repetitive motions. 

Must be able to perform light work exerting up to 20 pounds of force 
occasionally, and/or 10 pounds of force frequently, and/or a negligible amount of force 
constantly to lift carry, push, pull, or otherwise move objects. 

Must possess the visual acuity to examine and work with maps, operate a 
computer, inspect sites regarding planning issues, and do extensive reading. 
 
 
Desirable Education and Experience 

Graduation from an accredited college or university with a Master’s degree in 
planning, public administration, geography, environment, landscape architecture, or a 
related field and 2 years professional experience in public sector planning; or an 
equivalent combination of education and experience. The ideal candidate must have 
strong analytical and graphic presentation skills, report writing and preparation, and 
project organizational skills along with excellent computer skills including Word, Excel, 
PowerPoint, ArcGIS 10. 
 
Hendersonville 
2016 



 GRADE HIRING RATE MIN MID MAX Position

City of Hendersonville

Position Allocation to Salary Range

 

1 20,554.51 21,582.24 27,267.19 31,278.62

2 21,585.53 22,664.81 27,214.78 32,844.04

3 22,662.66 23,795.79 28,572.72 34,482.78

4 23,794.27 24,983.99 30,000.34 36,206.40 Street Maintenance Worker I
Environmental Services Worker
Recycle Worker
Property Maintenance Worker

5 24,985.61 26,234.89 31,501.82 38,018.03 Street Maintenance Worker II
Meter Reader
Environmental Services Worker II
Office Assistant

6 26,235.62 27,547.41 33,077.70 39,919.77 Line Maintenance Mechanic
Equipment Service Attendent
Field Customer Service Specialist

7 27,546.41 28,923.73 34,731.11 41,915.81 Meter Maintenance Mechanic
Administrative Support Specialist
Customer Services Specialist
Equipment Operator
Police Support Specialist

8 28,924.26 30,370.47 36,467.82 44,011.39 Facility Maintenance Mechanic
Police Telecommunicator
Property Maintenance Crewleader
Traffic Enforcement Officer
Utility Locations Specialist
Warehouse Specialist
Senior Line Maintenance Mechanic
Sr. Police Support Specialist
Treatment Plant Operator I

9 30,370.21 31,888.72 38,293.07 46,215.94 Accounting Technician
Building Maintenance Technician
Equipment Mechanic
Firefighter/EMT
Lead Telecommunicator



 GRADE HIRING RATE MIN MID MAX Position

City of Hendersonville

Position Allocation to Salary Range

 

10 31,888.45 33,482.88 40,204.24 48,520.03 Street Maintenance Crewleader
Police Officer
Parking Services Supervisor
Senior Administrative Support Specialist
Senior Accounting Technician 
Senior Facility Maintenance Mechanic
Traffic Control Technician
Utility Operations Support Specialist
City Tax Collector
Telecomunications Supervisor
Environmental Services Crew Leader
Treatment Plant Operator II

11 33,483.19 35,157.35 42,215.48 50,947.76 Equipment Services Specialist
Fire Engineer
Line Maintenance Crewleader
Zoning Code Enforcement Officer
Property Maintenance Supervisor
Inflow & Infiltration Technician
Leak Detection Technician
Traffic Control Supervisor
Public Information Officer
Promotions Coordinator

12 35,156.52 36,914.34 44,315.25 53,494.94 Utility Operations Support Supervisor
Police Detective
Laboratory Technician
Environmental Services Coordinator
Budget & Management Analyst
Payroll Benefits Coordinator
Treatment Plant Operator III

13 36,916.80 38,762.64 46,544.42 56,172.05 Administrative Aide
Building Maintenance Supervisor
Fire Lieutenant
Human Resources Coordinator
Deputy Fire Marshal
Fleet Maintenance Superintendent
Meter Services Supervisor
Police Sergeant
Environmental Services Supervisor
Street Maintenance Supervisor
GIS Analyst

14 38,763.01 40,701.16 48,870.52 58,978.03 Collections & Distribution Systems Supervisor
Police Communications & Technology Manager
Laboratory Supervisor
Treatment Plant Supervisor
Quality Excellence Coordinator
Paralegal



 GRADE HIRING RATE MIN MID MAX Position

City of Hendersonville

Position Allocation to Salary Range

 

 

 

15 40,698.28 42,733.19 51,314.49 61,930.70 Fire Captain
Assistant to City Manager
Investigations Lieutenant
Police Lieutenant
Planner
Facility Maintenance Superintendent
Accountant
Engineering Technician
Construction Inspector

16 42,734.13 44,870.84 53,879.48 65,024.83 Electrical and Instruction Technician
City Clerk
Main Street / Economic Development Director 

17 44,869.53 47,113.01 56,572.30 68,275.07 Fire Marshal 
Treatment Plant Superintendent
Senior Accounting Supervisor
Revenue Accounting Supervisor
Senior Planner

18 47,113.90 49,469.59 59,402.91 71,691.92 Assistant Finance Director
Police Captain

19 49,471.43 51,945.00 62,372.35 75,273.27

20 51,943.16 54,540.32 65,489.52 79,035.88 Assistant Police Chief
Assistant Public Works Director
Deputy Fire Chief
Zoning Administrator 
Technology and Metering Manager

21 54,540.64 57,267.67 68,766.49 82,992.34 Civil Engineer
GIS Administrator
Utilities Engineer

22 57,265.94 60,129.24 72,202.72 87,139.49 Assistant Utilities Director 
Human Resources Director

23 58,978.03 61,926.93 75,237.64 91,497.25 Information Technology Director
Downtown Economic Development Director



 GRADE HIRING RATE MIN MID MAX Position

City of Hendersonville

Position Allocation to Salary Range

 

 

Below is a summary of the grades and scale: 

 

24 63,136.71 66,293.54 79,604.83 96,072.95 Finance Director
Planning Director
Public Works Director
Police Chief
Fire Chief
City Engineer
Development Assistance Director

25 66,296.84 69,611.69 83,585.39 100,873.93

26 69,612.05 73,092.66 87,767.64 105,923.23 Utilities Director

GRADE HIRING RATE MIN MID MAX
1 20,554.51$            21,582.24$   27,267.19$   31,278.62$   

2 21,585.53$            22,664.81$   27,214.78$   32,844.04$   

3 22,662.66$            23,795.79$   28,572.72$   34,482.78$   

4 23,794.27$            24,983.99$   30,000.34$   36,206.40$   

5 24,985.61$            26,234.89$   31,501.82$   38,018.03$   

6 26,235.62$            27,547.41$   33,077.70$   39,919.77$   

7 27,546.41$            28,923.73$   34,731.11$   41,915.81$   

8 28,924.26$            30,370.47$   36,467.82$   44,011.39$   

9 30,370.21$            31,888.72$   38,293.07$   46,215.94$   

10 31,888.45$            33,482.88$   40,204.24$   48,520.03$   

11 33,483.19$            35,157.35$   42,215.48$   50,947.76$   

12 35,156.52$            36,914.34$   44,315.25$   53,494.94$   

13 36,916.80$            38,762.64$   46,544.42$   56,172.05$   

14 38,763.01$            40,701.16$   48,870.52$   58,978.03$   

15 40,698.28$            42,733.19$   51,314.49$   61,930.70$   

16 42,734.13$            44,870.84$   53,879.48$   65,024.83$   

17 44,869.53$            47,113.01$   56,572.30$   68,275.07$   

18 47,113.90$            49,469.59$   59,402.91$   71,691.92$   

19 49,471.43$            51,945.00$   62,372.35$   75,273.27$   

20 51,943.16$            54,540.32$   65,489.52$   79,035.88$   

21 54,540.64$            57,267.67$   68,766.49$   82,992.34$   

22 57,265.94$            60,129.24$   72,202.72$   87,139.49$   

23 58,978.03$            61,926.93$   75,237.64$   91,497.25$   

24 63,136.71$            66,293.54$   79,604.83$   96,072.95$   

25 66,296.84$            69,611.69$   83,585.39$   100,873.93$ 

26 69,612.05$            73,092.66$   87,767.64$   105,923.23$ 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Submitted By:   Department: 

Date Submitted:   Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________ Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?   If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Lisa White Finance

3-29-16 Lisa White

April 7, 2016

Council Action

05d

The (GFOA) recommends auditor rotation at least every 5 years, per their best practices guidelines: "Governmental
entities should undertake a full-scale competitive process for the selection of independent auditors at the end of the term
of each audit contract". The City has used Carland for over 40 years, therefore staff issued an RFP for audit services on
February 18, 2016. The RFP was posted to the City website on February 18, 2016. The RFP was directly sent to 29 audit
firms, (including local firms used by other nearby municipalities, including Mills River, Laural Park, City of Brevard, City of
Asheville, as well as other firms listed on the State Treasurer's website along with firms who have requested to receive
RFPs from the City). The proposals were due on March 18. The following six firms responded, Carter P.C, (Asheville),
Gould Killian, (Asheville), Greene Finney & Horton,(Asheville & SC),Cannon & Co, (Winston-Salem), Bernard Robinson,
(Greensboro), RSM, (Greensboro). Carland & Anderson did not submit a written proposal, however Terry Anderson did
call and offer to continue services at the same rate as the previous year. No other Hendersonville firms responded.
Selection Process: Audit Firm Selection Committee included: Lisa White, John Buchanan, Michelle Harris, Tammy
Holland, Brian Pahle. See review instructions, scoring matrix. The committee meet with City Manager on March 28 and
after review of qualifications, checking references and comparison of price, the committee and City Manager recommend
Greene, Finney & Horton (Asheville office), who had highest qualifications score and was the lowest bidder.
The City intends to continue the relationship with the auditor for no less than three years on the basis of annual
negotiation after the completion of the first year contract. This Council approval will cover the period of the current fiscal
year only, since one governing board may not obligate future governing boards, the remaining years of the agreement are
subject to annual Council approval.

37,000.00

Yes

Note: Greene, Finney, & Horton was the lowest bidder. See all bids and qualifications on the attached Maxtrix worksheet.
Carland & Anderson cost was $44,000 annually for the past two years. This contract saves $7,000 for the fiscal year.

I make a motion to award the contract for financial audit services for the fiscal year 2015-2016 to Greene, Finney &
Horton, LLP.

1.Contract - pending Council Approval & Mayor's signature, 2.Review Committee Matrix - Score Summary, 3. Listing of
Distribution of RFP to Firms, 4. Review Committee Instructions and Review Criteria, 5. Greene, Finney & Horton Proposal
6.Copy of Request for Proposal



















Audit Proposal Evaluation Matrix City of Hendersonville

March 28, 2016

Points
 Cannon & 

Cannon  RSM  Carter, PC 
 Bernard 
Robinson  Gould Killian 

 Greene, 
Finney & 
Horton Comments

Approach to Audit Quality
25 points 

max 88 87 91 102 111 117

The proposal outlines an audit approach 
that is tailored based on obtaining an 
understanding of the City's activities, 
operating systems, personnel and special 
needs. 0-5 5 2 3 3 5 5

The proposal indicates an audit approach 
that is tailored based on the firm's 
advanced understanding of local 
government. 0-5 5 3 3 3 5 5
The proposal outlines the firm's processes 
for ensuring an efficient and effective audit 
process. 0-5 5 3 5 5 5 5

The proposal showcases the firm’s 
commitment to providing quality audit 
services by voluntarily adhering to higher 
standards of audit quality.  This is 
evidenced by willingness to share their 
current unqualified peer review report 
resulting from the American Institute of 
CPAs external peer review process.

0-5 5 5 5 5 5 5
The proposal indicates the firm is a 
dedicated member of one or more of the 
following firm-based voluntary 
membership quality centers for firms that 
perform audits:  
• AICPA Center for Audit Quality
•• AICPA Governmental Audit Quality 
Center 0-5 - 5 5 5 5 5

Team Knowledge and Experience 30 points max 100 100 113 113 125 133

The proposal outlines the firm's 
qualifications, local government/municipal 
audit experience, licenses and strengths 
for all partners.  

0-10 6 9 7 6 10 10
The proposal highlights the firms 
commitment to professional training and 
staff continuity. 0-5 3 4 5 5 5 5

The proposal illustrates that the firm has 
sufficient resources and staff to complete 
the audit and specifies the strengths of 
assigned team members as well as their 
years of prior experience in municipal 
engagements.

0-5 3 2 5 5 5 5
GF&H has a staff of 30,  20 are CPAs.   The review committee felt that 
Gould may not have as much depth of staff with municipal experience.

The proposal identifies how the firm will 
comply with GASB reporting regulations, 

0-5 5 - 5 - 4 4
The proposal provides the firm's 
background, local government client base, 
licensing information and years in 
business. 0-5 5 5 3 5 5 5

Gould has 4 clients that have CAFRs,  GF&H listed 7 cities that have 
CAFRs.  

Proposal Criteria



Audit Proposal Evaluation Matrix City of Hendersonville

March 28, 2016

Points
 Cannon & 

Cannon  RSM  Carter, PC 
 Bernard 
Robinson  Gould Killian 

 Greene, 
Finney & 
Horton CommentsProposal Criteria

Unique Qualifications 10 points max 30 33 30 41 44 46

The proposal conveys a positive and 
confident feeling derived from the firm's 
business beliefs, communication practices 
and unique qualifications of which lays the 
foundation for a trusted relationship.

0-5 2 3 1 5 5 5 Both firms had excellent positive references

The proposal identifies the firm's 
advanced technical expertise, specialized 
knowledge or additional participation in or 
contribution to the goals and values of the 
GFOA. 0-5 2 4 - 5 5 5 GF& H sponsors, speakers for GFOA

Value Added Services 10 points max 31 34 28 36 42 47

The proposal provides a listing of 
additional value added services the firm 
provides beyond the audit engagement.  
(e.g. proactively monitor and 
communicate topics relevant to our 
financial and governmental operations all 
year long that may impact the City, 
technical assistance provided throughout 
the year, including providing City staff with 
ongoing guidance or continuing 
education).

0-5 2 5 1 5 5 5
Both firms appear to be able to provide assistance on issues.  GFH 
appeared to have a lot of additional education for their clients, free CPA, 

It is evident that the firm understands local 
government and our unique challenges.  
The firm is committed to being our 
accounting/technical advisor, beyond the 
audit engagement.

0-5 3 4 2 5 5 5

Scope and Pricing of the Engagement 25 points max 17 17
The proposal clearly provides a 
framework for the scope, timing, steps 
and resources to complete the 
engagement. 0-5 - - - - 5 5 Only top two based on qualifications were scored on price

The proposal specifies the price for the 
engagement and how it will be billed.

0-5 - - - - 2 2
The proposal addresses all items 
requested by us in the RFP 0-5 - 5 5
The proposed fee is reasonable based on 
the experience, unique value and 
knowledge the firm brings to the 
engagement. 0-10 - 5 5   Greene Finney & Horton was the low bidder

249 254 262 292 339 360
Greene, Finney & Horton has 21 more points than next highest 

scoring firm.

Price:  (Binding cost, year 1) $46,670 $91,500 $41,740 $45,000 $40,000 $37,000

Total Points



 

Audit RFP Review Directions 

Proposals will be evaluated by the audit review committee to obtain “best value” based on the 
evaluation criteria detailed on the Audit Proposal Evaluation Matrix form.  A 100-point scale will be used 
to create the final evaluation recommendation.  When assessing points, we will utilize a 0-5 scale for 
each factor.  A maximum of 75 points is assigned to the qualifications of the bidding firm and a 
maximum of 25 points is assigned to the cost of the bid proposal.  The techniques used to evaluate these 
two components are described below. 

Criteria: QUALIFICATIONS 
Qualifications are broken down into 3 subcategories on the Audit Proposal Evaluation Matrix 
form: 

Approach to Audit Quality 25 points max 
Team Knowledge   30 points max 
Unique Qualifications  10 points max 
Value Added Services  10 points max 
Total Qualification Points: 75 points Total  
 

Evaluation Technique: When assessing points, utilize a 0-5 scale for each factor.  Subjective 
scoring should be used with the following guidance: 

Points Qualification Score Ranking 
5 Best possible response 

4-5 Excellent, insightful response 
3-4 More than adequate response 
2-3 Adequate response, no special insights 
1 Inadequate response 
0 No response given 

 
Criteria: COST 

Total cost includes both Scope and Pricing of the engagement. The cost proposals will not be 
opened by the review committee until after the qualifications points are awarded. 

Total Scope and Pricing Points:    25 points Total 
 

Evaluation Technique: When assessing points, utilize a 0-5 scale for each factor.  Comparative 
scoring should be used with the following guidance: 

Points Cost Score Ranking 
5 Best price, best timing, addresses all items in an excellent manner 

4-5 Low price, good timing, clearly addresses all items 
3-4 Cost is higher than other bidders or not reasonable based on experience of 

firm or scope or timing does not match the Cities objectives 
2-3 Cost is high or scope or pricing not clearly defined 
1 Inadequate response 
0 No response given 

 



FIRM CPA NAME ADDRESS1 ADDRESS2 CITY ST ZIP
ANDERSON SMITH & WIKE PLLC Kenneth Anderson 220 E Washington St ROCKINGHAM NC 28379
ANDREW HARRIS CPA Andrew Harris 3722 N Main St FARMVILLE NC 27828
BARROW PARRIS & DAVENPORT PA Edward Barrow 662 Sussex St KINSTON NC 28504
BERNARD ROBINSON & CO, LLP Victor Blackburn 1501 Highwoods Blvd Suite 300 GREENSBORO NC 27419-9608
BERRY, PADGETT, & CHANDLER, PLLC Duncan B. Hilburn 1123 N Howe St SOUTHPORT NC 28461
BOBBY J MASSEY CPA Larry Crawford 3132 Commerce Pl Suite D BURLINGTON NC 27215
BOGGS, CRUMP & BROWN PA Daniel Boggs 205 E Union St MORGANTON NC 28655
BURLESON AND EARLEY Bronwyn Burleson 902 SAND HILL RD ASHEVILLE NC 28806
CANNON & COMPANY, CPA, LLP Valerie Davis Kiger 2160 Country Club Road WINSTON-SALEM NC 27104
CARL SHAW CPA, PLLC Carl Shaw 220-C THIRD AVE WEST HENDERSONVILLE NC 28739
CARR RIGGS & INGRAM LLC Chris Burton 3105 Trent Road NEW BERN NC 28563
CARTER, PC Rob Carter 16 Biltmore Ave Suite 200 ASHEVILLE NC 28801
CHERRY BEKAERT & HOLLAND CPAs LLP J. Scott Duda 2626 Glenwood Ave Suite 200 Raleigh NC 27608
CHERRY BEKAERT & HOLLAND CPAs LLP Erik Horstmann 1111 Metropolitan Ave Suite 1000 Charlotte NC 28204
COLLIS AND ASSOCIATES, CPAs Robert Collis 103 E 3rd Ave GASTONIA NC 28052
DARRELL KELLER CPA PA Darrell Keller 700 W King St KINGS MOUNTAIN NC 28086
DIXON HUGHES GOODMAN, LLP David Dills 500 RIDGEFIELD CT ASHEVILLE NC 28806
ELIZABETH KEEL GOMES, PLLC Elizabeth Keel Gomes 60 RAVENSCROFT DR ASHEVILLE NC 28801
ELLIOTT DAVIS Lee A Wagner 5410 Trinity Road Suite 320 RALEIGH NC 27607
GOULD KILLIAN CPA GROUP, P. A. Dan Mullinix 100 COXE AVE ASHEVILLE NC 28801-4051
GREENE FINNEY & HORTON Kevin Madden 28 Schenck Prkway Suite 200 ASHEVILLE NC 28803
JOHNSON PRICE & SPRINKLE, P.A. Kathryn M. Atkinson 500 N Main St SUITE 16 MARION NC 28752
JOHNSON PRICE & SPRINKLE, P.A. J. Scott Hughes 79 WOODFIN PL Suite 300 ASHEVILLE NC 28801
JOHNSON PRICE & SPRINKLE, P.A. Kellie Kanipe 79 WOODFIN PL Suite 300 ASHEVILLE NC 28801
LOWDERMILK CHURCH & CO. Carol Avery 121 N STERLING ST MORGANTON NC 28655
MARTIN STARNES & ASSOCIATES CPAs Paula Hodges 730 13th Ave Dr SE HICKORY NC 28602
MAXTON C. MCDOWELL, CPA Maxton C McDowell 379 S Cox St ASHEBORO NC 27203
MCGLADREY LLP (RSM) Chelsey Burton 4725 Piedmont Row Dr Suite 300 Charlotte NC 28210
WILLIAMSON, CPA Bob Williamson PO Box 15285 ASHEVILLE NC 28813
RSM Michael Schertzinger 230 N. Elm St Suite 1100 Greensboro NC 27401

Denotes proposals received















































































































































REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL
FOR

AUDIT SERVICES

CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, NORTH CAROLINA

Due Date: March 18, 2016 Time: 2:00 pm

Receipt Location: City Hall – Third Floor
City of Hendersonville
145 5th Ave. E.
Hendersonville, NC 28792

Email or facsimile submissions will not be accepted

Contact Person:
Lisa White, CPA
Finance Director
(828)697-3015
lwhite@hvlnc.gov



REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL FOR AUDIT SERVICES – CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE, NC

The City Council of The City of Hendersonville (hereinafter called the “City”) invites qualified 
independent auditors (hereinafter called “auditor”) having sufficient governmental accounting 
and auditing experience in performing an audit in accordance with the specifications outlined in 
this Request for Proposal (RFP) to submit a proposal.

There is no expressed or implied obligation for the City of Hendersonville to reimburse firms for 
any expenses incurred in preparing proposals in response to this request.

The specific details shown herein shall be considered minimum unless otherwise shown.  The 
specifications, terms, and conditions included with this RFP shall govern in any resulting 
contract(s) unless approved otherwise in writing by the City of Hendersonville.  The bidder 
consents to personal jurisdiction and venue in a state court of competent jurisdiction in
Henderson County, North Carolina.

Type of Audit

The audit will encompass a financial and compliance examination of the City’s Comprehensive 
Annual Financial Report (CAFR) in accordance with the laws and/or regulations of the State of 
North Carolina, which include requirements for the minimum scope of the audit.  The financial 
and compliance audit will cover federal, state, and local funding sources in accordance with 
generally accepted auditing standards; Government Auditing Standards, the Single Audit Act of 
1984; the Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996; the provisions of OMB Circular No. A-133, 
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, including revisions; the 
State Single Audit Implementation Act; and all other applicable laws and regulations.  

Period

The City intends to continue the relationship with the auditor for no less than three years on the 
basis of annual negotiation after the completion of the first year contract.  Each year after 
negotiation has taken place an annual contract documenting the terms of the audit will be signed.  
Since one governing board may not obligate future governing boards, the remaining years of the 
agreement are subject to annual governing board approval. The City of Hendersonville reserves 
the right to request proposals at any time following the first year of this contract.  Thus, prepare 
proposals for the following years, with Year one being the only obligated year:

July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016
July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017
July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018



Requirements

The audit must be conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards; 
Government Auditing Standards, revisions issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States; Office of Management and Budget Circular No.A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations, ;including revisions published in Federal Register,
the State Single Audit Implementation Act of 1996, and any other applicable procedures for the 
audit of a government’s financial statements prepared in accordance with GAAP.

The financial audit opinion will cover the financial statements for the governmental activities, 
the business-type activities, each major fund, and the remaining fund information, which 
collectively constitutes the basic financial statements.  The combining and individual financial 
statements, schedules, and related information are not necessary for fair presentation, but will be 
presented as additional analytical data.  This supplemental information, as required by GASB 34, 
will be subjected to the tests and other auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic 
financial statements, and an opinion will be given as to whether the supplemental information is 
fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basis financial statements taken as a whole.  
The auditor shall also express an opinion on the budgetary comparison information for the 
general fund, the major funds, and any annually budgeted special revenue funds.  An opinion 
will not be given on the Management Discussion and Analysis.  

The following will be expected in the base bid:

The Auditor will prepare some year-end adjusting journal entries, primarily GASB34 
conversion and GASB68 entries. The auditor will be ultimately responsible for the 
preparation, typing, proofing, printing, and copying of the Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report (CAFR), including the Basic Financial Statements, notes to the financial 
statements, supplementary information and compliance reports. The City of 
Hendersonville Finance staff will be actively involved in the MD&A, and other schedules 
section preparation. The auditor will submit a draft of the Financial Statement to be 
reviewed in detail by the Finance Officer.  This draft should be submitted to the City of 
Hendersonville in time to allow ample review and corrections.  The timing of this should 
insure final completion of the Financial Statements no later than the annual October 31st

deadline for submission to the LGC.

Guidance will be required for new note disclosures; all approved GASB’s as well as 
GASB implementations, and other reporting requirements as well as any early 
implementation requests by the LGC.

The auditor will assist with the City’s response to prior year comments from the 
Government Finance Officers Association relating to the Certificate of Achievement for 
Excellence in Financial Reporting Award Program.

Assistance with filing the Annual Financial Information Forms (AFIR) with the US 
Census site for the North Carolina State Treasurer and any other applicable reports with
appropriate state agencies and departments.



Assistance with the preparation and submission of the reporting package, required by the
Single Audit Act Amendments of 1996, to the Federal Single Audit Clearing House. This 
package includes the annual financial report, the supplementary schedule of expenditures 
of federal awards, the required auditor’s reports, including any current findings and 
questioned costs, a summary schedule of prior audit findings, and a corrective plan. 

Ten bound paper copies of each audit report, management letter, and other applicable 
reports along with electronic copies of all components of the CAFR must be supplied to 
the Finance Director within the time frame cited above.  In addition, the auditor is 
responsible for submitting the required two copies to the staff of the Local Government 
Commission (LGC) by the annual deadline.  Any other copies required will be charged 
on an as needed basis in addition to the quoted fee.  

The City also requires the following compliance reports: 

Report on compliance and on internal control over financial reporting based on an audit
of financial statements performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards. 

Report on compliance with requirements applicable to each major federal program and 
internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133 and the State 
Single Audit Implementation Act. 

The working papers shall be retained and made available upon request for no less than three 
years from the date of the audit report.

In the event that circumstances arise during the audit that require work to be performed in excess 
of the original estimates, any additional costs will be negotiated prior to commencement of the 
work and an amended contract will be approved by the governing board and forwarded to the 
staff of the LGC for approval.

The City of Hendersonville prefers interim fieldwork be completed in May or June.  Year-end 
fieldwork should begin in mid-August and be completed by September 15th.  An agreed upon 
post-closing trial balance must exist by September 30th.

The Finance Officer will expect a listing of requested information needed for the audit at the 
preplanning conference, periodic conferences during the conduct of the audit, as well as an exit 
conference prior to the completion of fieldwork.  

A preliminary draft of the audit and required journal entries must be submitted to the Finance 
Director by the first week of October for proofing and reconciliation to the City’s records. The 
audit must be completed and reports rendered four months following the fiscal year end (October 
31).



Audit Contract & Payment of Audit Fees

The audit contract must be approved by the staff of the Local Government Commission.  
Invoices are subject to approval by the LGC staff and the appropriate Grantor Agency, if 
applicable, prior to processing by the City.  Interim or progress billings will be accepted up to 
75% of the total fee prior to submission of the audited financial statements to the staff of the 
Local Government Commission and their approval of the audited financial statements.

Other Services

The auditor will prepare, type, and print the audited Comprehensive Annual Financial Report.
The auditor will submit a draft for review by the Finance Director.  The Finance Director will 
return the draft with proposed revisions within 10 working days.

Description of Selection Process

Five sets/copies of each section of the proposal should be submitted at the time and place 
indicated under the section entitled “Time Schedule for Awarding Contract.”

Proposals will be submitted in two sections.  The first section will be comprised of the audit 
firm’s prior experience and qualifications of its personnel in performing governmental audits.  
The audit selection committee will evaluate the auditor/firm on educational and technical 
qualifications.  The top five firms from the first section will have their second section opened 
and evaluated.  The firm best meeting the City of Hendersonville expectations for experience, 
audit approach, and cost requirements will be selected.

PLEASE KEEP IN MIND THAT COST, WHILE AN IMPORTANT FACTOR, WILL NOT BE 
A SOLE DETERMINING FACTOR.  UNUSUALLY LOW BIDS THAT ARE OBVIOUSLY 
OUT OF LINE WITH OTHER BIDDERS OR ARE SIGNFICICANTLY LOWER THAN OUR 
CURRENT FEES WILL RAISE CONCERN.  THE LOWEST BID WILL NOT 
AUTOMATICALLY BE AWARDED PREFERENTIAL CONSIDERATION.

The City of Hendersonville requests that no City of Hendersonville officials or employees be 
contacted during this process.  The Finance Officer may be contacted only to clarify questions 
concerning the RFP. Email is the preferred method of communication, lwhite@hvlnc.gov

The City reserves the right to reject any or all bids, waive technicalities, and to be the sole judge 
of suitability of the services for its intended use and further specifically reserve the right to make 
the award in the best interest of the City.

Failure to respond to any requirements outlined in the RFP, or failure to enclose copies of the 
required documents, may disqualify the bid.



First Section - Qualifications

The first section should address the requested information below.  The corresponding responses 
should begin with the number below for the requested information.

1. Indicate the number of people (by level) located within the local office that will handle the 
audit. Provide other resources available to your staff.

2. Provide a list of the current and prior government audit clients, indicating the type(s) of 
services performed and the number of years served for each.  

3. Indicate the experience of the firm in providing additional services to government clients by 
listing the name of each government, the type(s) of service performed, and the year(s) of 
engagement.

4. Describe your audit organization’s participation in AICPA-sponsored or comparable quality 
control programs (peer review).  Provide a copy of the firm’s current peer review.

5. Describe the professional experience in governmental audits of each senior and higher level 
person assigned to the audit, the years on each job, and his/her position while on each audit.  
Indicate the percentages of time each senior and higher-level personnel will be on site.  

6. Describe the relevant educational background of each person assigned to the audit, senior 
level and higher.  This should include seminars and courses attended within the past three 
years, especially those courses in governmental accounting and auditing.

7. Describe the efforts your firm makes to keep its staff informed of developments relevant to 
government issues.

8. Describe the professional experience of assigned individuals in auditing relevant government 
organizations, programs, activities, or functions for Municipal Water Utilities.

9. Describe any specialized skills, training, or background in public finance of assigned 
individuals.  This may include participation in any State or national professional 
organizations (GFOA), speaker or instructor roles in conferences or seminars, or authorship 
of articles and books.

10. Provide names, addresses, and telephone numbers of personnel of current and prior 
governmental audit clients who may be contacted for a reference.

11. Describe the firm’s Statement of Policy and Procedures regarding Independence under 
Government Auditing Standards (Yellow Book), July 2011 Revision.  Provide a copy of the 
firm’s Statement of Policy and Procedures.

12. Is the firm adequately insured to cover claims?  Describe liability insurance coverage 
arrangements.

13. Describe any regulatory action taken by any oversight body against the proposing audit 
organization or local office.



14. Provide a brief summation of the reasons you believe your firm should be selected. In 
particular, the City is interested in the unique capabilities of your firm that distinguish it 
from other firms. Be specific and relate this discussion to how the City will benefit by 
choosing your firm as an auditor.

Second Section

Proposals should include completed cost estimate sheets and any other necessary cost 
information in a separate, sealed envelope marked – “Audit RFP Cost Estimate.”  The City plans 
to evaluate the qualifications of all firms submitting proposals before considering the Cost 
Estimate.

This second section should include the following information:

1. Type of audit program used (tailor-made, standard government, or standard commercial).

2. Use of statistical sampling.

3. Use of computer audit specialists.

4. Organization of the audit team and the approximate percentage of time spent on the audit by 
each member.

5. Assistance expected from the government’s staff, if other than outlined in the RFP.

6. Tentative schedule for completing the audit within the specified deadlines of the RFP.

7. Provide total costs using the Summary of Audit Costs Sheet for the audit year July 1, 2015 to 
June 30, 2016.  For the two audit years, which follow, list the estimated costs.  The cost for 
the audit year ending June 30, 2016 is binding, while the second and third years are 
estimated costs. Cost estimates must indicate the basis for the charges and whether the 
amount is a “not-to-exceed” amount. If applicable, note your method of determining 
increases in audit costs on a year to year basis.

8. Details should be separately provided for the following: 

A. Personnel costs – Itemize the following for each category of personnel (partner, 
manager, senior, staff accountants, clerical, etc.) with the different rates per hour.

1) Estimated hours – categorize estimated hours into the following:
On-site interim work,
Year-end on-site work,
Work performed in the auditor’s office.

2) Rate per hour.

3) Total cost for each category of personnel and for all personnel costs in total.



B. Travel – itemize transportation and other travel costs separately.

C. Cost of supplies and materials – itemize.

D. Other costs – completely identify and itemize.

8. Please list any other information the firm may wish to provide.

9. Summary of Audit Costs Sheet must be included with all proposals.

Time Schedule for Awarding the Contract

Request for proposal packages will emailed to audit firms listed in the City by audit vendor list 
by February 19, 2016. The RFP package will also be posted on the City website 
www.cityofhendersonville.org (on February 19 and until March 1) and on the City’s new 
website:  www.hvlnc.gov after March 1.

No pre-proposal conference will be held.  Any questions that might arise and for general 
background information on the City and its operations please contact Lisa White, 
lwhite@hvlnc.gov.

Proposals signed by authorized officials will be received by Lisa White, Finance Director at 145
5th Ave E., Hendersonville, NC 28792 until March 18, 2016 at 2:00 p.m.  Envelopes 
containing proposals should be clearly identified on the front with the words “RESPONSE TO 
RFP FOR AUDIT SERVICES”. Email or facsimile submissions will not be accepted. The review 
committee and City Manager will review the proposals and make a recommendation to the City 
Council.  The City Council will award the contract at its regularly scheduled meeting either on
April 7, 2016 or on May 5, 2016.  



Evaluation Criteria 
The review committee will make a recommendation based on criteria and the qualifications of 
Offerors. The evaluation of the Proposals by the Review Committee shall include, but are not 
limited to the following criteria listed below in no particular order:

Qualifications and experience of the firm in governmental audits
Demonstration of the firm's commitment to governmental issues by knowledge of current 
issues and membership and participation in related organizations such as the Government 
Finance Officer's Association. In addition, the firm's ability to communicate to the City the 
changes in relevant regulations and the public financial/accounting environment. 
Qualification, experience and technical competence of key staff of the proposed team 
assigned to the City audit.
Demonstrated experience, qualifications, and professional activities of the audit team, 
including technical expertise of supervisory staff available to perform "on-site" work as well 
as other resources readily available to the firm in key areas to assist the City. These key areas 
include such specialization as municipal government, municipal water utilities, and Federal 
funding auditing. .
Compliance with the general bidding requirements and general submission of proposal 
requirements of the RFP 
Responsiveness of the proposal in clearly stating an understanding of the work to be 
performed; responsiveness to terms and conditions, including scheduling; completeness and 
thoroughness of the technical data and documentation
Ability to meet the RFP’s priorities and outcomes 
Firm size and organization structure
Total Cost 

Proposal Evaluation and Offeror Selection 
The evaluation and selection criteria and process contained in this RFP will be used by the Review 
Committee to evaluate the Proposals. The Review Committee will recommend their selection(s) to 
the City Manager, and after consensus between the City Manager and the review committee, the City
Manager will recommend a prospective audit firm to the City Council and seek the Council’s
concurrence and authorization to consider entering into an agreement with the selected Prospective 
Auditing Firm. 

Selection Process 
The City may, in its discretion, require one or more offerors to appear before an evaluation 
committee for an interview or to make a presentation. During such interview, the offeror may be 
required to orally and otherwise present its proposal and to respond in detail to any questions posed. 
Additional meetings may be held to clarify issues or to address comments, as deemed appropriate. 
Offerors will be notified in advance of the time and format of such meetings. Since the City may 
choose to award a contract without engaging in discussions or negotiations, the proposal submitted 
shall define each offeror’s best offer for performing the services described in this RFP.

The commencement of such discussions, however, does not signify a commitment by the City to 
execute a contract or to continue discussions. The City may terminate discussions at any time and for 
any reason. The City will have a period of up to (60) days, unless otherwise stated, to decide which 
proposal best meets the criteria outlined in the RFP. The City reserves the right to waive any minor 
informalities or irregularities which do not go to the heart of the proposal or prejudice other offers. 
The City may also reject, for good and compelling reasons, any and all proposals submitted.



Description of the Governmental Entity and Its Accounting System

Entity

The City of Hendersonville is a City in western North Carolina with a population of 
approximately 13,600. The City has operated under the "Manager-Council" form of government 
since January 1994. Policy making and legislative authority are vested in the City Council, 
which consists of a mayor and a four-member council.

The City is authorized by the Machinery Act of North Carolina to levy a property tax on both 
real and personal property located within its legal boundaries.  The City bills and collects its own 
property taxes.  

A full range of services, including police and fire protection, street construction and maintenance 
along with a public swimming pool and parks maintenance is provided.  In addition, the City has 
two proprietary funds, the Water & Sewer Fund, which operates a Water Treatment Plant and a 
Wastewater Treatment system which provides services to more than 65,000 persons and The 
Environmental Services Fund, which provides solid waste services to City residents.  

Budgeted revenues for FY2015-2016, excluding project amounts, are budgeted at $13,730,800
for the General Fund, $25,117,900 for the Water and Sewer Fund, and $1,501,460 for the 
Environmental Services Fund.  The City of Hendersonville prepares a five-year Capital 
Improvement Plan.  The current year of the CIP is adopted as part of the annual budget.  For 
capital projects estimated at over $1 million dollars and expected to span over one fiscal year are 
adopted by Council as Capital Project Ordinances.  

Governmental outstanding debt totaled $8,086,667 as of June 30, 2015 and Enterprise Debt 
outstanding was $20,075,548 for the same period.    The City continues to maintain an AA bond 
rating from Standard & Poor’s Corporation and Aa2 from Moody’s Investors Service. At the 
time of this request for proposal the City does not expect to issue any type of debt in the 
following year.  

The City has received a Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting from 
the Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada since 
1988. The auditor is expected to assist the City in maintaining its certification through technical 
assistance and timely compliance with new reporting requirements. The Finance Department 
may require the auditor’s guidance on the completion of certain schedules/documents as to 
proper format and content, so that they can be used in the audit process as well as for inclusion in 
the City’s CAFR. Guidance will be required for new note disclosures, all approved GASB’s as 
well as GASB implementations, and other reporting requirements. These services will be 
included in the base bid.

The, City of Hendersonville Board of Alcoholic Control (ABC) a discretely presented 
component unit, maintains its own financial records. The ABC Board’s audit as well as 
preparation of its financial statements is completed by another accounting firm and is not part of 
this proposal request.



Funds

The City of Hendersonville maintains the following funds:

Governmental Funds
General Fund, 
Special Revenue Funds – All Non-Major Funds:

Downtown Tax District Fund (MSD)
Seventh Ave. Tax District Fund (MSD)
Grant Funds

Governor’s Highway Safety Grant Fund
Oklawaha Greenway NCDOT Grant Fund
Berkeley Mills Ballpark Fund
Police Fines and Forfeiture Funds

Capital Projects Funds –All Non-Major Funds:
Sidewalk Construction Project Fund
Hwy 64 Sidewalk Improvement Project Fund
East Side Fire Station Construction Project Fund
Mud Creek Dump Project Fund
Old Tracey Grove Road Project

Permanent Funds:
None

Proprietary Funds
Enterprise Funds:

Water and Sewer Fund
Environmental Services (Solid Waste) Fund
Enterprise Capital Project Funds

Britton Creek Watershed Project
Academy Road Waterline Project (CDBG Grant fund)
Wolfpen Sewer Line Project
Jackson Park Sewer Interceptor Project
Shepherd Creek/Atkinson Elementary Sewer Line Project
Water Treatment Plant Project (new fund FY16)
Etowah Water Project (new fund FY16)
Fletcher Northside Water System Improvements (new fund FY16)
Eastside Transmission Main Project (new fund FY16)
Scada System Upgrade Project (new fund FY16)
Rugby Interconnection Project (new fund FY16)
Rutledge Road Water System Improvements (new fund FY16)
Gravity Filter Replacement Project (new fund FY16)

Internal Service Fund:
Health and Welfare Fund

Fiduciary Funds:
None
Agency Funds: 

Fines and Forfeiture Agency Fund



Grants, Entitlements, and Shared Revenues

A copy of the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal and State Awards for the year ended 
June 30, 2015 is shown on Exhibit J-1 in the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report posted on 
the City’s new website www.hvlnc.gov or www.cityofhendersonville.org prior website.  Also 
included is a Summary of Auditor’s Results showing the major programs for the prior year. The 
City has had no findings or question costs related to the audit of Federal and State awards for the 
preceding three fiscal years. .  

Budgets

The City budgets all funds on the modified accrual basis of accounting as required by North 
Carolina law.  Appropriations are made at the departmental level. The City also maintains an 
encumbrance system. All encumbrances, except for capital project ordinance funds, lapse at year 
end.  Both the budgetary and encumbrance systems are integrated with the accounting system to 
provide easy comparison with actual expenditures.  

Accounting Records

The City of Hendersonville maintains all its accounting records at the finance office located at 
145 5th Ave. E, Hendersonville, NC. The City maintains its cash receipts journal, cash 
disbursements journal, general ledger, and accounts receivable ledger on an offsite hosted system 
supported by Tyler Technology.  The financial software is Munis.

Assistance Available to Auditor

The City will make available to the auditor all records, and prepare and mail all necessary 
confirmations.  A final trial balance with budgeted amounts will be made available via Excel on
September 2, 2016.  The following accounting procedures will be completed and documents 
prepared by the City’s staff no later than Friday September 2, 2016:

The books of account will be fully balanced.
All subsidiary ledgers will be reconciled to control accounts.
All bank account reconciliations for each month will be completed.



The City’s personnel will prepare the following items:

General

1. Working Trial Balance for each fund.

2. Schedule of Transfers for each fund.

3. A copy of the original budget, all amendments, and the final budget as of June 30, 2016.

4. A copy of all project ordinances and all amendments for active projects during the audit 
period.

5. A copy of the operating and capital lease schedules itemizing contracts in force during the 
audit period as well as access to the lease files maintained in the Finance office.

6. A copy of board policies, including travel and investment policies.

7. Copies of all correspondence with the staff of the Local Government Commission, City
letters, faxes regarding the audited financial statements and compliance reports for the 
previous year.

8. Management’s Discussion and Analysis and Letter of Transmittal

9. Required supplementary information, e.g. actuarial information of the Law Enforcement 
Officers’ Separation Allowance and statistical tables.

Cash and Investments

1. All bank reconciliations for each month

2. List of outstanding checks by account, showing check number, date, and amount.

3. Schedule of all investments for all funds at the audit date, showing book value and estimated 
market value at fiscal year end.

Receivables

1. Listing of unpaid tax bills in detail totaled by year as of fiscal year end.

2. Listing of all outstanding receivables by account as of the fiscal year end.

3. Listing of outstanding receivables in detail as of the fiscal year end.

4. Schedule of miscellaneous receivables booked as of the fiscal year end.



Other Assets

1. Schedule of insurance coverage.

Capital Assets

1. Printout of all capital asset acquisitions made during the audit year.

2. Printout of all capital asset dispositions made during the audit year.

3. Access to printout containing calculations used in balancing the Capital Assets subsystem to 
the government-wide statements.

4. Printout of depreciation expense posted for the audit year.

Current Liabilities

1. Schedule of accounts payable including batch printouts.

Long-Term Debt

1. Computation of vested vacation payable as of the audit date.

2. Debt Schedule for each debt issue and related payments.

Grants

The following will be compiled for each grant:

1. Grant agreement.
2. Budget.
3. All financial reports.
4. Correspondence with the grantor agency, including monitoring reports.
5. CFDA # and/or pass-through grant #.

Conversion

1. Allocation of depreciation among functional areas

2. Schedule with computation of additions and retirements of compensated absences



Size and Complexity of City

Personnel/Payroll
Number of employees 215 FTE
Frequency of payroll bi-weekly
Number of payroll direct deposit advises 630 per month (all employees)

Property Tax 
Number of tax bills issued (without motor vehicles) 8,200
Number of motor vehicle tax bills issued done by State Tax & Tag 
Total dollar amount of most recent year’s collections $6,837,723   98%
Total dollar amount of levy $6,936,072

Water & Sewer Billing
Total number of active accounts 26,863
Avg Number of statements each month 26,622
Avg number of delinquent accounts at month end 225
Avg number of payments accepted & processed in house 5,000
Avg number of payments processed by lockbox 8,000
Avg number of bank E-box payments processed 700
Avg credit cards processed online 3,000
Avg ACH Direct Bank Draft 8,300

Purchasing
Number of purchase orders issued to date for FY16 500

Bank Accounts
Number of bank accounts 7
Number of escrow accounts none
Average monthly activity in main accounts

Number of deposits (Central Depository) 270
Number of checks:

Central Depository 400
Payroll (direct deposit) 630

Management Information Systems:
Number of PCs on the premises 120
Core storage of the central processing City 1580 GB
Total disk capacity of the system 3000 GB
Number of employed programmers capable of 
modifying the operating system and the applications programs none

The City has contracted with VC-3 for offsite, Cloud servers, backup & support,
(Virtual Office) includes all servers, computers, software for all departments 
except Police and portions of Engineering GIS systems.  Financial software and 
data is housed and supported on the Tyler servers in Falmouth Maine.



The following financial applications are on the Munis Financial software computer system:

General Ledger
Accounts Payable
Payroll & Human Resources
Budgeting
Purchasing
Capital Assets
Accounts Receivable
Property Tax Revenues & Taxes Receivable
Utility Billing

The following interrelated applications are on separate computer systems

Inventory – Citi-works
Automated Meter Reading System – Sensus

Other Information:
The City of Hendersonville is committed to invest and continually improve its water and sewer 
system.  Therefore during fiscal year 2016 the Water and Sewer fund transferred approximately 
8 million dollars into several newly established capital project funds. 

The City does not expect to issue debt in the immediate future.  

The City does not maintain an internal audit function.  

Notification of Award:
The successful respondent will be notified of the award of contract following the favorable 
decision made by City Council.  No other proposers will be personally contacted.  Notification of 
Award will be posted on the City of Hendersonville website following the award. 

Contact information:

Lisa A. White, CPA
145 5th Ave. E. 
Hendersonville, NC 28739
(828)697-3015

lwhite@hvlnc.gov Please note that email is the preferred method of communication. 

Prior year CAFRs can be found at 
http://www.cityofhendersonville.org/index.aspx?page=86

or on our new website www.hvlnc.gov under Departments / Finance after March 1, 2016 



SUMMARY OFAUDIT COSTS SHEET --FIRM NAME_____________________________

FY16 FY17 FY18

Binding Estimate Estimate
Base Audit Fee:
Includes all personnel costs, travel, and on-site work,
supplies and materials – provide separate 
detail as described below

$ $ $

Financial Statement Preparation:
Includes preparation and printing of CAFR

$ $ $

Extra Audit Services (if needed) 

Other Costs:
(Explain)

TOTAL: $ $ $

Separately provide detail for the following components of the Base Audit Fees:

Personnel costs –
Itemize the following for each category of personnel (partner, manager, senior, staff 
accountants, clerical, etc.) with the different rates per hour.

Estimated hours – categorize estimated hours into the following:
# of Hours -On-site interim work, #________ Rate per hour_______

# of Hours -Year-end on-site work, #________ Rate per hour_______

# of Hours -Work performed in the auditor’s office #________ Rate per hour_______

Total cost for each category of personnel and for all personnel costs in total.    

Travel – itemize transportation and other travel costs separately.

Cost of supplies and materials – itemize.

Other costs – completely identify and itemize.

If applicable, note your method of determining increases in audit costs on a year to year basis.



This RFP for Audit Services is submitted by:

Offeror/Firm Name: _________________________________________ 

Authorized Representative Name: _________________________________________ 
                     (Print) 

Authorized Representative Signature: ________________________ Date: ___________

Address: ________________________________________ 

________________________________________ 

City/State/Zip: ________________________________________ 

Telephone: ________________________________________ 
(Area Code) Telephone Number 

Facsimile: ________________________________________ 
(Area Code) Fax Number 

It is understood by the Offeror that The City of Hendersonville reserves the right to reject any 
and all Proposals, to waive formalities, technicalities, and to recover and rebid this RFP. 

This RFP is valid for sixty (60) calendar days from the RFP due date. 

A certificate of insurance and W9 must be received prior to any work being done.
No Business License is required in the City of Hendersonville or Henderson County, NC



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Submitted By:             Department:   

Date Submitted:            Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________  Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?       If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Tom Wooten Public Works

3/16/2016 Tom Wooten

April 7, 2016

Council Action

05e

The Public Works Department is requesting an adjustment to the Fee Schedule to adjust the prices of three punch passes
for Patton Pool. The adjustments will increase the prices slightly for these three passes in order to bring them in line with
the other pass prices (they were a little too low). We are making the request now in order for the prices to take effect prior
to the opening of the pool for the summer.

Fee Schedule Adjustments:
Punch Pass - Adult - City Resident (15 Admissions) $30 to $38
Punch Pass - Adult - Non-City Resident (15 Admissions) $50 to $60
Punch Pass - Youth - City Resident (15 Admissions) $25 to $30

N/A

I move to adjust the three prices for the pool punch passes in the fee schedule as described in the summary.

See proposed changes on page 5 of the attached document...



 

1 
 

COST/CHARGE/FEE

ADOPTED BY BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015 - 2016       
CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE FEE SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTION

PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED FOR ITEMS DENOTED WITH ASTERIK

 

$60.00
$1.00

$0.15
$0.25

$30.00
$15.00

No Charge
$26.00

$0.15
$0.25

$200.00

$0.15
$0.25

     Large Format Copy  $10.00
$100.00
$300.00
$100.00

Nuisance Fee (Admin. Cost Doubles for each Offense within a Year) Cost + $100 Admin. Cost

Minimum $40.00
$1,000 $45.00
$2,000 $50.00
$3,000 $55.00
$4,000 $60.00
$5,000 $65.00
$6,000 $70.00
$7,000 $75.00
$8,000 $80.00
$9,000 $85.00
$10,000 $90.00
Over $10,000

Administrative Review
Annexation Waiver, Voluntary (contiguous or satellite)

     Black 

     Color 

     Color 
Special Event Vendors: (per day)

     Color

     Non-Food Vendors 

Comprehensive Plan (per page)

ADMINISTRATION

CDs

Copy Charges (per page)
     Black 

Application for Certificate of Public Convenience & Necessity (taxicab)

Copy Charges (per page)
     Black 

     Food Vendors 

DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE

Conditional Use

Floodplain Development Permit
Demolition Admin Fee

¹Applicable only to applications required to meet the additional standards contained in Section 16-4-23.4. 

Fees for towers proposed for siting in PCD or PID district are included in the fee for special use review.

Non-Conforming Use

Sign Permits (based on cost of sign)

$40.00 per $1000 over $10,000



 

2 
 

COST/CHARGE/FEE

ADOPTED BY BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015 - 2016       
CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE FEE SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTION

PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED FOR ITEMS DENOTED WITH ASTERIK

 

$300.00
$450.00

$300.00
$450.00

$100/acre
($500 minimum)

Actual Cost
$0.15

$20/lot

$450.00
$2500.00¹

$60.00
$1,000.00

$75.00
$5.00
$0.15

$275.00
$175.00
$225.00
$175.00
$50.00

Stormwater Permit Fee $500.00

Operational Permits 
     ABC License Fee $50.00
     Amusement Buildings $50.00
     Carnival and Fairs $50.00
     Covered Mall Buildings $50.00
     Exhibits and trade shows (per event) $50.00
     Explosives $100.00
     Fire Hydrants and Valves $50.00
     Flammable and Combustible Liquids $100.00
     Fumigation and thermal insecticide fogging $100.00
     Private Hydrants $50.00
     Pyrotechnic special effects material $100.00
     Spraying and Dipping $100.00
     Temporary membrane structures, tents, and canopies (excludes special events) $50.00

FIRE DEPARTMENT

Special Use Reviews & Amendments

          3 - 10 dwellings

Street Closing Petition ($1000 deposit)

Zoning Map

Subdivision Plats

     Commercial, Industrial or Institutional

     Residential < 3 acres

Telecommunications Towers, Antennas and Equipment

          5,000 - 19,999 square feet in floor area

DEVELOPMENT ASSISTANCE

Zoning Ordinance Map Amendment (Legislative Rezoning)
     Commercial or Industrial

ENGINEERING                                                                                                                         

Zoning Ordinance (per page) 

Site Plan Reviews & Amendments

Zoning Ordinance Text Amendments
     Residential > 3 acres

     Basic Permit (C-3, I-1)
     Special Use Permit

     Minor Planned Residential Developments

Temporary Use Permit

Variance

Zoning Permit

Traffic Impact Analysis Study

Subdivision Ordinance (per page)

          11 - 50 dwellings

          20,000 - 50,000 square feet in floor area



 

3 
 

COST/CHARGE/FEE

ADOPTED BY BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015 - 2016       
CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE FEE SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTION

PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED FOR ITEMS DENOTED WITH ASTERIK

 

Construction Permits
     Automatic fire extinguishing systems $100.00
     Compressed gas $100.00
     Fire alarm and detection systems and related equipment $100.00
     Fire pumps and related equipment $100.00
     Flammable and Combustible liquids $100.00
     Hazardous Materials $100.00
     Industrial Ovens $100.00
     LP Gas $100.00
     Private fire hydrant $100.00
     Spraying and Dipping $100.00
     Standpipe systems $100.00

$50.00

Construction Plans Review 
     Commercial hood suppression systems $100.00
     Petroleum tanks and appurtenances $100.00
     Sprinkler systems and fire alarm systems:
          1-50,000 square feet $50.00
          50,001 to 75,000 square feet $100.00
          75,001 to 100,000 square feet $150.00
          100,001 to 150,000 square feet $200.00
          150,001 square feet and over $300.00
     Explosives and fireworks $100.00
     Re-inspection Fee (Follow-up) per re-inspection $100.00
     Work without a permit $250.00
Hazardous Material Response Fees
     Engine Company Response - per engine (per hr.) $150.00
     Ladder/Truck Response - per ladder/truck (per hr.) $200.00
     Chief Officer - per officer (per hr.) $75.00
     Fire Marshall/Deputy Fire Marshall - per person (per hr.) $50.00
     Materials/Supplies Used Actual replacement cost
     Off Duty/Call Back Personnel Average hourly rate x 1.5
     Site Assessment Fee $50.00

$50.00
Credit Card Processing Fee (per transaction) for Tax Payments 2.75%
Credit Card Processing Fee (per $300) for Water & Sewer Bills $2.95
Returned check fee $25.00
Returned electronic item fee $10.00
Rejected bank draft $5.00
Itinerant Merchant/Peddlars Fee $100.00

               (Fee per site)  (excludes pecial events)

     Temporary membrane structures, tents,canopies 

FINANCE

FIRE DEPARTMENT

Business Registry Fee



 

4 
 

COST/CHARGE/FEE

ADOPTED BY BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015 - 2016       
CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE FEE SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTION

PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED FOR ITEMS DENOTED WITH ASTERIK

$10.00
$75.00

$20.00
$30.00

Skyland Refundable Parking Permit $25.00
$5.00
$0.50

$25.00
$50 + Doubles each O/T

$25.00
$25.00

$250.00
$100.00
$100.00

Limited Zone (Same Block Parking) $50.00
All Other Parking Violations C.O. 50 $25.00

$25.00
$50.00

Habitual Offender (3 Tickets or more in 30 days) $100.00

$50.00
$25.00
$10.00
$5.00

$3.00
$2.00

$500.00
$1,000.00

$50/half day
$20.00

$25/half day
$50/half day

$10.00

City Resident

Patton Park - Field Usage for Organized Groups (per player per season)

Berkeley Park - Field Usage for Organized Groups (per player per season)

Out of City Resident
Park Usage

Construction parking permit (per day)

Fingerprinting

Monthly parking space fee

Penalty after 30 days additional

Monthly parking space fee in the municipal service business district

Overtime/Expired meter 
Parking meter (per 1/2 hour)

Loading Zone/15 minute parking 

Parking Fees, Fines & Penalties:

Crosswalk 

Subsequent overtime 

Berkeley Park - Large Pavilion (May through September)

Penalty after 15 days

Fire Hydrant

Handicapped

Operation Center Room Rental Rates
Large Assembly Room (8 a.m. - 5 p.m.)

Boyd Park Mini-Golf Admission

Oakdale Cemetery Lots (per grave space)

PUBLIC WORKS

Fire Lane

POLICE 

Adults

Patton Park - Large Pavilion (May through September)

Children

Patton Park - Small Pavilion

Large Assembly Room (5 p.m. - 10 p.m.)
Small Assembly Room (8 a.m. - 5 p.m.)
Small Assembly Room (5 p.m. - 10 p.m.)

Precious Metals Dealer Background Check



 

5 
 

COST/CHARGE/FEE

ADOPTED BY BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015 - 2016       
CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE FEE SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTION

PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED FOR ITEMS DENOTED WITH ASTERIK

 

$4.00
$5.00
$4.00
$2.00

$150.00

$300.00
$75.00

$150.00
$60.00

$120.00
$60.00

$120.00
$30.00
$50.00
$25.00

$45.00

$80.00
$45.00
$80.00
$45.00

$300.00
$100.00
$300.00
$40.00

$25/per day
$50/per day

$100/per day
$10.00

$150.00
(collected with knuckleboom using city staff)
Small Special load (collected with pickup truck and city staff) $50.00
Environmental Services Base Fee $2.00

 
$20.00
$16.50
$18.00
$14.25

 
Commercial Recycling Collection (up to four 65 gallon carts emptied once per week) $10.00
Commercial Recycling Collection (up to four 65 gallon carts emptied twice per week) $20.00

$25.50
$22.00

Stolen/Damaged Cart Replacement Fee $100.00

2.5 CY (small truck or small trailer) $10.00
10 CY (single axle dump truck or equivalent) $40.00
We will sell to residents, non-residents and businesses.  
(2.5 CY = one scoop of backhoe loader front bucket.)

Punch Pass - Adult - City Resident (15 admissions)

Daily Admittance Fee (adults)

Patton Pool

Season Pass - Individual Senior - Non City Resident
Season Pass - Individual Youth - City Resident

Residential Services

Season Pass - Individual Adult - Non City Resident

PUBLIC WORKS

Season Pass - Individual Youth - Non City Resident

Season Pass - Family - Non City Resident
Season Pass - Individual Adult - City Resident

Lap Swim

Season Pass - Individual Senior - City Resident

Daily Admittance Fee (non-swimmer)
Season Pass - Family - City Resident

Punch Pass - Youth - City Resident (15 admissions)

Daily Admittance Fee (children) (3yrs or younger will be free with adult)

Gas Utility Cuts (per 5' X 5' cut)
Water/Flusher Truck (per load)

Weed Eater/Hedge Trimmer (per hour)
Electrical Usage for Special Events - 20 Amps or Less
Electrical Usage for Special Events - 21 Amps - 50 Amps

Special Loads (tipping fee added to special fee)
Sanitation Services 

Punch Pass - Adult - Non City Resident (15 admissions)

Backhoe (per hour)
Building Maintenance Fees (per hour)

Punch Pass - Youth - Non City Resident (15 admissions)
Miscellaneous

Bush Hogs/Tractor Mowing (per hour)

Water/Sewer Utility Cuts

Fleet Maintenance Fees (per hour)

Encroachment Permit Fee

Commercial-Business refuse pickup per can (96-gal)  

Commercial Services

Commercial-Business refuse pickup per can (96-gal)  (Actively Recycles)

Residential - 96-gal container (non recycler)        

Residential - 32-gal container (actively recycles) 
Residential - 32-gal container (non recycler)       

Electrical Usage for Special Events - over 50 Amps

Environmental Services

Residential - 96-gal container (actively recycles) 

Mulch/Composted Leaves

38.00$    
60.00$    
30.00$    



 

6 
 

COST/CHARGE/FEE

ADOPTED BY BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015 - 2016       
CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE FEE SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTION

PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED FOR ITEMS DENOTED WITH ASTERIK

 

Deposits
Water & Sewer Service Deposit $100.00

$5.62 per month

$2.72 per 1000 gallons
$2.99 per 1000 gallons

$5.62 per month

$2.72 per 1000 gallons
$2.07 per 1000 gallons
$2.14 per 1000 gallons

$6.08 per month

$2.99 per 1000 gallons
$3.29 per 1000 gallons

$8.38 per month

$4.33 per 1000 gallons
$4.76 per 1000 gallons

$8.38 per month

$4.33 per 1000 gallons
$3.23 per 1000 gallons
$3.07 per 1000 gallons

$8.38 per month

$2.82 per 1000 gallons

$9.12 per month

$4.76 per 1000 gallons
$5.23 per 1000 gallons

$9.12 per month

$4.76 per 1000 gallons
$5.23 per 1000 gallons

Commercial/Industrial

          > 40,000 gallons

Base Charge per Account

          > 40,000 gallons

Rate per 1,000 Gallons

Water Rate Schedule

Base Charge per Account
Rate per 1,000 Gallons

          0 - 40,000 gallons
          40,000 - 200,000 gallons         

Base Charge per Account
Rate per 1,000 Gallons

          0 - 40,000 gallons

Base Charge per Account
Rate per 1,000 Gallons

Bulk Water Sales
Base Charge per Account

          > 200,000 gallons                  
Municipal
Base Charge per Account

Base Charge per Account

          > 40,000 gallons                     

          40,000 - 200,000 gallons         
          > 200,000 gallons                  
Irrigation

          > 40,000 gallons                      

Rate per 1,000 Gallons

          All Usage

          0 - 40,000 gallons

Irrigation

          0 - 40,000 gallons

Commercial/Industrial

Rate per 1,000 Gallons
          0 - 40,000 gallons

Rate per 1,000 Gallons

          0 - 40,000 gallons

Rate per 1,000 Gallons
          0 - 40,000 gallons

Outside City Limits

WATER AND SEWER 

Inside City Limits

          > 40,000 gallons

Residential

Residential

Base Charge per Account



 

7 
 

COST/CHARGE/FEE

ADOPTED BY BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015 - 2016       
CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE FEE SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTION

PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED FOR ITEMS DENOTED WITH ASTERIK

 

 

$1,000.00
$1,400.00

Cost plus 10%
$600.00

Irrigation Tee, 5/8" $600.00

$40.00
$100.00

Meter Tampering Fee $75.00
$45.00

Cost plus 10% 

System Development Charges (SDC) - New Customers (Residential and Commercial)
Meter Size, Inches Meter Equivalent Cost

5/8" 1 $1,430.00
1" 3 $2,330.00

1-1/2" 5 $4,650.00
2" 7 $7,500.00
3" 10 $14,930.00
4" 16 $23,400.00
6" 40 $46,730.00
8" 70 $74,780.00

10" 100 $107,480.00
*System Development Charges (SDC) - Existing Customers (Residential Only)

5/8" 1 $950.00
1" 3 $1,550.00

*Eligible for financing SDCs up to 36-months
  Fees - associated with financing of System Development Charges (SDC):

$250.00

$200.00
$50.00
$26.00
$0.25

$300.00
$75.00
$75.00

Engineering Review Fees
Copies - .25 per page for copies from Register of Deeds - SDC financing

Subordination agreement preparation-per recorded lien for SDC financing

Meters

Taps & Connections
Water Fee Schedule

Water Tap, 5/8"

Pump Stations
Storage Tanks

Water - Stub Out

Water Tap, 1"

Turn On/Set Meter During Business Hours
Turn On/Set Meter After Business Hours

Test Meter, at customer's request (>1-in.); if meter faulty - No Charge

Line Extensions

Test Meter, at customer's request (<1-in.); if meter faulty - No Charge

WATER AND SEWER 

System Development Charges (SDC)

Title Search for SDC financing agreement

Water Taps > 1"

County Register of Deeds Recording fee per document -SDC financing

Note & Deed of Trust Document Preparation for SDC financing agreement



 

8 
 

COST/CHARGE/FEE

ADOPTED BY BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015 - 2016       
CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE FEE SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTION

PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED FOR ITEMS DENOTED WITH ASTERIK

 

 

 

 

Credit Card Processing Fee (per $300) $2.95
Returned check fee $25.00
Returned electronic item fee $10.00
Rejected bank draft $5.00
Late Payment Fee (15 days after due date) $15.00
Administrative Disconnection Fee $40.00

$100.00
Cost plus 10% 

Replace Removed Meter due to additional usage after non-payment cut-off
$75.00

$100.00
$40.00

Cost plus 10% 
Assist with Fire Hydrant Flow/Pressure Testing Conducted by Others $50.00
Illegal Use of Fire Hydrant/Tampering Fee $500 + Damages

$150.00
Cost plus 10%

Clothes Washer ($75 min; $150 max) - Limit one per account 15% of purchase price
15% of purchase price

**50% of purchase price or 
$200, whichever is less

Water Conservation Incentives Program Rebate Schedule

     After Business Hours

Fire Hydrant Installation

Drill for Main Tap, Cost/Inch of Diameter
Chemical Analysis of Water

Reconnection for Non-Payment - After Business Hours
Reconnection of Service at Main

     During Business Hours

Premise Visit

High-Efficiency Toilet ($25 min; $100 max) - Limit 2 per residential account

Limited number of rebates offered annually.

Miscellaneous Fees
WATER AND SEWER 

Weather-Based Irrigation System Controller - Limit one per account



 

9 
 

COST/CHARGE/FEE

ADOPTED BY BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015 - 2016       
CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE FEE SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTION

PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED FOR ITEMS DENOTED WITH ASTERIK

 

$6.28 per month
$4.33 per 1000-gallons

$9.45 per month
$6.93 per 1000-gallons

$9.45 per month
$6.60 per 1000-gallons

$1,500.00
$1,800.00
$2,000.00

System Development Charges (SDC) - New Customers (Residential and Commercial)
Meter Size, Inches Meter Equivalent Cost

5/8" 1 $1,280.00
1" 3 $2,100.00

1-1/2" 5 $4,200.00
2" 7 $6,750.00
3" 10 $13,500.00
4" 16 $21,080.00
6" 40 $42,080.00
8" 70 $67,350.00

10" 100 $96,830.00
*System Development Charges (SDC) - Existing Customers (Residential Only)

5/8" 1 $850.00
1" 3 $1,400.00

*Eligible for financing SDCs up to 36-months
  Fees - associated with financing of System Development Charges (SDC):

$250.00

$200.00
$50.00
$26.00
$0.25

Sewer Rate Schedule

Base Charge per Account
Rate per 1,000 Gallons

Retail - Inside

Fee per 8" gravity sewer tap

Rate per 1,000 Gallons
Municipal
Base Charge per Account

Fee per 6" gravity sewer tap

Base Charge per Account

Rate per 1,000 Gallons
Note: These sewer rates are not applicable to the Cane Creek Sanitary Sewer District

Taps and Connections
Sewer Taps, 4" gravity sewer tap

Sewer Fee Schedule

Retail - Outside

System Development Charges (SDC)

WATER AND SEWER 

Title Search for SDC financing agreement

Note & Deed of Trust Document Preparation for SDC financing agreement
Subordination agreement preparation-per recorded lien for SDC financing
County Register of Deeds Recording fee per document -SDC financing
Copies - .25 per page for copies from Register of Deeds - SDC financing



 

10 
 

COST/CHARGE/FEE

ADOPTED BY BUDGET ORDINANCE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2015 - 2016       
CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE FEE SCHEDULE

DESCRIPTION

PUBLIC HEARING REQUIRED FOR ITEMS DENOTED WITH ASTERIK

 

$0.25
$0.15
$1.50

$300.00
$75.00

$40.00
$60.00
$75.00

$100.00
$100.00

Cost of Program Per SIU
$300.00
$75.00

$33.00
$38.00
$18.00
$39.00

Excavator, 30,000-lb $65.00
$75.00
$20.00
$35.00

Dump Truck (triaxle) $65.00
$14.00
$25.00
$75.00
$20.00
$0.65

$20.00

Vac Truck

Air Hammer/Pusher

Equipment Usage (hourly rates)

Camera Truck
Harben

Mini-Excavator, 12,000-lb

Surcharges

Ammonia nitrogen, per lb. in excess of 30-mg/l

BOD (biochemical oxygen demand), per lb. in excess of 250-mg/l
TSR (total suspended residue), per lb. in excess of 250-mg/l

Engineering Review Fees
Line Extensions

Rubber-Tired Backhoe, Small

Pump Stations
Miscellaneous Fees
Premise Visit
Septic Tank Waste Disposal, per 1000-gallons
Septic Tank Waste Disposal Permit

Pretreatment Program
Nondischarge Permit Fee
Food Services Sewer Connection Application Fee

Rubber-Tired Backhoe, Large

Soil Tamp

Concrete Core Drill (manhole), Cost/Inch of Diameter
Drill for Main Tap, Cost/Inch of Diameter

**Sew er system development charge (SDC) calculated using residential equivalent unit (REU) of 360-gallons per day.

Air Compressor

Dump Truck (single-axle), Small
Dump Truck (single-axle), Large

Pick-Up Truck

Mini-Excavator, 8,000-lb

WATER AND SEWER 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Submitted By:             Department:   

Date Submitted:            Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________  Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?       If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Tammy Holland Finance

03/18/16 Tammy Holland

04.07.16

Council Action

05f

The Finance Department is requesting the amendment of resolution #97-0626 regarding minimal taxes. North Carolina
General Statute 105-357(c) sets the "small underpayment" and "small overpayment" amount at no more than $1. The
previous resolution was approved for the amount of "not to exceed $3."

N/A

iI move Council to approve the amendment to 97-0626 to change the amount from $3.00 to $1.00 and authorize the Tax
Collector to make adjustments for under-payments or over-payments up to $1.00

Original resolution 97-0626 and the new proposed resolution.



Resolution #16 04__

RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE TAX COLLECTOR TO MAKE
ADJUSTMENTS FOR UNDERPAYMENTS OR OVERPAYMENTS

AND TO SET A MINIMUM BILLING AMOUNT

BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Hendersonville, pursuant to North Carolina

General Statute 105 357(c), that the City of Hendersonville Tax Collector, as a function of that

office, be authorized to treat small underpayments of taxes as paid in full and not to refund small

overpayments unless the taxpayer requests a refund before the end of the fiscal year in which

the payment is made. A “small underpayment” is a payment made that is no more than $1.00

less than the taxes due.

MAY IT BE RESOLVED by the Council, pursuant to North Carolina General Statute 105 321(f), that

the City of Hendersonville Tax Collector, as a function of that office, be authorized not to bill any

taxpayer for, or otherwise collect minimal taxes in the amount of $1.00 or less.

This authority shall be deemed to be continuing until rescinded by the appropriate resolution of

this Council.

Duly adopted this April 7, 2016.

Barbara G. Volk, Mayor

ATTEST:

(seal)
Tammie K. Drake, City Clerk





CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Submitted By:             Department:   

Date Submitted:            Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________  Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?       If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Amy Knight Legal

March 30, 2016 Sam Fritschner

April 7, 2016

Council Action

05g

The Azalea Parking lot repaving project involves acquiring the title to a portion of the underlying land to which the City
does not currently own and which is subject to an easement held by Lamond Properties, LLC. Lamond Properties, LLC
has a legally uncertain easement to a legally uncertain number of parking spaces in the Azalea Parking lot. The attached
document would relinquish the current Lamond easement and would give back a more definite easement in clearly
defined space.

0.00

N/A

I move the Council to authorize and direct the City Manager to execute the Easement Redefinition Agreement.

Proposed Agreement



’
“ ” “

”

’

 
N.C. Bar Assoc. Form No. 3 © 1977 
Printed by Agreement with the N.C. Bar Assoc. 
#003 



USE BLACK 
INK ONLY 

 
N.C. Bar Assoc. Form No. 3 © 1977 
Printed by Agreement with the N.C. Bar Assoc. 
#003 



 
 

Exhibit A 
 
 
 
The real property conveyed herein consists of four separate tracts.  These tracts will be described with 
respect to three separate points designated in this description as “reference points.” The reference points 
are described as follows: 
 
Beginning at a point on a building corner, the said point being the northernmost corner shown on 
Condominium Plat A-332A, and proceeding thence south 09 deg 08 min 54 sec east 123.95 feet to a 
point, the said point being the southwesternmost point of the City of Hendersonville tract described in 
Deed Book 894 at page 137 Henderson County registry, thence with the southern line of the said City of 
Hendersonville tract , thence North 81 deg 23 min 04 sec east 6.30 feet to a point, thence south 08 deg 28 
min 29 sec east 2.60 feet to a point designated herein as “Reference point A”, thence south 08 deg 28 min 
29 sec east 42.16 feet to a point, thence north 87 deg  49 min 29 sec east 1.07 feet to a point, thence south 
08 deg 58 min 43 sec  east 2.29 feet to a point, the said point being designated herein as “Reference B” 
thence south 08 deg 58 min 43 sec east 59.34 feet to a point, thence north 81 deg 12 min 32 sec east 64.13 
feet to a point, the said point being designated herein as “Reference point C”.  
 
Tract 1  
Beginning at “Reference Point A” as designated herein above and proceeding thence north 83 deg 16 min 
00 sec east 18.99 feet to a point, thence south 07 deg 56 min 07 sec east 43.87 feet to a point, thence south 
81 deg 08 min 02 sec west 17.48 feet to a point designated herein as “Reference Point B”, thence north 08 
deg 58 min 43 sec west 2.29 feet to a point, thence south 87 deg 49 min 29 sec  west 1.07 feet to a point, 
thence north 08 deg 28 min  29 sec  west 42.16 feet to the point of beginning, containing 0.019 acres 
more or less. 
 
Tract 2 
Beginning at a point, the said beginning point lying south 08 deg 58 min 43 sec east 17.93 feet from the 
point designated herein as “Reference Point B” and proceeding thence north 81 deg  08 min 02 sec east 
17.44 feet to a point, thence south 08 deg 51 min 58 sec east 25.78 feet to a point, thence south 81 deg 08 
min 02 sec  west 17.39 feet to a point, thence north 08 deg 58 min 43 sec west 25.77 feet to the point of 
beginning, containing 0.01 acres more or less.  
 
Tract 3  
Beginning at a point, the said beginning point lying south 81 deg 12 min 32 sec west 64.13 feet from the 
point designated herein at “Reference Point C”, and proceeding from the said beginning point north 08 
deg 58 min 43 sec west 8.13 feet to a point, thence north 81 deg 08 min 02 sec east 17.38 feet to a point, 
thence south 08 deg 51 min 58 sec east 8.15 feet to a point, thence south 81 deg 12 min 32 sec west 17.36 
feet to the point of beginning, containing 0.003 acres more or less.  
 
Tract 4 
Beginning at a point, the said beginning point lying north 45 deg 14 min 00 sec  west 10.89 feet from the 
point designated herein as “Reference Point C”, and proceeding from the said beginning point south 81 
deg 23 min 28 sec  west 17.85 feet to a point, thence north 08 deg 31 min 19 sec  west 94.45 feet to a 
point, thence north 82 deg  05 min 35 sec east 17.98 feet to a point, thence south 08 deg 26 min 32 sec 
east 94.23 feet to the point of beginning, containing 0.04 acres more or less.  



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Submitted By:             Department:   

Date Submitted:            Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________  Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?       If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

John Connet Admin

3/28/2016 John Connet

4/7/2016

Council Action

05h

At our recent Council/Staff Retreat, we developed new Mission and Value Statements for the Water and Sewer System. I
believe that it is important for the City Council to formally approve these statements. In addition to the statements, City
Council identified several next steps for Hendersonville Water and Sewer. Staff recommends the approval of the
attached Mission and Value Statements and next steps for Hendersonville Water and Sewer.

NA

N/A

I move the approval of the new Mission and Value Statements for the Hendersonville Water and Sewer System.

Powerpoint of new Mission and Value Statements with next steps



Hendersonville Water and Sewer Utility 
MISSION AND VALUE STATEMENTS 



Mission Statement 
Operate a great utility for our customers

Inside customers
Outside customers
Municipal customers
Wholesale customers
Industrial customers 
Etc., Etc. Etc.  



Value Statements 
Our water utility exists to serve our customers.

We are committed to earning and maintaining public trust every day.  We will be 
open, ensure access, encourage involvement and be accountable to our 
customers.

We are cost conscious.  We spend public funds responsibly and effectively to 
ensure the utility’s short and long term financial strength.

We will have the highest standards for the quality of water & effluent.

We are committed to an affordable rate – keep price down & encouraging 
conservation.



Value Statements 
We are committed to protecting our environment.

We are committed to protecting the water/sewer system from hazards.

We will have access to redundancy – contingency plans.

We will achieve the best results through effective teamwork, regional 
partnership and customer participation.

We are committed to proactive, comprehensive planning, to guide the future of 
our utility in response to the needs of our customers.



Next Steps (External)
Henderson County Water and Sewer Forum (tentatively scheduled 
for May 2016)

Share Stakeholder Information
Water and Sewer needs in Henderson County
Discuss creation of technical (staff) review committee

Continue to support all economic development activities
Willing to discuss partnerships if we are invited



Next Steps (Internal) 
Water and Sewer Master Planning
Construct French Broad River Intake
Examine expansion and connection policies to 
support the goals of the City Council and Utility 
System



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Submitted By:             Department:   

Date Submitted:            Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________  Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?       If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Brent Detwiler Engineering

3/30/16 Brent Detwiler

4/7/16

Council Action

05i

The North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality Division of Water Infrastructure (DWI) is accepting State
Revolving Fund (SRF) loan applications by April 29, 2016 for streambank restoration projects. Staff has attended a
workshop and feel that this may be a good opportunity to fund improvements to several reaches of various streams
throughout the City that are eroding and impacting existing infrastructure. This particular project is considered a "green"
project by DWI staff. We were told that such projects have a high likelihood of being funded and typically are in the form of
0% interest loans.

The attached resolution is required as part of the application process, and staff is asking for it's execution so that we can
proceed with an application.

N/A

N/A

I hereby authorize the Mayor to execute the attached resolution in order to apply for a North Carolina Department of
Environmental Quality Division of Water Infrastructure SRF loan to fund a Multi-Area Streambank Restoration project. I
also hereby authorize that the City Manager shall be considered the City's Authorized Official when executing or providing
any funding application or other documents associated with the project.

Resolution
Certification by Recording Officer



RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF APPLICANT
WHEREAS, The Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina the Water

Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of construction of stream
restoration projects, and

WHEREAS, The City of Hendersonville has need for and intends to construct a Multi Area Streambank
Restoration Project, and

WHEREAS, The City of Hendersonville intends to request state loan assistance for the project,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE HENDERSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL:
That The City of Hendersonville, the Applicant, will arrange financing for all remaining
costs of the project, if approved for a State loan award.

That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the project
a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will provide adequate
funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of the system and the
repayment of all principal and interest on the debt.

That the governing body of the Applicant agrees to include in the loan agreement a
provision authorizing the State Treasurer, upon failure of the City of Hendersonville to
make scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from the City of Hendersonville any
State funds that would otherwise be distributed to the local government unit in an
amount sufficient to pay all sums then due and payable to the State as a repayment of
the loan.

That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project on
completion of construction thereof.

That John F. Connet, City Manager, the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is
hereby authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the Applicant with the
State of North Carolina for a grant to aid in the construction of the project described
above.

That the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and directed
to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection
with such application or the project: to make the assurances as contained above; and to
execute such other documents as may be required in connection with the application.

That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all Federal,
State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the project and to
Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto.

Adopted this the 7th day of April, 2016 at 145 5th Avenue East, Hendersonville, North
Carolina.

(Signature of Chief Executive Officer)

(Title)



CERTIFICATION BY RECORDING OFFICER

The undersigned duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Hendersonville does hereby certify:

That the above/attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the resolution authorizing the filing of

an application with the State of North Carolina, as regularly adopted at a legally convened meeting of

the Hendersonville City Council duly held on the 7th day of April, 2016; and, further, that such resolution

has been fully recorded in the journal of proceedings and records in my office. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I

have hereunto set my hand this ________ day of _______________, 20____.

(Signature of Recording Officer)

(Title of Recording Officer)



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Submitted By:             Department:   

Date Submitted:            Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________  Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?       If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Brent Detwiler Engineering

3/30/16 Brent Detwiler

4/7/16

Council Action

05j

The North Carolina Department of Environmental Quality Division of Water Infrastructure is accepting grant applications
by April 29, 2016 for Asset Inventory and Assessment projects. This is a new funding mechanism. Staff has attended a
workshop and feel that this may be a good opportunity to fund a Sewer Master Plan for the City, which as you recall, was
one of the one to two year priorities from the February Council Retreat. Up to $150,000 in grant funds are available.

The attached resolution is required as part of the application process, and staff is asking for it's execution so that we can
proceed with an application.

N/A

N/A

I hereby authorize the Mayor to execute the attached resolution in order to apply for a North Carolina Department of
Environmental Quality Division of Water Infrastructure grant to fund a Sanitary Sewer Asset Inventory and Assessment
(Master Plan) project. I also hereby authorize that the City Manager shall be considered the City's Authorized Official
when executing or providing any funding application or other documents associated with the project.

Resolution
Certification by Recording Officer



RESOLUTION BY GOVERNING BODY OF APPLICANT
WHEREAS, The Federal Clean Water Act Amendments of 1987 and the North Carolina the Water

Infrastructure Act of 2005 (NCGS 159G) have authorized the making of loans and grants
to aid eligible units of government in financing the cost of asset inventory & assessment
plans for sewer systems, and

WHEREAS, The City of Hendersonville has need for and intends to develop a Sanitary Sewer System
Asset Inventory and Assessment (Master Plan) , and

WHEREAS, The City of Hendersonville intends to request state grant assistance for the project,

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, BY THE HENDERSONVILLE CITY COUNCIL:
That the City of Hendersonville, the Applicant, will arrange financing for all remaining
costs of the project, if approved for a State grant award.

That the Applicant will adopt and place into effect on or before completion of the project
a schedule of fees and charges and other available funds which will provide adequate
funds for proper operation, maintenance, and administration of the system and the
repayment of all principal and interest on the debt.

That the governing body of the Applicant agrees to include in the loan agreement a
provision authorizing the State Treasurer, upon failure of the (unit of government) to
make scheduled repayment of the loan, to withhold from the (unit of government) any
State funds that would otherwise be distributed to the local government unit in an
amount sufficient to pay all sums then due and payable to the State as a repayment of
the That the Applicant will provide for efficient operation and maintenance of the project
on completion of construction thereof.

That John F. Connet, City Manager, the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is
hereby authorized to execute and file an application on behalf of the Applicant with the
State of North Carolina for a grant to aid in the construction of the project described
above.

That the Authorized Official, and successors so titled, is hereby authorized and directed
to furnish such information as the appropriate State agency may request in connection
with such application or the project: to make the assurances as contained above; and to
execute such other documents as may be required in connection with the application.

That the Applicant has substantially complied or will substantially comply with all Federal,
State, and local laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances applicable to the project and to
Federal and State grants and loans pertaining thereto.

Adopted this the 7th day of April, 2016 at 145 5th Avenue East, Hendersonville, North
Carolina.

(Signature of Chief Executive Officer)

(Title)



CERTIFICATION BY RECORDING OFFICER

The undersigned duly qualified and acting City Clerk of the City of Hendersonville does hereby certify:

That the above/attached resolution is a true and correct copy of the resolution authorizing the filing of

an application with the State of North Carolina, as regularly adopted at a legally convened meeting of

the Hendersonville City Council duly held on the 7th day of April, 2016; and, further, that such resolution

has been fully recorded in the journal of proceedings and records in my office. IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I

have hereunto set my hand this ________ day of _______________, 20____.

(Signature of Recording Officer)

(Title of Recording Officer)



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Submitted By:             Department:   

Date Submitted:            Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________  Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?       If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Rhonda Wiggins Admin

March 9, 2016 Lee Smith

April 7, 2016

Council Action

05k

High Vista - Round Robin Lane Extension

This project will require an extension of the existing water system to serve a proposed development of 7 residential lots on
Round Robin Lane, within the existing High Vista Community. This project will be paid for by High Vista Finance, LLC, of
Jacksonville, FL.

This extension will consist of:
605 LF of 6" PVC waterline
355 LF of 2" PVC waterline
1 fire hydrant

This project is within the jurisdiction of Mills River and has been reviewed and approved.

Based on the above information, the Water & Sewer Department has the capacity to support this additional infrastructure
and associated connections and hereby recommends approval of said project contingent upon final approval of
construction plans and specifications by the Water & Sewer Department.

0

N/A

"I move to accept this Water Utility Extension Project and to authorize the City Manager to execute the associated Water
Utility Extension Agreement on behalf of the City."



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Submitted By:             Department:   

Date Submitted:            Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________  Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?       If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Tammie Drake Admin

03.30.15 Mayor Volk

04.07.16

Presentation Only

06

Mayor Volk will present a proclamation for "Week of the Young Child" to Ms. Elisha Freeman, Executive Director of
Children and Family Resource Center.

N/A

N/A

proclamation



P R O C L A M A T I O N 

Whereas,  the Children & Family Resource Center and other local organizations,  in conjunction with 
the North Carolina Association for the Education of Young Children (NCaeyc) and 
National Association for the Education of Young Children (NAEYC), are celebrating the 
Week of the Young Child™, April 9–16, 2016; and 

Whereas,  these organizations are working to promote and inspire high quality early childhood 
experiences for our state’s youngest citizens, that can provide a foundation of learning and 
success for children in Hendersonville, North Carolina; and  

Whereas,  teachers and others who work with or on behalf of young children birth through age 
eight, who make a difference in the lives of young children in Hendersonville deserve 
thanks and recognition; and 

Whereas,  the purpose of the Week of the Young Child is to focus public attention on the needs of 
young children and their families and to recognize the early childhood programs and 
services that meet those needs, and 

Whereas,  the Week of the Young Child is a time to recognize that children’s opportunities are our 
responsibilities, and to recommit ourselves to ensuring that each and every child 
experiences the type of early environment – at home, at child care , at school, and in the 
community – that will promote their early learning , and 

Whereas,  public policies that support early learning for all young children are crucial to young 
children’s futures and to the prosperity of our society. 

Now, Therefore, I, Barbara G. Volk, Mayor of the City of Hendersonville, NC, do hereby proclaim April 
9–16, 2016 as  

“The Week of the Young Child™” 

in Hendersonville, NC and encourage all citizens to work to support and invest in early 
childhood in Hendersonville, NC. 

Signed this seventh day of April, 2016. 

___________________________________ 
Barbara G. Volk, Mayor 

Attest:

________________________________ 
Tammie K. Drake, MMC, City Clerk



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Submitted By:             Department:   

Date Submitted:            Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________  Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?       If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

John Connet Admin

3/28/2016 John Connet

4/7/2016

Presentation Only

07

The City Council engaged Kimley-Horn Engineering to complete a traffic circulation study for the Ninth Avenue Area.
Kimley- Horn has completed phase one of the study and will present their initial findings. Phase two will include the
development of engineering concepts for street and intersection improvements. No action will be necessary at this
meeting.

NA

N/A

None

Phase I report



1

HENDERSONVILLE
9TH AVENUE AREA
CIRCULATION STUDY
IMPROVEMENT OPTIONS

IMPROVE US 64 CROSSING SAFETY
 Install high-visibility crosswalks at US 64 and N Whitted Street.
 Install high-visibility crosswalks at US 64 and Valley Street.
 Perform a turning movement count including both motor vehicles and pedestrians at

US 64 and N Whitted Street to analyze for traffic signal warrants.
 Periodically enforce 20mph posted speed limit during school zone hours.
 Coordinate school delays and early releases to ensure flashing school zone signs

activate accordingly.
 Realign US 64 and N Oak Street to create a traditional 4-leg intersection and analyze

for traffic signal warrants.

IMPROVE WALKABILITY AND BIKABILITY
 Repair and regularly maintain existing sidewalks on 9th Avenue.
 Plan and execute Walk to School Day and Bike to School Day events.
 Install bike racks at Elementary School and High School if requested.
 Construct sidewalks to fill-in sidewalk gaps on N Justice Street and Fleming Street

south of 9th Avenue.
 Explore the potential for a bike boulevard along N Whitted Street.

IMPROVE N WHITTED STREET TRAFFIC FLOW
 Restrict on-street parking on the west side of N Whitted Street with signage and

enforcement, pending resident support.

IMPROVE SCHOOL CIRCULATION
 Investigate the southbound one-way conversion of Orleans.
 Enhance communication with parents to clarify designated drop-off and pick-up

locations.
 Enhance communication with residents to inform them about delays and early

releases.



2

IMPROVE ASHEVILLE HWY AND N CHURCH ST
 Conduct traffic analysis of Asheville Highway and N Church Street from Fleming Street

to N Main Street.
 Analyze the impact on nearby intersections resulting from the closure of 9th Avenue

between Oakland Street and N Church Street.



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Submitted By:             Department:   

Date Submitted:            Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________  Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?       If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Susan G. Frady Development Asst Dept

3/22/16 Dave Hazzard, Senior Planner

4/7/16

Council Action

08

The City is in receipt of two applications, both dated February 12, 2016, for a zoning map amendment. The applicant and
property owner is Henderson County. The applications are for parcel numbers 9568-49-7242 and 9568-49-7136 and
consist of .23 acre. These parcels are located on North Oak Street across from the Joint Health Education Center. The
requested change is from R-6, High Density Residential to MIC Medical, Institutional, Cultural.

N/A

I move City Council adopt an ordinance amending the official zoning map of the City of Hendersonville changing the
zoning designation of parcel numbers 9568-49-7136 and 9568-49-7242 from R-6, High Density Residential to MIC,
Medical, Institutional, Cultural, finding that the rezoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, the rezoning is
reasonable and in the public interest for the following reasons:
[PLEASE STATE YOUR REASONS]

Memorandum



M E M O R A N D U M

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Development Assistance Department

RE: Henderson County Zoning Map Amendment

FILE #: P16-7-Z

DATE: March 21, 2016

PROJECT HISTORY

The City is in receipt of two applications, both dated February 12, 2016, for a zoning map 
amendment.  The applicant and property owner is Henderson County. The applications 
are for parcel numbers 9568-49-7242 and 9568-49-7136 and consist of .23 acre.  These 
parcels are located on North Oak Street across from the Joint Health Education Center.
The requested change is from R-6, High Density Residential to MIC Medical, Institutional, 
Cultural. 

COMPREHENSIVE PLAN CONSISTENCY

According to N.C.G.S.160A-383, zoning map amendments shall be made in accordance 
with a comprehensive plan. As shown on the map located on page 8, the 2030 
Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map designates these parcels as Urban 
Institutional. The Urban Institutional future land use category is intended to create a 
cohesive, well-defined urban campus for medical and educational institutions, with 
supportive office, service and residential uses, that is integrated with Downtown.

The primary and secondary recommended land uses for the Urban Institutional land use 
category are as follows:

Primary
Public and institutional uses
Offices
Structured or underground 
parking

Secondary
Single-family attached residential
Multi-family residential
Live-work units
Limited retail and services

PROPOSED ZONING CLASSIFICATION

These parcels are proposed to be rezoned to MIC Medical, Institutional, Cultural which is 
established primarily for medical, institutional and cultural uses.



CITY COUNCIL
NORTH OAK STREET REZONING
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 2

SURROUNDING LAND USE & ZONING CLASSIFICATION

The two parcels in the proposed rezoning request are currently developed with a single-
family dwelling on each lot.

Parcels to the south and west are zoned R-6, High Density Residential and have a church 
with associated parking on them. The property to the north is zoned MIC, Medical, 
Institutional, Cultural and has been approved for a parking lot. The property to the east is 
zoned MIC-SU Medical, Institutional, Cultural, Special Use and is the site of the Joint 
Health Education Center which is under construction. The parcel to the west contains a 
Religious Institution. Please note an existing land use map is located on page 7 and an 
existing zoning map is located on page 9.

ANALYSIS
Listed in Table A is an outline of the dimensional requirements for the two zoning district 
classifications. The individual lots do not meet the minimum lot area for the MIC

Table A

Dimensional 
Req.

R-6 MIC

Minimum Lot Area 6,000 Sq. Ft. 8,000 Sq. Ft.

Minimum Lot Width 
at Building Line

50 Feet 70 Feet

Minimum Front Yard 20 Feet 30 Feet

Minimum Side Yard 8 Feet 10 Feet

Minimum Rear Yard 10 Feet 20 Feet

Maximum Building 
Height

35 Feet 50’ Feet

Note parcels 9568-49-7242 and 9568-49-7136 individually do not meet all of the 
dimensional requirements for the MIC zoning district and will have to be combined with 
additional parcels to meet the standards of the MIC zoning district.



CITY COUNCIL
NORTH OAK STREET REZONING
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 3

The Medical, Institutional, Cultural designation is intended for the development of 
medical, institutional and cultural uses.  Following is a list of permitted and conditional 
uses under this designation.

MIC, Medical, Institutional, Cultural 

Permitted Uses:
Accessory dwelling units
Accessory uses & structures
Adult care centers
Adult care homes
Banks and other financial institutions
Child care centers
Child care homes
Congregate care facilities
Home occupations
Hospitals
Laundries, coin-operated
Music & art studios
Neighborhood community centers
Nursing Homes 
Offices, business, professional and 
public
Parking lots & parking garages
Parks
Personal services
Planned residential developments

Progressive care facilities
Public & semi-public buildings
Religious institutions
Residential care facilities
Residential dwellings, single-family
Residential dwellings, two-family
Rest homes
Retail stores 
Schools, post-secondary, business, 
technical and vocational
Schools, primary & secondary
Signs
Telecommunications antennas

Conditional Uses:
Bed & breakfast facilities
Civic clubs & fraternal organizations
Cultural arts buildings
Public utility facilities
Restaurants



CITY COUNCIL
NORTH OAK STREET REZONING
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 4

As is shown on the enclosed map, these parcels are currently zoned R-6, High Density 
Residential.  This zoning classification is intended for areas in which the principal use of 
land is to permit high-density residential development.  Following is a list of permitted and
conditional uses for the R-6, High Density Residential classification.

R-6, High Density Residential

Permitted Uses:
Accessory dwelling units 
Accessory structures 
Adult care homes
Camps
Child Care Homes
Home occupations
Neighborhood community centers
Planned residential developments 
Religious institutions

Residential dwellings, single-family 
Residential dwellings, two-family 
Signs
Telecommunications antennas

Conditional Uses:
Bed & breakfast facilities
Public utility facilities
Residential care facilities
Schools, primary & secondary

PLANNING BOARD RECOMMENDATION

The Planning Board took this matter up at its regular meeting of March 14, 2016.  The 
Planning Board voted unanimously to recommend City Council adopt an ordinance 
amending the official zoning map of the City of Hendersonville changing the zoning 
designation of parcel numbers 9568-49-7242 and 9568-49-7136 from R-6, High Density 
Residential to MIC Medical, Institutional, Cultural, finding that the rezoning is consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan, the rezoning is reasonable and in the public interest for the 
following reasons:  it benefits the community.



CITY COUNCIL
NORTH OAK STREET REZONING
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 5

ZONING ORDINANCE GUIDELINES

Per Section 11-4 of the City’s Zoning Ordinance, the following factors shall be considered 
prior to adopting or disapproving an amendment to the City’s Official Zoning Map:

1. Comprehensive Plan consistency. Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan and 
amendments thereto.

2. Compatibility with surrounding uses. Whether and the extent to which the 
proposed amendment is compatible with existing and proposed uses surrounding 
the subject property.

3. Changed conditions. Whether and the extent to which there are changed 
conditions, trends or facts that require an amendment. 

4. Public interest.  Whether and the extent to which the proposed amendment would 
result in a logical and orderly development pattern that benefits the surrounding 
neighborhood, is in the public interest and promotes public health, safety and 
general welfare.

5. Public facilities.  Whether and the extent to which adequate public facilities and 
services such as water supply, wastewater treatment, fire and police protection 
and transportation are available to support the proposed amendment.

6. Effect on natural environment.  Whether and the extent to which the proposed 
amendment would result in significantly adverse impacts on the natural 
environment including but not limited to water, air, noise, storm water 
management, streams, vegetation, wetlands, and wildlife. 

SUGGESTED MOTIONS

For Recommending Approval:

I move City Council adopt an ordinance amending the official zoning map of the City of 
Hendersonville changing the zoning designation of parcel numbers 9568-49-7136 and 
9568-49-7242 from R-6, High Density Residential to MIC, Medical, Institutional, Cultural,
finding that the rezoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, the rezoning is 
reasonable and in the public interest for the following reasons:

[PLEASE STATE YOUR REASONS]

For Recommending Denial:

I move City Council not adopt an ordinance rezoning parcel numbers 9568-49-7136 
and 9568-49-7242.

         [PLEASE STATE YOUR REASONS]



CITY COUNCIL
NORTH OAK STREET REZONING
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 6

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
HENDERSONVILLE

IN RE: FILE NO. P16-7-Z

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Hendersonville:

1. Pursuant to Article XI Amendments of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of 
Hendersonville, North Carolina, the Zoning Map is hereby amended by changing 
the zoning designation of parcel numbers 9568-49-7136 and 9568-49-7242 from 
City of Hendersonville R-6, High Density Residential to City of Hendersonville MIC, 
Medical, Institutional, Cultural. 

2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
adoption.

Adopted this 7th day of April 2016.

_______________________
Barbara Volk, Mayor

ATTEST:

_________________________
Tammie K. Drake, CMC, City Clerk

Approved as to form:

_________________________
Samuel H. Fritschner, City Attorney



P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 B
O

A
R

D
N

O
R

T
H

 O
A

K
 S

T
R

E
E

T
R

E
Z

O
N

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
14, 2016

P
A

G
E

 7



P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 B
O

A
R

D
N

O
R

T
H

 O
A

K
 S

T
R

E
E

T
R

E
Z

O
N

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
14, 2016

P
A

G
E

 8



P
LA

N
N

IN
G

 B
O

A
R

D
N

O
R

T
H

 O
A

K
 S

T
R

E
E

T
R

E
Z

O
N

IN
G

M
A

R
C

H
14, 2016

P
A

G
E

 9



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Submitted By:   Department: 

Date Submitted:   Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________ Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?   If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Susan G. Frady Development Asst Dept

3/22/16 Dave Hazzard, Senior Planner

4/7/16

Council Action

09

The City is in receipt of a Special Use Permit application from Charles F. Irick of Flatiron Partners for the development of
80 multi-family residential units on approximately 8 acres. The project is in Hendersonville’s ETJ and is located on a
portion of Parcel # 9579-29-5777. The proposed parcel will have frontage on Lakewood Road. The density for this project
is 10 units per acre. The applicant is also requesting to rezone a portion of this parcel from I-1 Industrial to PRD Planned
Residential Development.

This application is for special use review. The preliminary site plan is subject to recommendation by the Planning Board
and approval by City Council. The final site plan is subject to City staff approval.

N/A

Suggested motions are shown on pages 4 and 5 of the Lakewood Terrace memorandum.

Memorandum



M E M O R A N D U M

TO: Honorable Mayor and City Council

FROM: Development Assistance Department

RE: Lakewood Terrace

FILE #: P15-57-SUR

DATE: March 21, 2016

PROJECT DESCRIPTION

The City is in receipt of a Special Use Permit application from Charles F. Irick of Flatiron 
Partners for the development of 80 multi-family residential units on approximately 8 acres. 
The project is in Hendersonville’s ETJ and is located on a portion of Parcel # 9579-29-
5777. The proposed parcel will have frontage on Lakewood Road. The density for this 
project is 10 units per acre. The applicant is also requesting to rezone a portion of this 
parcel from I-1 Industrial to PRD Planned Residential Development. 

This application is for special use review. The preliminary site plan is subject to 
recommendation by the Planning Board and approval by City Council. The final site plan 
is subject to City staff approval.

EXISTING LAND USE & ZONING

Parcel # 9579-29-5777 is currently zoned I-1 Industrial and is vacant. The parcels to the 
north and east are zoned R-15 Medium Density Residential and includes single family 
residential houses. The parcel located to the east across Lakewood Road is zoned PCD 
Planned Commercial Development and includes Sam’s Club. Parcels to the south are 
zoned I-1 Industrial and include U.S. Post Office and the remainder of the parent parcel
for this project and is vacant. Surrounding zoning districts are shown on the “Zoning Map”
on page 15.

COMPREHSIVE PLAN CONSISTENCY

The parcel included in this application and parcels located to the west and south are 
classified as Business Center on the 2030 Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map.
The goal of the Business Center classification is to “create an employment corridor along 
I-26 that supports the growth of Hendersonville as a business destination and to create a 
campus like mixed-use environment that includes office, research and low-impact 
industrial uses, as well as supportive retail amenities.” 

The parcels located to the north are classified as Medium Intensity Neighborhood on the
2030 Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map. The goal of the Medium Intensity 
Neighborhood classification is to “Provide a transition between High-and Low-Intensity 



CITY COUNCIL
LAKEWOOD TERRACE
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 2

Neighborhood areas while providing a wide range of housing formats and price 
points.  Promote walkable neighborhood design and compatible infill development in new 
neighborhoods and as a means of preserving and enhancing existing neighborhoods.”

The parcel located to the east across Lakewood Road is classified as Regional Activity 
Center on the 2030 Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map. The goal of the 
Regional Activity Center classification is to “meet the large-scale retail needs of 
Hendersonville residents while encouraging mixed-use, walkable design through 
redevelopment and infill projects.”

The Business Center classification lists multi-family residential as a secondary use. The
Comprehensive Plan recommends that secondary uses such as this one may be 
permitted through the planned development and special use procedures. This project is 
a planned development and is being processed through the special use permit 
procedures.   

The 2030 Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map is located on page 16.
Comprehensive Plan consistency is addressed under “E” on page three.

PLAN REVIEW

Buildings
The site plan includes the following:

Five two story multi-family buildings with a total of 80 units
A 1,952 ft2 Community Building
Common areas including a playground and a covered picnic area.

The site plan and an architectural elevations are included with this memorandum..

Parking
The site plan shows 160 parking spaces for the proposed multi-family residential 
development. The minimum required by the Zoning Ordinance based on number of 
bedrooms is 132.

Buffer Plantings
As per section 15-6 Bufferyards, no buffer is required between this parcel and the single 
family residential houses to the north because both uses are residential.  However the 
applicant has proposed a buffer of Leyland Cypress 20’ on center adjacent to the single 
family residential houses to the north.  This has been added to the list of conditions.

Stormwater
The applicant will be providing stormwater management plans to the Engineering 
Department as part of the final site plan submittal requirements.



CITY COUNCIL
LAKEWOOD TERRACE
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 3

ANALYSIS

Section 7-4-10.1 of the Zoning Ordinance states, “no special use permit shall be approved 
by City Council unless each of the following findings is made.”

(A) The use or development is located, designed, and proposed to be operated so as 
to maintain or promote the public health, safety, and general welfare.

Staff has not identified any issues relating to public health, safety or general 
welfare. 

(B) There are, or will be at the time they are required, adequate public facilities to serve 
the use or development as specified in Section 7-11.

Water and sewer service is intended to be extended to the site. 

(C) The use or development complies with all required regulations and standards of 
the Zoning Ordinance or with variances thereto, if any, granted pursuant to Section 
7-4-14, and with all other applicable regulations.

No variances are requested. 

(D) The use or development is located, designed, and proposed to be operated so as
to be compatible with the particular neighborhood in which it is to be located.

A neighborhood compatibility meeting concerning the application was held 
on January 14, 2016. Notice was provided by U.S. mail to the owners of 
record of all property situated within 400 feet of the subject property as 
required by Section 7-4-4.1 of the Zoning Ordinance. 

Approximately seventeen people representing the general public attended 
the meeting. The public raised concerns about the traffic on Lakewood Road, 
Buffer adjacent to single family residential, parking, income level of tenants, 
property maintenance, and future development.

A copy of the neighborhood compatibility report accompanies this 
memorandum.

(E) The use or development conforms to the general plans for the physical    
development of the City as embodied in this Ordinance and in the Comprehensive 
Plan and the Comprehensive Transportation Plan.

The 2030 Comprehensive Plan’s Business Center classification is intended 
to “create an employment corridor along I-26 that supports the growth of 
Hendersonville as a business destination and to create a campus like 



CITY COUNCIL
LAKEWOOD TERRACE
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 4

mixed-use environment that includes office, research and low-impact 
industrial uses, as well as supportive retail amenities.” 

The Business Center classification lists multi-family residential as a 
secondary use. The Comprehensive Plan recommends that secondary uses 
such as this one may be permitted through the planned development and 
special use procedures. This project is a planned development and is being 
processed through the special use permit procedures. Therefore, this 
proposed development is consistent with the 2030 Comprehensive Plan’s 
Land Use and Development recommendations. 

The Comprehensive Transportation Plan does not indicate any 
improvements to Lakewood Road.

PLANNING BOARD

The Planning Board took this matter up at its regular meeting of March 14, 2016. The 
Planning Board voted unanimously to recommend City Council adopt an ordinance 
amending the official zoning map of the City of Hendersonville changing the zoning 
designation of a portion of Parcel # 9579-29-5777 from I-1 Industrial to PRD Planned 
Residential Development, finding that the rezoning is consistent with the Comprehensive 
Plan, the rezoning is reasonable and in the public interest for the following reasons:  this 
rezoning best serves the community.  

The Planning Board also voted unanimously to recommend City Council approve the 
application of Flatiron Partners for a Special Use Permit based on the site plan submitted 
by the applicant and subject to the limitations and conditions stipulated on the published 
List of Uses and Conditions.

SUGGESTED MOTIONS

Special Use Permit and Rezoning

For Recommending Approval: I move City Council adopt an ordinance amending the 
official zoning map of the City of Hendersonville changing the zoning designation of a
portion of Parcel # 9579-29-5777 from I-1 Industrial to PRD Planned Residential 
Development, finding that the rezoning is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan, the 
rezoning is reasonable and in the public interest for the following reasons:

[PLEASE STATE YOUR REASONS]

I further move City Council approve the application of Flatiron Partners for a Special Use 
Permit based on the site plan submitted by the applicant and subject to the limitations 



CITY COUNCIL
LAKEWOOD TERRACE
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 5

and conditions stipulated on the published List of Uses and Conditions. 

[ADD, IF APPLICABLE, “AND THE FOLLOWING ADDITIONAL CONDITIONS”]

For Recommending Denial: I move City Council not approve the application of Flatiron 
Partners for rezoning and issuance of a special use permit.

[PLEASE STATE YOUR REASONS]



CITY COUNCIL
LAKEWOOD TERRACE
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 6

IN RE: Cedar Terrace (File # P15-57-SUR)

List of Uses & Conditions

I.  Stipulated Uses:

Only the following uses are authorized for the referenced development:  

Residential Dwellings Multi-family

II. Conditions:

(1) Shall Be Attached to the Special Use Permit and Satisfied Prior to 
Issuance of Final Site Plan Approval:

Recorded subdivision plat creating this parcel

Annexation application for this parcel for sewer extension

(2) Shall Be Attached to the Special Use Permit:

Installation of planting buffer adjacent to the single family residential houses 
to the north of this parcel.  Buffer shall include Leyland Cypress at 20’ on 
center as shown on the preliminary site plan.

Final plans for the project shall comply with approved plans, the conditions 
agreed to on the record of this proceeding and applicable provisions of the 
Zoning Ordinance.

Lakewood Terrace

Signature: _______________

Printed Name: 

Date: ________ _____



CITY COUNCIL
LAKEWOOD TERRACE
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 7

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE OFFICIAL ZONING MAP
OF THE CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE

IN RE: Lakewood Terrace
(File # P15-57-SUR) 

Be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Hendersonville:

1. Pursuant to Article XI of the Zoning Ordinance of the City of Hendersonville, 
North Carolina, the Zoning Map is hereby amended by changing the zoning 
designation of the following:

Rezone a portion of Parcel # 9579-29-5777, as shown in Exhibit A, from I-
1 Industrial to PRD Planned Residential Development.

2. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after the date of its 
adoption.

Adopted this 7th, day of April 2016.

       Barbara Volk, Mayor
ATTEST:

_________________________
Tammie K. Drake, CMC, City Clerk

Approved as to form:

________________________ _
Samuel H. Fritschner, City Attorney



CITY COUNCIL
LAKEWOOD TERRACE
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 8

Exhibit A



CITY COUNCIL
LAKEWOOD TERRACE
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 9

Planning Director’s Report
Neighborhood Compatibility Meeting
Application for a Special Use Permit 
Lakewood Terrace File #P15-47-SUR

Thursday, January 14, 2016           1:30 p.m.

Sue Anderson, Planning Director, convened the compatibility meeting at 1:30 pm in the 
Assembly Room of the City Operations Center. The following were in attendance:

NName   AAddress  NName  AAddress  
Paul Fitch (applicant) 3959 Laurel Park Hwy. Glenn Gordon 4 Cozy Cove 
David Cohen 104 Dublin Ln. Randi Gordon 4 Cozy Cove 
Walter Barnwell 102 Dublin Ln. Louise Stevens 109 Dublin Ln. 
Steven & Sharon Vance 112 Dublin Ln. Mike Owers 108 Dublin Ln. 
Ken Erb 709 Crab Creek Rd. Chelsea Owen 10 Shovelhead Dr. 

Asheville, NC 
Marilyn Barnwell 161 Nimbus Ln. Elaine Thomas 70 Lakewood Rd. 
Joyce Evans 38 Cozy Cove Penny Self 117 Dublin Ln. 
Bruce Bill 600 Carolina Village Rd. Carl Owenby NCDOT 
Chris Staton 113 Dublin Ln. Sue Anderson 100 N. King Street 
Jennifer Staton 113 Dublin Ln. Terri Swann 100 N. King Street 
Carol & Frank Kluge 115 Dublin Ln. Dave Hazzard 100 N. King Street 

Ms. Anderson opened the meeting explaining this is the first step in a three step process.  The 
first step is Neighborhood Compatibility Meeting, next is the Planning Board and last it goes to 
City Council.   This is an informal meeting to ask questions and get answers.  Minutes of this 
meeting will be forwarded to Planning Board and City Council.  The Planning Board meeting for 
this application will be held March 14, 2016.  Anyone can attend this meeting.

Paul Fitch, Flatiron Group, applicant stated their company has developed apartments in three 
states.  He showed pictures of the apartments they constructed in Brevard, Greenville, Franklin 
and Elkin.  He likes to concentrate on building outside of the metropolitan areas.  These will be 
affordable apartments and there is a need for that in this county.  This tract is on Lakewood Road 
next to the post office.  It backs up to Shamrock Estates.  They are looking to connect to the 
sewer that runs on Highland Square Drive by Sam’s Club.  This tract is part of 90 acres that is 
zoned Industrial.  They will have 80 units and it will include 1,2,and 3 bedroom units.  There is a 
buffer of trees along the property line.  They will also be putting a buffer along the property line.  
The site will be lit and professionally managed.  Tenants will be screened and have a criminal 
background check.  

Ms. Anderson stated a representative from NCDOT is in attendance.  

Chris Staton, 113 Dublin Lane, was concerned about the buffer and stated what is existing now 
can be seen through.  Mr. Fitch stated he plans to add the required buffer and it will consist of 
spruce pines and evergreens.  The specific trees that can be used are stated in the zoning 
ordinance.  He is planning to use Leyland Cypress.  



CITY COUNCIL
LAKEWOOD TERRACE
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 10

Ms. Anderson stated the applicant will have to submit a final site plan for approval and the 
landscaping will have to be on the final site plan.

David Cohen, 104 Dublin Lane, asked if the buffer footage would be planted between the 
property line and the building.   Mr. Fitch stated there is 30’ requirement.  The final layout will 
have the buffer more on the post office side.  Mr. Cohen asked if the units would have terraces in 
the rear.  Mr. Fitch stated yes.

Mr. Cohen asked if this was going to be Section 8 Housing.  Mr. Fitch stated 60% have median 
income for this area, which is about $36,000 a year.  Section 8 is for professional developers 
with rental property that have over 3 units.  He cannot turn down Section 8.  There are no 
background requirements against welfare and he cannot discriminate against them.  

Mr. Fitch discussed the density.  The zoning density is 8 acres with 10 units per acre. 

Walter Barnwell, 102 Dublin Lane, asked if the developer would be constructing a fence.  Mr. 
Fitch stated he was not sure but he did not think so.  Mr. Barnwell was concerned about people 
trespassing on his property and if this area is the jurisdiction of the Hendersonville Police 
Department or the Henderson County Sheriff’s Department because neither organization wants 
to patrol it.  Ms. Anderson stated this project would be annexed into the City of Hendersonville 
and the Hendersonville Police Department would be responsible for calls made to this property.  
Any property in the extra territorial jurisdiction would need to contact the Henderson County 
Sheriff’s Department for any situations that may need police.

Mr. Barnwell asked if the City is planning to take Shamrock Estates into the city limits.  Ms. 
Anderson stated no there are no plans to annex Shamrock Estates.

Glen Gordon, 4 Cozy Cove discussed the highway and location of the different apartments the
developer has previously built.  He wanted to know if any of the developments were on small 
roads such as this one.  Mr. Fitch stated they have constructed developments on roads such as 
Lakewood.  He has actually constructed a development this size on a road not as big as 
Lakewood.  Mr. Fitch explained each photo he had of the different developments and their 
location.  Mr. Gordon asked if a traffic study had been done.

Carl Owenby, NCDOT stated a traffic study had been done in 2014.  The traffic on Lakewood
Road was 2,500.  A study was done on Nix Road 5 years ago and he could not find where one 
had been done on Francis Road.  Mr. Gordon stated it is more congested now that Sam’s has a 
road in the back of the Walmart property.  People use Lakewood Road for the back entrance into 
Walmart.  He would like to see a traffic survey done with the type and number of vehicles and 
the miles per hour they are traveling on Lakewood Road.  The speed limit is 25 MPH but the cars 
go much faster than that.  Mr. Gordon was concerned with 220 more vehicles in the area because 
of the development.  He feels like the state needs to get together with the Police Department and 
have a traffic analysis done. 



CITY COUNCIL
LAKEWOOD TERRACE
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 11

Mr. Fitch stated no significant impact was determined with the traffic study that was done.

Mr. Gordon was concerned about the number of vehicles in the development with each unit 
having at least two vehicles and the development having guest spots for parking.  Ms. Anderson 
stated there would be 160 required parking spaces and the City has minimum parking 
requirements with no requirements for guest spaces.  Mr. Gordon stated he knows what happens 
in apartment complexes when all these guests show up.  He realizes this is a good company but 
sometimes four tenants turns into six tenants living in a unit and it gets out of hand.  

Ms. Anderson stated the purpose of this meeting is to hear concerns such as this and that all of 
their concerns will be heard.

Mr. Fitch stated when they develop a property they maintain ownership for 15 years, which ends 
up being closer to 25 years.  During this time they see to it that things are taken care of and they 
make sure the maintenance of the property is handled very well.  Management is the key and is 
critical in keeping these apartment complexes in top shape and without issues arising.

Ms. Anderson stated a final site plan will have to be submitted for approval for the driveway 
permit from NCDOT.

Don Daines, Director of Development for Housing Assistance Corporation spoke.  He stated 
there are advantages for these type of developments concerning tax credits and their operating 
budget.  They have an adequate line item budget for property management where they are 
actually able to hire a Property Manager.  They are able to hire a professional property manager 
that is dedicated to taking care of any issues, such as over population.  Adjacent property owners 
can have the assurance that they can contact the manager with any issues and you can maintain 
the quality of life that you now have. 

Mr. Fitch stated the budget maintenance reserve builds up yearly and they have insurance in case 
of catastrophes.  The State Housing Financial Group also inspects the property yearly and this is 
a regulated industry.  

Steven Vance, 112 Dublin Lane, stated this property is zoned Industrial and several industrial 
type projects have been turned down in the past.  This project is willing to assume responsibility 
for any issues that arise.  This property won’t sit vacant for another 10 years and they could end
up with an industrial project in the area that will not assume responsibility.    

Frank Kluge, 115 Dublin Lane discussed having turn lanes and how the fire trucks would enter 
the property.  Mr. Fitch stated all requirements for the Fire Department have been met and the 
state has determined that a turn lane is not needed.  Mr. Kluge asked if the road into the 
development would be a public road.  Mr. Fitch stated no this road would be private and they 
will be responsible for maintaining it.  



CITY COUNCIL
LAKEWOOD TERRACE
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 12

Mr. Kluge asked about a retaining wall like the one Sam’s has.  Mr. Fitch stated he has some 
discretion about a retaining wall but he is willing to listen to the adjacent property owners.  He is 
more in favor of having the Leyland Cypress as a buffer.  

Elaine Thomas, 70 Lakewood Road stated she is the house on the corner and she was concerned 
about the buffer.  Mr. Fitch stated they will help screen her view from the development.

Ms. Anderson stated this developer has gone above and beyond the minimum requirements for 
landscaping.  They can add as a condition for any additional buffering to make sure the buffer is 
in place before approving the final site plan.   

Jennifer Staton, 113 Dublin Lane stated she would prefer greenery over a fence.  She asked if the 
landscaping would be planted before the building.  Mr. Fitch stated no the landscaping would be 
planted after construction.  Ms. Staton asked about the timeframe.  Mr. Fitch stated after they get 
all the approvals he is looking to start construction in Spring 2017.

Ms. Staton asked what the management company policy is concerning the background checks 
and what happens if they find issues on any of them.  Mr. Fitch stated they will turn down 
applicants if the background checks do not come back clean.

Carol Kluge, 115 Dublin Lane stated when you come out of the post office and look to the left, 
there is a slight incline in the road and cars come whipping over this hill and it is a very 
dangerous spot.  She asked about having a turning lane.  Mr. Fitch stated they prepare the site 
plan with the widths of the street and file this with NCDOT.  NCDOT then sends someone out 
and looks at it and approves it.  There is not enough space for a turning lane but this will all be 
looked at by NCDOT.  Ms. Anderson stated a NCDOT representative is here and the concerns 
have been heard. 

Mr. Fitch stated concerning the traffic, NCDOT has standards they have set and he has to meet 
them.  He has to meet all state and local regulations.  

Mike Owers, 108 Dublin Lane asked if this project is for low income housing.  Mr. Fitch stated it 
would be affordable housing.  The one bedroom units would rent for $550 a month and the three 
bedroom units would rent for $750 to $800 a month.  

Mr. Owers stated 2,500 people a day would cause a bad traffic problem and with two different 
law enforcement agencies where neither agency wants to do anything will result in a bad 
situation.  He feels like a highway study should be done because it is not safe now and a traffic 
increase will only make it worse.  Young kids are speeding all the time on the road going up to 
Sam’s.  They drive their trucks on the grass and cause ruts in the grassy areas.  This is just not a 
good situation.

Mr. Fitch stated he had a traffic study done last year at peak time and the standard conclusion 
was there would be no significant impact.  



CITY COUNCIL
LAKEWOOD TERRACE
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 13

Mr. Daines asked if there was a traffic report on file.  Ms. Anderson stated the standard 
requirement for a traffic study by the City is 1,000 trips per day.  She will have to look and see if 
anything is on file.

Ms. Thomas stated there is a problem with young kids hanging out at Walmart and flooring their 
trucks up the road and leaving around 9:00 or 10:00 o’clock at night.  They leave large gulley’s 
in the grass and squeal their tires.  Ms. Anderson suggested the neighborhood get together and 
submit a petition to the Henderson County Sheriff’s Department concerning this. 

Penny Self, 117 Dublin Road asked how many times the management will do a walk-through of 
the development.  Mr. Fitch stated he would have to refer to the management company to answer 
that question.

Randi Gordin, 4 Cozy Cove stated with two new developments she feels like the road can’t 
handle all the traffic.  Mr. Owenby stated there are certain formulas and policy standards that 
NCDOT  uses in determining site distance, traffic, etc.  to determine if a turning lane is needed.  
The city uses 1,000 vehicles a day for city roads but NCDOT uses 3,000 a day.

Mr. Barnwell asked how the contractor will get the large vehicles onto the site since there is such 
a small area off of Lakewood Road.  Mr. Fitch stated they will ask the owners for temporary use 
of the roadway to bring the heavy equipment into the backside of the property.  

Ms. Kluge, 115 Dublin Lane asked if the property manager would be on-site fulltime or just 
certain hours.  Mr. Fitch stated the property managers will work 9:00 to 5:00 but their hours will 
stagger.  They will not live on-site and the hours will vary and they will also have weekend duty 
as well.

Ms. Self talked about affordable housing and how there is a need for workforce housing in the 
area and she does understand this.  

Ms. Gordon asked if there was a state law as to how much affordable housing is allowed in each 
state.  Mr. Fitch stated no, this is a federal program to address the needs.  Ms. Anderson stated 
the city does not choose to bring in affordable housing and City Council cannot deny this based 
on income level.  This would not be constitutional.  Ms. Gordon asked if Cedar Terrace is 
affordable housing too.  Ms. Anderson stated yes.

Mr. Fitch explained workforce housing and how the need is great in this area.

Ms. Thomas asked what the name of the development would be.  Mr. Fitch stated Lakewood 
Terrace.

Ms. Self asked if there was any plans to develop the property outside of this development.  Mr. 
Fitch stated no, and a large portion of this is in the floodplain.  



CITY COUNCIL
LAKEWOOD TERRACE
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 14

Mr. Owers asked if there was any plans to expand the project in the future.  Mr. Fitch there was 
no plans to expand whatsoever.  

Mr. Owers asked about the water being effected.  Mr. Fitch explained the size of the water line 
and sewer line.  Ms. Anderson stated this will have to be approved by the Water & Sewer 
Department.  

Ms. Anderson stated this will go before the Planning Board and City Council.  Anyone that 
would like to attend these meetings can.

With no further comments or questions, Ms. Anderson closed the meeting at 2:30 p.m.  



C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
LA

K
E

W
O

O
D

T
E

R
R

A
C

E
A

P
R

IL
7, 2016

P
A

G
E

 15



C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
LA

K
E

W
O

O
D

T
E

R
R

A
C

E
A

P
R

IL
7, 2016

P
A

G
E

 16



C
IT

Y
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
LA

K
E

W
O

O
D

T
E

R
R

A
C

E
A

P
R

IL
7, 2016

P
A

G
E

 17





CITY COUNCIL
LAKEWOOD TERRACE
APRIL 7, 2016
PAGE 19



APPEAL OF DEVELOPMENT DECISIONS

Section 7-13 of the Zoning Ordinance outlines the process for appeal of development 
decisions by City Council.  The following Sections of the Zoning Ordinance apply 
specifically to Special Use Review:

Section 7-13-2 (b): Preliminary site plans. Decisions of the City Council regarding 
appeals from development decisions concerning applications for preliminary site plan 
approval may be appealed to the Superior Court by any aggrieved party.  Such 
appeals shall be in the nature of certiorari and must be filed within 30 days after the 
filing of the decision in the office of the City Clerk or after a written copy thereof is 
delivered to every aggrieved party who has filed a written request for such copy with 
the Clerk at the time of the hearing, whichever is later.  The copy of the decision of the 
Council may be delivered to aggrieved parties either by personal service for by 
registered mail or certified mail return receipt requested.

Section 7-13-2 (d): Special use review. Judicial review of decisions regarding 
applications processed under the provisions of special use review, established in 
Section 7-4, above, require special treatment due to the fact that they involve two 
separate applications which, though processed simultaneously, require Council to 
make two separate decisions exercising two different types of decision-making 
authority. One application requests enactment of an ordinance amending the Official 
Zoning Map, and the other requests issuance of a special use permit. The first 
application involves a legislative decision on the part of Council, and the second a 
quasi-judicial decision. The quasi-judicial decision, that is, the one concerning the 
application for a special use permit, may be appealed to the Superior Court by any 
aggrieved party in the manner prescribed in paragraph b), above. Such appeal shall 
be in the nature of certiorari. The legislative decision, which is the one concerning the 
request for rezoning, may be contested, in accordance with NCGS Section 160A-
364.1, by a cause of action commenced within two months of the date of the decision.

The validity of the ordinance may be challenged in accordance with North Carolina 
General Statute Section 160A-364.1.  

§ 160A-364.1. Statute of limitations.
A cause of action as to the validity of any zoning ordinance, or amendment thereto, 
adopted under this Article or other applicable law shall accrue upon adoption of the 
ordinance, or amendment thereto, and shall be brought within two months 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Submitted By:   Department: 
Date Submitted: Presenter:   
Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:
Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $_________________ Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?   If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

John Connet / Lee Smith Water/Sewer
3/28/2016 John Connet and Lee Smith

4/7/2016
Council Action

We recommend denial of this request to waive System Development Fees. See the attached memorandum from City
Manager John Connet for additional information.

Information from March City Council meeting:

I recently met with Cheria, Billy and Tony Duncan regarding a 55+ retirement community comprised of mobile homes
located on a parcel at 20 Hannah Grace Way off of Sugarloaf Road, just west of Fire Station 2. The Duncans are
potential buyers for this property and are carrying out their due diligence in regards to purchasing this property. Our
meeting centered around a discussion regarding the possible connection of this community to the City's gravity sewer
main located in the right-of-way of this property along Sugarloaf Road and the associated system development charges.
The existing septic system serving this community is continuing to fail and has prevented the replacement of homes once
removed from the property thus limiting the potential to maximize the occupancy of this community. Based on GIS data,
there are 31-homesites but only 23 are occupied with homes, leaving 8-vacant spaces.

The Duncans are requesting an opportunity to describe their plans to improve this community and to request City
Council's consideration of waiving the system development charges for this property if connected to City sewer. The cost
for the sewer system development charges for this site would be $26,350 (31-units x $850/unit = $26,350). This parcel is
already connected to City water.

10

26,350

No

I move that the City Council deny Ms. Duncan's request to waive System Development Charges for Whiteside's Green
Acre Mobile Home Park.

Copy of correspondence from potential developer of the property.
View of property from GIS.
Memorandum from City Manager John Connet







MEMORANDUM 

TO: MAYOR VOLK AND CITY COUNCIL  
FROM: JOHN CONNET, CITY MANAGER  
SUBJECT: WIAVER OF SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT FEES  
DATE: MARCH 21, 2016 
CC: LEE SMITH AND SUSAN FRADY 
  

City Staff met last week to discuss Cheria Duncan’s request to waive System Development 
Fees for Whiteside’s Green Acres Mobile Home Park.  During the meeting, we decided that the best 
course of action, to address these types of requests, is to develop an overall affordable housing 
strategy.  One component of this strategy is to develop a mechanism for non-profit and for-profit 
developers to lower their cost in exchange for the development of affordable housing projects.  We 
believe this strategy should be a tiered approach that will allow the City Council to waive 100%, 50%, 
or 25% of the System Development Fees based on the scope of the project.  We believe that 
lowering these costs should be tied to ensuring that rental rates will remain at an affordable level and 
the savings will be put back into the provision of true affordable housing.  For example, housing 
projects that receive state or federal assistance are required to remain in the same ownership for a 
specific period of time and maintain their rental rates at a certain level for thirty to forty years.  The 
ownership and rental rates are monitored on a regular basis by a state or federal agency.  We will be 
recommending the establishment of a formal affordable housing strategy at a future meeting.   

  Unfortunately, there is no mechanism to ensure that the Green Acres project will fall in line 
with this strategy and rental rates will actually be in the affordable range.  In fact, there is no way to 
guarantee that once on sewer that the property will not be sold for the highest and best use.  
Therefore, we would recommend against waiving the System Development Fees for Whiteside’s 
Green Acres Mobile Home Park for the reasons: 

1. Sewer is available immediately adjacent to the property.  It does not require any 
significant extension of the main collection system.  Therefore, there is no financial 
hardship associated with connection to our sewer system.  It is simply a business 
decision.   

2. There is no simple mechanism to ensure that rental rates will remain at an 
affordable level. Therefore, this request does not meet the affordable housing 
standard as recommended by the Waiver Policy.  

3. There is no simple mechanism to ensure that the property will not be sold for a 
higher and better use once on sewer. Therefore, this request does not meet the 
affordable housing standard as recommended by the Waiver Policy 

4. Although the property will be annexed, manufactured housing is still considered 
personal property and depreciates in value over time.  Therefore, it is not a direct 
economic benefit for the City of Hendersonville as recommended by the Waiver 
Policy.   

 



5. The property owner has the alternative to reduce the number of units to ensure the 
septic system can operate properly.  So, the immediate health hazard can reasonably 
be eliminated without waiving the System Development Charges.  Therefore, the 
request does not meet the definitive health hazard standard of the Waiver Policy.   

Thank you for your attention in this matter,  if you have any questions or need additional 
information, please feel free to contact me at (828) 233-3201.   

 

 

 

 

 

2 
 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Submitted By:             Department:   

Date Submitted:            Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________  Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?       If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Lew Holloway Downtown

3/28/16 Lew Holloway

4/7/16

Council Action

11

Council was presented with proposed changes to the City of Hendersonville Parking Permit Program during the March
3rd, 2016 Council meeting. Following City Council feedback that evening, staff revised the proposed changes. The
schedule proposed in the attached permit structure was discussed in an open meeting with existing permit holders on
March 24th, 2016.

The permit types would be offered to existing permit holders for the 2016-2017 budget year. We will contact each over the
next month to determine which of the three permit types they would prefer before transitioning spaces within the various
lots accordingly on July 1, 2016. No new permits would be offered during a trial period (3 to 6 months), during which time
staff will monitor program function and lot occupancy.

Please see attached document for information on the three permit types proposed.

N/A

N/A

Any impact from these changes will be included as a component of the 2016-2017 Budget.

I move to approve the revised City of Hendersonville parking permit types as outlined in the attached permit schedule.

permit program



March 28,2016 

Proposed City of Hendersonville Permit Program 

Permit Type Interior Price Exterior Price 
G Permit: 24/7 Assigned Space. This permit is a mirror of the permit 
currently offered. The only difference to an existing permit holder 
would be the $10 price increase. 

$40 $30 

R Permit: 24/7 Unassigned Space. This permit would offer access to 
spaces reserved 24/7, but not assigned to specific permit holders. 

$30 $20 

S Permit: Mon/Sat: 8 am – 6 pm Unassigned Space. This permit would 
offer access to spaces reserved Mon/Sat: 8 am – 6 pm, but not 
assigned to specific permit holders. 

$20 $10 

 

Notes: 

All three permit types would be offered to existing permit holders.  
All permit types would be associated with a designated lot, i.e. Apple, Spruce, Dogwood, etc. 
R & S permits would allow permit holders to park in an associated metered lot in the case that 
their designated bank of reserved spaces is occupied. 
The interior price reflects proposed permit costs for existing and future lots within the 
boundaries of the Downtown Main Street MSD. 
The exterior price reflects proposed permit costs for existing and future lots outside of the MSD. 



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Submitted By:             Department:   

Date Submitted:            Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________  Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?       If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Sam Fritschner Legal

28 March 2016 Sam Fritschner

7 April 2016

Council Action

12

The current Hendersonville City Charter contains a provision, section 3.4, respecting the Council's power to change the
pay of council members.

Currently under the Charter the council may not increase or reduce the mayor's salary and may not increase any council
member's salary if the change takes effect during the term in which it is voted.

Currently under state statute section 160A-64 the council may fix its own compensation and the compensation of the
mayor "by adoption of the annual budget ordinance."

At the city manager's request I have drafted a proposed resolution requesting the General Assembly to amend the Charter
to reflect statutory law as it may exist from time to time with respect to the change in council compensation. This change if
enacted by the General Assembly would permit the council to raise or lower its salary as part of the annual budget
ordinance.

As a point of further information, the method for changing the charter with respect to form of government, voting and
representation does not apply to a charter change of this kind. Those other changes can be effected by a process
involving the City Council and a possible popular vote. This proposed change must be enacted by the General Assembly.

0

N/A

I move the council to request the General Assembly to enact the proposed amendment to Charter section 3.4.

Proposed resolution requesting charter amendment with the proposed amendment attached.



RESOLUTION # __________

A RESOLUTION REQUESTING THE GENERAL ASSEMBLY TO AMEND § 3.4 OF THE
HENDERSONVILLE CITY CHARTER

WHEREAS, the Hendersonville City Charter contains a provision § 3.4 respecting the change in
compensation for Mayor and Council members, and

WHEREAS, the Council believes that it would be in the best interest of the City for the Charter
to follow general state statutory law,

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the City Council request and it does hereby
request the General Assembly to enact legislation effecting an amendment to the City Charter,
§ 3.4, as attached to this resolution and made a part hereof;

And the city manager and city attorney are hereby authorized and directed to publish this
resolution to the appropriate persons and cooperate with such persons as may  be necessary
and proper to effect introduction of the proposed Charter Amendment to the General Assembly . 

Adopted this seventh day of April 2016.

_______________________________________________
Barbara Volk
Mayor, City of Hendersonville

ATTEST:

____________________________________
Tammie K. Drake, CMC
City Clerk



Hendersonville City Charter

Sec. 3.4. - Compensation of mayor and councilmen members. 

The mayor and council members shall receive for his their services such salaryies as the
city council shall determine from time to time in accordance with applicable North
Carolina law. , and no increase or reduction in his salary shall be made to take effect
during the term in which it is voted. The council may establish a salary for its members
which may be increased or reduced, but no increase shall be made to take effect as to
any councilman during the respective term of office which he is serving at the time the
increase is voted.



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Submitted By:             Department:   

Date Submitted:            Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________  Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?       If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Brent Detwiler Engineering

3/30/16 Brent Detwiler

4/7/16

Council Action

13

As approved at the March 3, 2016, City staff is working with WGLA Engineering, PLLC (WGLA) to complete a design for
widening N Oak Street from its current 18' to 24' from US 64 to 7th Avenue and adding a turn lane at US 64. This will
provide better access to users of the new Joint Health Education facility as well as local residents. Since the entire street
will be under construction, water line and sewer line replacements as well as stormwater, curb & gutter and sidewalks will
be included as part of this work.

WGLA completed their design on March 30, 2016 and subsequently submitted it to Vannoy Construction (Vannoy), the
general contractor for the Joint Health Education facility and various parking and site projects in the Pardee area. Vannoy
is currently estimating the construction cost associated with the N Oak Street widening and water/sewer improvements
and will have it back to the engineer and City by April 7, 2016. If the pricing is appropriate and acceptable, it will be
presented to Council for approval at the April 7 meeting. If approved it is anticipated that Vannoy will perform the work as
an amendment to their contract with Henderson County, and the City will reimburse the County for the work as part of an
inter-local agreement to be drafted by the City and County Attorneys.

We have included an associated budget amendment and capital project ordinance (the numbers will be included when
received and reviewed). We have provided the plans for reference and welcome any questions that you may have. Thank
you.

Unavailable on 3/30/16

Yes

There are funds set aside for the Widening Project. There will also be a contribution from the Water/Sewer Fund because
of the water and sewer improvements.

I hereby move to approve a proposal from Vannoy Construction through their contract with Henderson County in the
amount of $________________ (to be provided on 4/7/16) in order to widen N Oak Street from 6th to 7th Avenue and
replace water and sewer lines. I also hereby move to approve the associated budget amendment and capital project
ordinance. for the N Oak Street project. I also hereby move to authorize the City Manager and/or City Attorney to prepare
and execute an inter-local agreement with Henderson County in order for the City to pay for said work.

N Oak Street Widening Project design plans dated 3/30/16



Ordinance #______ 

CAPITAL PROJECT ORDINANCE FOR 
THE ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION AND INSTALLATION 

OF THE NORTH OAK STREET INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT 
 

BE IT ORDAINED by the Governing Board of the City of Hendersonville, North Carolina that pursuant 
to Section 13.2 of Chapter 159 of the General Statutes of North Carolina, the following capital project 
ordinance is hereby adopted: 

Section 1:  The project authorized is a City infrastructure project described as the North Oak Street 
Infrastructure Improvement Project. 

Section 2:  The following amounts are appropriated for the project: 

 

Section 3:  The following revenues are anticipated to be available via transfers to the 
aforementioned special project fund from the General Fund and Water & Sewer Fund for project 
expenses: 

 

Section 4:  The Finance Director is hereby directed to maintain within the capital project fund 
sufficient specific detailed accounting records to satisfy the disclosure requirements of all the 
contractual agreements, if applicable. 

Section 5:  Funds may be advanced from the General Fund and Water & Sewer Fund as necessary 
for the purpose of making payments as due.  Reimbursement requests shall be made in an orderly 
and timely manner. 

Section 6:  The Finance Director is directed to report, on a quarterly basis, on the financial status 
of each project element in Section 3 and Section 4. 

Section 7:  The Finance Director is further instructed to include a detailed analysis of past and 
future revenues and expenses during each annual budget submission made to the Governing Board. 

Account Name Total Budget

4350000 559900 Capital Outlay-Other Improvements TBD

Total Project Appropriation TBD

Account Number

Account Name Total Budget

109900 999435 Transfer to N. Oak St. TBD
4350000 998010 Transfer In From GF TBD
609900 999435 Transfer to N. Oak St. TBD

4350000 998060 Transfer In From W&S TBD

Total Project Revenue TBD

Account Number



Section 8:  Copies of this capital project shall be furnished to the City Clerk, Finance Director and 
City Manager for direction in carrying out this project. 

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Hendersonville, North Carolina, on this seventh day 
of April, 2016. 

 

        ______________________________ 
            Barbara G. Volk, Mayor 
ATTEST: 

 
______________________________ 
Tammie K. Drake, City Clerk 
 

 

Approved as to form: 

 

______________________________ 
Samuel H. Fritschner, City Attorney 
 



4350000 998010
4350000
4350000

998060
559900























CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Submitted By:      Department:  

Date Submitted:    Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________ Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?      If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Brian Pahle Admin

03/29/16 Brian Pahle

04/07/16

Presentation Only

15a

In accordance with State Statute 159-13 (b) (3) it is required that all expenditures resulting from a contingency
appropriation budget adjustment be reported to the governing board at its next regular meeting and recorded in the
minutes. Every month you will receive a staff report detailing the contingency appropriations made from the two months
priors last Wednesday to the prior month's last Wednesday. For example for a December meeting you will receive a
report of all contingencies appropriated from the last Wednesday in October to the last Wednesday in November.

The following contingency appropriations were made:
1) Fund 390 | $19,000 | For Construction and Material Testing
2) Fund 10 | $1,200 | For Overages in Supply/Dues Accounts
3) Fund 10 | $15,000 | For N. Oak St. Land Purchase
4) Fund 10 | $3,181 | For New Fire Chief Leadership Development

0

N/A

None.



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Submitted By:   Department: 
Date Submitted: Presenter:   
Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:
Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $_________________ Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?   If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Lisa White Finance

03/21/16

April 7, 2016

Lisa White

Presentation Only

15b

Per the City Investment policy, the investment officer shall provide the City Manager and City Council an investment report including 
a management summary that provides an analysis of the status of the current investment portfolio and the individual transactions 
executed.   (Investment transaction listing is attached). 
Investment Report/Management Summary: 
As of 02/29/16 City Investments held by First Citizens (Custodian) total $26,545,015.96 (Market Value). The portfolio (at cost) consists 
of the following investments as allowed by the City Investment Policy and State Statute:  
US Treasury Notes                 $999,134.52 
Government Agencies     $22,810,178.09 
Municipal & NC                   $2,692,093.46 
Cash                                                  $139.91 
Total Cost:                          $26,501,406.07 
 
Bond Funds are required to be kept segregated.  The City currently has $925,166.89 as of 02/29/16 for the 2008 Sidewalk Bond which 
is held by the NC Capital Management Trust.   
  
Total Investment earnings are budgeted at $278,710 for all funds, earnings received to date are $143,251 for FY16 and revenue is 
expected to reach the budged amount.  Total annual investment income recorded for all funds in FY15 was $210,895.   
 
 

Yes

0

No motion necessary.  Staff Report only. 

Investment Bank Statement - First Citizens Custody Account 02/29/16 
Investment Activity Report- Transactions Executed as of 03/18/16 



STATEMENT

Statement Period :  02/01/16 to 02/29/16

Env # S 466003023 I4
CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE
2008 SIDEWALK BOND FUND
ATTN: LISA WHITE
145 5TH AVE E
HENDERSONVILLE, NC  28792-4328

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT OF THE CAROLINAS
1520 SOUTH BOULEVARD
CHARLOTTE, NC  28203
Rep. Name:
Rep. #:

Client/Master #: 301N
Branch #: 0000

100.00% Money Market Portfolio Value as of 01/31/16 $ 924,923.54

Additions $   0.00

Withdrawals $   0.00

Change In Investment Value $   243.35

Ending Value as of 02/29/16 $ 925,166.89

PORTFOLIO SUMMARY PORTFOLIO ALLOCATION BY ASSET CLASS

Account Number - 00047317359

 ACCOUNT SUMMARY
              Market Value Units Held NAV % of

Fund Name Fund - Account #   01/31/16 02/29/16   02/29/16 02/29/16 Total
NORTH CAROLINA CAPITAL MGMT TRUST-CASH 0047-00047317359 924,923.54 925,166.89 925,166.890 1.00 100.00
TOTAL $924,923.54 $925,166.89 100.00

Fidelity Distributors Corporation (General Distribution Agent)
PAGE 1 of 2 M# 20160229 1300 466003023 0001

IF YOU HAVE ANY QUESTIONS ON YOUR
ACCOUNT, PLEASE CALL 800-222-3232



STATEMENT

CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE
2008 SIDEWALK BOND FUND
ATTN: LISA WHITE

Rep. Name:
Rep. #: 

Client/Master #: 301N
Branch #: 0000

Statement Period :  02/01/16 to 02/29/16

DIVIDEND AND CAPITAL GAIN SUMMARY

Fund Name Fund - Account # Dividend
Short Term
Capital Gain

Long Term
 Capital Gain Total

NORTH CAROLINA CAPITAL MGMT TRUST-CASH

DIVIDEND OPTION : REINVEST

CAPITAL GAIN OPTION :REINVEST

0047-00047317359
CURRENT PERIOD

FISCAL YTD  06/30/16

243.35
918.23

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

243.35
918.23

TOTAL CURRENT PERIOD $
FISCAL YTD  06/30/16

243.35
918.23

0.00
0.00

0.00
0.00

243.35
918.23

CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE
2008 SIDEWALK BOND FUND

ACCOUNT ACTIVITY
(for funds with account activity this period)

NORTH CAROLINA CAPITAL MGMT TRUST-CASH Fund # 0047 Account # 00047317359 CUSIP # 658191101

Transaction
Description

Sales
Charge

Confirm
Date

Trade
 Date

Dollar
Amount

Unit
Price

Unit
 Amount

Account
Balance

Beginning Balance 924,923.540
Reinvest Dividend 02/29/16 02/29/16 $ 243.35 $ 1.00 243.350 925,166.890
Ending Balance 925,166.890

Fidelity Distributors Corporation (General Distribution Agent)
PAGE 2 of 2 M# 20160229 1300 466003023 0001



                                                FIRST-CITIZENS BANK & TRUST COMPANY 
                                                            AS CUSTODIAN 
                                                   FOR THE CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
                                                      ACCOUNT NO. 71-0655-01-0 

                                                 FINANCIAL STATEMENT FOR THE PERIOD 
                                                     02/01/16 THROUGH 02/29/16 

      RELATIONSHIP OFFICER 
      MARISA LINDSEY 877-685-0576 

      FIRST CITIZENS WEALTH MANAGEMENT IS A JOINT MARKETING MARK OF FIRST-CITIZENS BANK & TRUST COMPANY, MEMBER 
      FDIC, FIRST CITIZENS INVESTOR SERVICES, INC., MEMBER FINRA/SIPC, AN SEC-REGISTERED BROKER-DEALER AND 
      INVESTMENT ADVISOR; AND FIRST CITIZENS ASSET MANAGEMENT, INC., AN SEC-REGISTERED INVESTMENT ADVISOR. 

                                                                                   CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
                                                                                   C/O MS. LISA WHITE 
                                                                                   145 5TH AVENUE EAST 
                                                                                   HENDERSONVILLE NC 28792 

      063 



                                                         TABLE OF CONTENTS 

                     ACCOUNT NO. 71-0655-01-0                 FIRST-CITIZENS BANK & TRUST COMPANY 
                                                              AS CUSTODIAN 
                                                              FOR THE CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 

                                                                               PAGE 

                        CASH RECONCILEMENT. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .       1 

                        SUMMARY OF ASSETS . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .       2 

                        SCHEDULE A - STATEMENT OF ASSETS. . . . . . . . . .       3 

                        SCHEDULE C - MISCELLANEOUS RECEIPTS . . . . . . . .       6 

                        SCHEDULE D - INCOME . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .       7 

                        SCHEDULE E - DISBURSEMENTS. . . . . . . . . . . . .       8 

                        SCHEDULE F - PURCHASES. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .       9 

                        SCHEDULE G - SALES AND REDEMPTIONS. . . . . . . . .      10 

                        SCHEDULE N - 5% TRANSACTIONS. . . . . . . . . . . .      11 

                        MARKET VALUE RECONCILEMENT. . . . . . . . . . . . .      12 



    CASH RECONCILEMENT 
    FOR PERIOD 02/01/16 THRU 02/29/16                                                             PAGE    1 

                     ACCOUNT NO. 71-0655-01-0                 FIRST-CITIZENS BANK & TRUST COMPANY 
                                                              AS CUSTODIAN 
                                                              FOR THE CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 

         BALANCES AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD                                                              .00 

         RECEIPTS 

              OTHER RECEIPTS                    SCHEDULE C                 276,000.00 

              INCOME                            SCHEDULE D                  38,576.97 

              SALES AND REDEMPTIONS             SCHEDULE G               6,119,863.58 

                                                                     ---------------- 
                             TOTAL RECEIPTS                                                  6,434,440.55 

         DISBURSEMENTS 

              INCOME                            SCHEDULE D                  14,901.84- 

              EXPENSES                          SCHEDULE E                        .00 

              PURCHASES                         SCHEDULE F               6,419,538.71- 

                                                                     ---------------- 
                             TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS                                             6,434,440.55- 

                                                                                         ---------------- 
         CASH BALANCE END OF PERIOD                                                                   .00 



                                                                               SUMMARY OF ASSETS 
                                                                                AS OF 02/29/16    PAGE    2 

                       ACCOUNT NO. 71-0655-01-0                       FIRST-CITIZENS BANK & TRUST COMPANY 
                                                                      AS CUSTODIAN 
                                                                      FOR THE CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 

                                         MARKET             COST              UNREALIZED         CURRENT 
                                         VALUE              BASIS              GAIN/LOSS         ACCRUAL 

           CASH                                  .00               .00                .00               .00 

           DIRECT GOVERNMENT SECURITI   1,004,120.00        999,134.52           4,985.48            412.08 

           GOVERNMENT AGENCIES         22,862,202.45     22,810,178.09          52,024.36         71,428.46 

           OTHER INVESTMENTS            2,678,693.51      2,692,093.46          13,399.95-        24,546.30 

           TOTAL INVESTMENTS           26,545,015.96     26,501,406.07          43,609.89         96,386.84 

                                       26,545,015.96     26,501,406.07          43,609.89         96,386.84 



                                                                        SCHEDULE A - STATEMENT OF ASSETS 
                                                                                AS OF 02/29/16    PAGE    3 

                       ACCOUNT NO. 71-0655-01-0                       FIRST-CITIZENS BANK & TRUST COMPANY 
                                                                      AS CUSTODIAN 
                                                                      FOR THE CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 

     UNITS/                                               TICKER       MARKET           COST          UNREALIZED         CURRENT 
 CUSIP NUMBER                                         UNIT/MKT PRC     VALUE            BASIS          GAIN/LOSS         ACCRUAL 

           CASH 

                 CASH                                                         .00              .00                              .00 

                    CASH                                                      .00              .00              .00             .00 

           DIRECT GOVERNMENT SECURITIES 

   1,000,000     UNITED STATES TREASURY NOTE              UNIT18     1,004,120.00       999,134.52         4,985.48          412.08 
     912828-H9-4 DTD 02/17/15  1.000% DUE 02/15/2018       100.412 

                    DIRECT GOVERNMENT SECURITIES                     1,004,120.00       999,134.52         4,985.48          412.08 

           GOVERNMENT AGENCIES 

      20,000     FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK                   FEDE16        20,005.60        20,004.35             1.25           34.02 
     3130A3-J7-0 DTD 11/17/14  0.625% DUE 11/23/2016       100.028 

   3,000,000     FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK                   FEDE18     2,990,700.00     3,000,000.00         9,300.00-       4,812.50 
     3130A6-J7-3 DTD 10/06/15  1.050% DUE 07/06/2018        99.690 
                 CALLABLE 01/06/16 @100.00 

   2,000,000     FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK                   FEDE18     2,002,400.00     2,000,000.00         2,400.00        4,374.99 
     3130A6-TY-3 DTD 12/28/15  1.250% DUE 06/28/2018       100.120 
                 CALLABLE 06/28/16 @ 100.00 

   1,000,000     FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK                 FEDE19     1,000,030.00       997,000.00         3,030.00        1,025.55 
     3133EE-NH-9 DTD 02/05/15  1.420% DUE 02/05/2019       100.003 
                 CALLABLE 02/05/16 @100.00 

   2,035,000     FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK                 FEDE19     2,037,442.00     2,035,000.00         2,442.00       12,390.88 
     3133EF-EA-1 DTD 09/21/15  1.370% DUE 03/21/2019       100.120 
                 CALLABLE 9/21/16 @100.00 

   1,365,000     FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP.         FEDE19     1,365,709.80     1,362,649.44         3,060.36        4,976.56 
     3134G6-S5-3 DTD 06/16/15  1.750% DUE 12/16/2019       100.052 
                 CALLABLE 09/16/15 @100.00 

   3,000,000     FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP.         FEDE18     3,026,160.00     3,000,000.00        26,160.00        8,325.00 
     3134G6-S9-5 DTD 06/17/15  1.350% DUE 12/17/2018       100.872 
                 CALLABLE 12/17/15 @100.00 



                                                                        SCHEDULE A - STATEMENT OF ASSETS 
                                                                                AS OF 02/29/16    PAGE    4 

                       ACCOUNT NO. 71-0655-01-0                       FIRST-CITIZENS BANK & TRUST COMPANY 
                                                                      AS CUSTODIAN 
                                                                      FOR THE CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 

     UNITS/                                               TICKER       MARKET           COST          UNREALIZED         CURRENT 
 CUSIP NUMBER                                         UNIT/MKT PRC     VALUE            BASIS          GAIN/LOSS         ACCRUAL 

   2,000,000     FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP.         FEDE17     2,000,320.00     1,999,998.72           321.28        3,788.88 
     3134G8-BL-2 DTD 12/29/15  1.100% DUE 12/29/2017       100.016 
                 CALLABLE 03/29/16 @ 100.00 

   1,335,000     FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC.         FEDE20     1,340,473.50     1,335,000.00         5,473.50        6,841.87 
     3136G2-GR-2 DTD 04/28/15  1.500% DUE 04/28/2020       100.410 
                 CALLABLE 04/28/17 @100.00 

   2,165,000     FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC.         FEDE18     2,184,701.50     2,165,000.00        19,701.50        7,592.53 
     3136G2-H9-1 DTD 05/20/15  1.250% DUE 11/20/2018       100.910 
                 CALLABLE 11/20/15 @100.00 

   2,000,000     FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC.         FEDE18     2,000,620.00     2,000,700.00            80.00-      11,475.00 
     3136G2-LM-7 DTD 09/28/15  1.350% DUE 09/28/2018       100.031 
                 CALLABLE 03/28/16 @ 100.00 

   1,000,000     FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC.         FEDE20     1,002,070.00     1,000,000.00         2,070.00        4,895.83 
     3136G2-SZ-1 DTD 11/27/15  1.875% DUE 11/27/2020       100.207 
                 CALLABLE 05/27/16 @ 100.00 

   1,895,000     FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP.         FHLM17     1,891,570.05     1,894,825.58         3,255.53-         894.85 
     3137EA-DU-0 DTD 01/16/15  0.500% DUE 01/27/2017        99.819 

                    GOVERNMENT AGENCIES                             22,862,202.45    22,810,178.09        52,024.36       71,428.46 

           OTHER INVESTMENTS 

     190,000     DURHAM COUNTY NORTH CAROLINA                          201,844.60       205,625.60         3,781.00-       2,219.83 
     266705-C3-4 DTD 11/10/10  3.505% DUE 11/01/2019       106.234 
                 BUILD AMERICA BONDS-DURHAM CNTY 

     110,000     EAST CAROLINA UNIVERSITY NC                           113,050.30       114,606.80         1,556.50-       1,374.99 
     271371-WN-2 DTD 07/23/15  3.000% DUE 10/01/2017       102.773 
                 REF - TXBL - SERIES B 

     440,000     EAST CAROLINA UNIVERSITY NC                           462,589.60       461,203.60         1,386.00        5,500.00 
     271371-WQ-5 DTD 07/23/15  3.000% DUE 10/01/2019       105.134 
                 REF - TXBL - B 

     105,000     FORSYTH COUNTY NORTH CAROLINA                         113,977.50       113,443.05           534.45        1,552.25 
     346622-7Y-3 DTD 09/02/10  3.548% DUE 04/01/2020       108.550 
                 BUILD AMERICA BOND - SER C 



                                                                        SCHEDULE A - STATEMENT OF ASSETS 
                                                                                AS OF 02/29/16    PAGE    5 

                       ACCOUNT NO. 71-0655-01-0                       FIRST-CITIZENS BANK & TRUST COMPANY 
                                                                      AS CUSTODIAN 
                                                                      FOR THE CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 

     UNITS/                                               TICKER       MARKET           COST          UNREALIZED         CURRENT 
 CUSIP NUMBER                                         UNIT/MKT PRC     VALUE            BASIS          GAIN/LOSS         ACCRUAL 

     250,000     HIGH POINT NC COMB ENTER SYS REV                      254,610.00       255,025.00           415.00-       2,961.66 
     429749-DD-3 DTD 06/24/10  3.554% DUE 11/01/2016       101.844 
                 BUILD AMERICA BONDS 

     305,000     HIGH POINT NC COMB ENTERPRISE SYS                     319,191.65       324,782.30         5,590.65-       3,969.06 
     429749-DE-1 DTD 06/24/10  3.904% DUE 11/01/2017       104.653 
                 REV - BUILD AMERICA BOND 

      25,000     NORTH CAROLINA ST LTD OBLIG                            25,775.25        26,256.75           481.50-         416.66 
     65829Q-AC-8 DTD 10/26/11  5.000% DUE 11/01/2016       103.101 
                 REF - SER B 

     525,000     UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA NC                       529,966.50       532,739.00         2,772.50-       1,728.56 
     914713-K2-7 DTD 10/09/14  1.317% DUE 12/01/2017       100.946 
                 AT CHAPEL HILL - REVENUE 

     130,000     UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA AT                       130,065.00       131,050.40           985.40-         651.62 
     914716-XK-6 DTD 02/23/12  1.203% DUE 04/01/2016       100.050 
                 CHARLOTTE 

     315,000     UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA                          323,341.20       324,283.05           941.85-       2,982.00 
     914716-XN-0 DTD 02/23/12  2.272% DUE 04/01/2019       102.648 
                 AT CHARLOTTE 

     200,000     WINSTON SALEM NC LTD OBLG                             204,142.00       202,938.00         1,204.00        1,130.00 
     975680-CZ-0 DTD 10/01/14  2.260% DUE 06/01/2019       102.071 
                 REF - TXBL - SER B 

         139.910 NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT                      139.91           139.91                            59.67 
     99936K-MI-4                                             1.000 

                    OTHER INVESTMENTS                                2,678,693.51     2,692,093.46        13,399.95-      24,546.30 

----------------                                      ---------------------------  ---------------  ---------------   ------------- 
  26,410,139.910 NET ASSETS                                         26,545,015.96    26,501,406.07        43,609.89       96,386.84 
                                                             1.005 

                 TOTAL ASSETS + ACCRUALS                            26,641,402.80 



    SCHEDULE C - MISCELLANEOUS RECEIPTS 
    FOR PERIOD 02/01/16 THRU 02/29/16                                                             PAGE    6 

                     ACCOUNT NO. 71-0655-01-0                 FIRST-CITIZENS BANK & TRUST COMPANY 
                                                              AS CUSTODIAN 
                                                              FOR THE CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 

           DATE          DESCRIPTION                                                    CASH 

                   OTHER RECEIPTS 
         02/24/16       MISCELLANEOUS RECEIPT                                       260,000.00 
                        FUNDS WIRED FROM WELLS FARGO 
         02/26/16       MISCELLANEOUS RECEIPT                                         4,000.00 
                        FUNDS WIRED FROM WELLS FARGO 
         02/26/16       INCOMING WIRE                                                12,000.00 
                        FROM WELLS FARGO 
                                                                               --------------- 
                                  TOTAL OTHER RECEIPTS                              276,000.00 
                                                                               --------------- 
                                  TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS RECEIPTS                      276,000.00 



    SCHEDULE D - INCOME 
    FOR PERIOD 02/01/16 THRU 02/29/16                                                             PAGE    7 

                     ACCOUNT NO. 71-0655-01-0                 FIRST-CITIZENS BANK & TRUST COMPANY 
                                                              AS CUSTODIAN 
                                                              FOR THE CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 

           DATE              DESCRIPTION                                                CASH 

                       INTEREST INCOME 
                   FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK 
                   DTD 02/05/15  1.420% DUE 02/05/2019 
                   CALLABLE 02/05/16 @100.00 
         02/05/16       INT TO 02/05/16 ON 1,000,000                                  7,100.00 
                   FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP. 
                   DTD 05/26/15  1.375% DUE 02/26/2019 
                   CALLABLE 02/26/16 @100.00 
         02/26/16       INT TO 02/26/16 ON 3,850,000                                 26,468.75 
                   FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC. 
                   DTD 09/28/15  1.350% DUE 09/28/2018 
                   CALLABLE 03/28/16 @ 100.00 
         02/29/16       ACCRUED INT TO 02/29/16 PAID ON                              11,325.00- 
                        PURCHASE OF 2,000,000 
                   FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP. 
                   DTD 01/16/15  0.500% DUE 01/27/2017 
         02/26/16       ACCRUED INT TO 02/26/16 PAID ON                                 763.26- 
                        PURCHASE OF 1,895,000 
                   HIGH POINT NC COMB ENTER SYS REV 
                   DTD 06/24/10  3.554% DUE 11/01/2016 
                   BUILD AMERICA BONDS 
         02/25/16       ACCRUED INT TO 02/25/16 PAID ON                               2,813.58- 
                        PURCHASE OF 250,000 
                   UNITED STATES TREASURY NOTE 
                   DTD 02/17/15  1.000% DUE 02/15/2018 
         02/16/16       INT TO 02/15/16 ON 1,000,000                                  5,000.00 
                   NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT 
         02/01/16       INT TO 01/31/16                                                   8.22 
                                                                               --------------- 
                                  TOTAL INTEREST INCOME                              23,675.13 
                                                                               --------------- 
                                  TOTAL INCOME                                       23,675.13 



    SCHEDULE E - DISBURSEMENTS 
    FOR PERIOD 02/01/16 THRU 02/29/16                                                             PAGE    8 

                     ACCOUNT NO. 71-0655-01-0                 FIRST-CITIZENS BANK & TRUST COMPANY 
                                                              AS CUSTODIAN 
                                                              FOR THE CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 

           DATE          DESCRIPTION                                                    CASH 

                   EXPENSES 
         02/12/16              $328.08                                                     .00 
                        MONTHLY FEE TO 01/31/16 
                        INVOICE #5052629 
                                  TOTAL EXPENSES                                           .00 
                                                                               --------------- 
                                  TOTAL DISBURSEMENTS                                      .00 



    SCHEDULE F - PURCHASES 
    FOR PERIOD 02/01/16 THRU 02/29/16                                                             PAGE    9 

                     ACCOUNT NO. 71-0655-01-0                 FIRST-CITIZENS BANK & TRUST COMPANY 
                                                              AS CUSTODIAN 
                                                              FOR THE CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 

      DATE       SECURITY     DESCRIPTION                           UNIT PRICE     BROKER     OTHER     TOTAL CASH 
                                                                                   COMMISSION COSTS 

                   FIXED INCOME 
    02/29/16     3136G2-LM-7 PURCHASED 2000000 02/26/16                100.035          .00      .00    2,000,700.00- 
                             @ 100.035 
                             FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC. 
                             DTD 09/28/15  1.350% DUE 09/28/2018 
                             CALLABLE 03/28/16 @ 100.00 
    02/26/16     3137EA-DU-0 PURCHASED 1895000 02/24/16                 99.990          .00      .00    1,894,825.58- 
                             @ 99.990796 
                             FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP. 
                             DTD 01/16/15  0.500% DUE 01/27/2017 
    02/25/16     429749-DD-3 PURCHASED 250000 02/22/16                 102.010          .00      .00      255,025.00- 
                             @ 102.01 
                             HIGH POINT NC COMB ENTER SYS REV 
                             DTD 06/24/10  3.554% DUE 11/01/2016 
                             BUILD AMERICA BONDS 
                                                                                                     --------------- 
                                  TOTAL FIXED INCOME                                                    4,150,550.58- 
                   CASH EQUIVALENT 
    02/29/16     99936K-MI-4 PURCHASES (6) 02/01/16 TO 02/29/16          1.000          .00      .00    2,268,988.13- 
                             NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT 
                                                                                                     --------------- 
                                  TOTAL CASH EQUIVALENT                                                 2,268,988.13- 
                                                                                                     --------------- 
                                  TOTAL PURCHASES                                                       6,419,538.71- 



    SCHEDULE G - SALES AND REDEMPTIONS 
    FOR PERIOD 02/01/16 THRU 02/29/16                                                             PAGE   10 

                     ACCOUNT NO. 71-0655-01-0                 FIRST-CITIZENS BANK & TRUST COMPANY 
                                                              AS CUSTODIAN 
                                                              FOR THE CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 

    DATE   SECURITY     DESCRIPTION                           BROKER        PROCEEDS             COST         REALIZED 
                                                            COMMISSION                                       GAIN/LOSS 

                   FIXED INCOME 
           FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP. 
           DTD 05/26/15  1.375% DUE 02/26/2019 
           CALLABLE 02/26/16 @100.00 
  02/26/16 3134G6-R6-2  CALLED @ 100.00%                           .00    3,850,000.00     3,850,000.00-             .00 
                                                                       ---------------  ---------------  --------------- 
                   TOTAL FIXED INCOME                                     3,850,000.00     3,850,000.00-             .00 
                   CASH EQUIVALENTS 
           NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT 
  02/29/16 99936K-MI-4  SALES (2) 02/01/16 TO 02/29/16             .00    2,269,863.58     2,269,863.58-             .00 
                                                                       ---------------  ---------------  --------------- 
                   TOTAL CASH EQUIVALENTS                                 2,269,863.58     2,269,863.58-             .00 
                                                                       ---------------  ---------------  --------------- 
                   TOTAL SALES AND REDEMPTIONS                            6,119,863.58     6,119,863.58-             .00 



    SCHEDULE N - 5% TRANSACTIONS 
    FOR PERIOD 02/01/16 THRU 02/29/16                                                             PAGE   11 

                     ACCOUNT NO. 71-0655-01-0                 FIRST-CITIZENS BANK & TRUST COMPANY 
                                                              AS CUSTODIAN 
                                                              FOR THE CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 

     DESCRIPTION                           NO. OF               COST               CASH          REALIZED 
                                            TRANS                                               GAIN/LOSS 
  FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP. 
  DTD 05/26/15  1.375% DUE 02/26/2019 
  CALLABLE 02/26/16 @100.00 
    CALLED @ 100.00%                            *       3,850,000.00       3,850,000.00              .00 
        SALES                                   1       3,850,000.00       3,850,000.00              .00 
  FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC. 
  DTD 09/28/15  1.350% DUE 09/28/2018 
  CALLABLE 03/28/16 @ 100.00 
    PURCHASED 2000000 02/26/16                  *       2,000,700.00       2,000,700.00              .00 
    @ 100.035 
        PURCHASES                               1       2,000,700.00       2,000,700.00              .00 
  FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP. 
  DTD 01/16/15  0.500% DUE 01/27/2017 
    PURCHASED 1895000 02/24/16                  *       1,894,825.58       1,894,825.58              .00 
    @ 99.990796 
        PURCHASES                               1       1,894,825.58       1,894,825.58              .00 
  NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT 
        PURCHASES                               6       2,268,988.13       2,268,988.13              .00 
        SALES                                   2       2,269,863.58       2,269,863.58              .00 
                                                                        --------------- 
                                                                          20,029,902.87 
            TRANSACTIONS NOTED BY A "*" ARE IN THEMSELVES GREATER THAN  5% 



    MARKET VALUE RECONCILEMENT 
    FOR PERIOD 02/01/16 THRU 02/29/16                                                             PAGE   12 

                     ACCOUNT NO. 71-0655-01-0                 FIRST-CITIZENS BANK & TRUST COMPANY 
                                                              AS CUSTODIAN 
                                                              FOR THE CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 

         MARKET VALUE BEGINNING OF PERIOD                                          26,335,658.93 

         INCREASES 

              OTHER RECEIPTS                    SCHEDULE C         276,000.00 

              REALIZED GAINS/LOSSES             SCHEDULE G                .00 

              INCOME EARNED 

                   ENDING ACCRUAL                                   96,386.84 

                   BEGINNING ACCRUAL                                89,176.72 

                   INCOME COLLECTED             SCHEDULE D          23,675.13 

                                                            ----------------- 
              TOTAL INCOME EARNED                                   30,885.25 

                                                            ----------------- 
                             TOTAL INCREASES                                          306,885.25 

         DECREASES 

              EXPENSES                          SCHEDULE E                .00 

              MARKET DEPRECIATION 

                   END OF PERIOD                                    43,609.89 

                   BEGINNING OF PERIOD                              44,751.27 

                                                            ----------------- 
              TOTAL MARKET DEPRECIATION                              1,141.38- 

                                                            ----------------- 
                             TOTAL DECREASES                                            1,141.38- 

                                                                               ----------------- 
         MARKET VALUE END OF PERIOD                                                26,641,402.80 



City of Hendersonville Investment Account Activity

Period: July 1, 2015 - March 30, 2016
710655010

Settlement 
Date

Security 
Number Units $ Amount Tran Desc. Line 2 Tran Desc. Line 1

3136G0E64 0.000 $6,375.00 "FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC." "INT TO 03/27/15 ON 1,500,000"
03/27/2015 3136G0E64 -1,500,000.000 $1,500,000.00 "FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC." "CALLED @ 100.00%"
03/27/2015 99936KMI4 1,506,375.000 $-1,506,375.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 1506375.00 UNITS @ 1"

914716XK6 0.000 $781.95 "UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA AT" "INT TO 04/01/15 ON 130,000"
99936KMI4 0.000 $6.63 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "INT TO 03/31/15"

04/01/2015 99936KMI4 788.580 $-788.58 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 788.58 UNITS @ 1"
04/13/2015 914713K27 200,000.000 $-201,642.00 "UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA NC" "PURCHASED 200000 04/08/15"

914713K27 0.000 $-965.80 "UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA NC" "ACCRUED INT TO 04/13/15 PAID ON"
04/13/2015 99936KMI4 -202,607.800 $202,607.80 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 202607.80 UNITS @ 1"

0.000 $-300.00 "MONTHLY FEE TO 03/31/15" "$300.00"
04/20/2015 914716XN0 315,000.000 $-324,283.05 "UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA" "PURCHASED 315000 04/15/15"

914716XN0 0.000 $-377.72 "UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA" "ACCRUED INT TO 04/20/15 PAID ON"
04/20/2015 99936KMI4 -324,660.770 $324,660.77 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 324660.77 UNITS @ 1"

3133EEJY7 0.000 $8,450.00 "FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK" "INT 01/22/15 TO 04/22/15 ON 2000000"
04/22/2015 99936KMI4 8,450.000 $-8,450.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 8450.00 UNITS @ 1"

0.000 $325,000.00 "FUNDS WIRED FROM WELLS FARGO" "MISCELLANEOUS RECEIPT"
04/27/2015 99936KMI4 325,000.000 $-325,000.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 325000.00 UNITS @ 1"
04/28/2015 3130A27B6 -2,666,666.670 $2,666,666.67 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK" "PARTIAL CALL PD @ 100.00%"

3130A27B6 0.000 $18,400.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK" "INT TO 04/28/15 ON 1,333,333.330"
04/28/2015 3136G2GR2 1,335,000.000 $-1,335,000.00 "FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC." "PURCHASED 1335000 04/15/15"
04/28/2015 99936KMI4 1,350,066.670 $-1,350,066.67 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 1350066.67 UNITS @ 1"

3134G5X83 0.000 $4,241.25 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "INT 01/30/15 TO 04/30/15 ON 1170000"
3134G5X91 0.000 $2,250.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "INT 01/30/15 TO 04/30/15 ON 1000000"

04/30/2015 3134G5X83 -1,170,000.000 $1,170,000.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "CALLED @ 100.00%"
04/30/2015 3134G5X91 -1,000,000.000 $1,000,000.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "CALLED @ 100.00%"
04/30/2015 99936KMI4 2,176,491.250 $-2,176,491.25 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 2176491.25 UNITS @ 1"

99936KMI4 0.000 $40.54 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "INT TO 04/30/15"
05/01/2015 99936KMI4 40.540 $-40.54 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 40.54 UNITS @ 1"
05/04/2015 266705C34 190,000.000 $-205,625.60 "DURHAM COUNTY NORTH CAROLINA" "PURCHASED 190000 04/29/15"

266705C34 0.000 $-55.50 "DURHAM COUNTY NORTH CAROLINA" "ACCRUED INT TO 05/04/15 PAID ON"
05/04/2015 99936KMI4 -205,681.100 $205,681.10 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 205681.10 UNITS @ 1"
05/06/2015 914713K27 325,000.000 $-331,097.00 "UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA NC" "PURCHASED 325000 05/01/15"

914713K27 0.000 $-1,842.89 "UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA NC" "ACCRUED INT TO 05/06/15 PAID ON"
05/06/2015 99936KMI4 -332,939.890 $332,939.89 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 332939.89 UNITS @ 1"

0.000 $-300.00 "MONTHLY FEE TO 04/30/15" "$300.00"
05/20/2015 3136G2H91 2,165,000.000 $-2,165,000.00 "FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC." "PURCHASED 2165000 04/24/15"
05/20/2015 99936KMI4 -2,165,000.000 $2,165,000.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 2165000.00 UNITS @ 1"

3134G5N92 0.000 $17,625.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "INT TO 05/24/15 ON 4,700,000"
05/26/2015 3134G5N92 -4,700,000.000 $4,700,000.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "CALLED @ 100.00%"
05/26/2015 3134G6R62 3,850,000.000 $-3,850,000.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "PURCHASED 3850000 05/19/15"
05/26/2015 99936KMI4 867,625.000 $-867,625.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 867625.00 UNITS @ 1"

914713K27 0.000 $3,457.13 "UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA NC" "INT TO 06/01/15 ON 525,000"
975680CZ0 0.000 $2,260.00 "WINSTON SALEM NC LTD OBLG" "INT TO 06/01/15 ON 200,000"
99936KMI4 0.000 $114.61 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "INT TO 05/31/15"

06/01/2015 99936KMI4 5,717.130 $-5,717.13 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 5717.13 UNITS @ 1"
06/01/2015 99936KMI4 114.610 $-114.61 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 114.61 UNITS @ 1"

0.000 $-301.20 "MONTHLY FEE TO 05/31/15" "$301.20"
3130A27B6 0.000 $12,000.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK" "INT TO 06/10/15 ON 1,333,333.340"

06/10/2015 3130A27B6 -1,333,333.330 $1,333,333.33 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK" "CALLED @ 100.00%"
06/10/2015 99936KMI4 1,345,333.330 $-1,345,333.33 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 1345333.33 UNITS @ 1"

3130A3KC7 0.000 $10,500.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK" "INT 12/12/14 TO 06/12/15 ON 3000000"
06/12/2015 3130A3KC7 -3,000,000.000 $3,000,000.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK" "CALLED @ 100.00%"
06/12/2015 99936KMI4 3,010,500.000 $-3,010,500.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 3010500.00 UNITS @ 1"
06/16/2015 3134G6S53 1,365,000.000 $-1,362,649.44 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "PURCHASED 1365000 06/05/15"
06/16/2015 99936KMI4 -1,362,649.440 $1,362,649.44 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 1362649.44 UNITS @ 1"
06/17/2015 3134G6S95 3,000,000.000 $-3,000,000.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "PURCHASED 3000000 05/19/15"
06/17/2015 99936KMI4 -3,000,000.000 $3,000,000.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 3000000.00 UNITS @ 1"

0.000 $305,000.00 "FROM WELLS FARGO" "RECEIPT OF INCOMING WIRE"
06/22/2015 99936KMI4 305,000.000 $-305,000.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 305000.00 UNITS @ 1"
06/25/2015 429749DE1 305,000.000 $-324,782.30 "HIGH POINT NC COMB ENTERPRISE SYS" "PURCHASED 305000 06/22/15"

Account Number



City of Hendersonville Investment Account Activity

Period: July 1, 2015 - March 30, 2016
710655010

Settlement 
Date

Security 
Number Units $ Amount Tran Desc. Line 2 Tran Desc. Line 1

Account Number

429749DE1 0.000 $-1,786.08 "HIGH POINT NC COMB ENTERPRISE SYS" "ACCRUED INT TO 06/25/15 PAID ON"
06/25/2015 99936KMI4 -326,568.380 $326,568.38 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 326568.38 UNITS @ 1"
06/30/2015 3130A5LD9 3,000,000.000 $-3,000,000.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK" "PURCHASED 3000000 06/11/15"
06/30/2015 99936KMI4 -2,984,919.190 $2,984,919.19 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 2984919.19 UNITS @ 1"

0.000 $16,000.00 "FUNDS WIRED FROM WELLS FARGO" "MISCELLANEOUS RECEIPT"
06/30/2015 99936KMI4 919.190 $-919.19 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 919.19 UNITS @ 1"

99936KMI4 0.000 $127.13 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "INT TO 06/30/15"
07/01/2015 99936KMI4 127.130 $-127.13 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 127.13 UNITS @ 1"

3130A3UP7 0.000 $1,250.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK" "INT 01/06/15 TO 07/06/15 ON 1000000"
07/06/2015 99936KMI4 1,250.000 $-1,250.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 1250.00 UNITS @ 1"

0.000 $-300.00 "MONTHLY FEE TO 06/30/15" "$300.00"
0.000 $460,000.00 "FUNDS WIRED FROM WELLS FARGO" "MISCELLANEOUS RECEIPT"

07/22/2015 99936KMI4 460,000.000 $-460,000.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 460000.00 UNITS @ 1"
07/23/2015 271371WQ5 440,000.000 $-461,203.60 "EAST CAROLINA UNIVERSITY NC" "PURCHASED 440000 07/01/15"
07/23/2015 99936KMI4 -461,203.600 $461,203.60 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 461203.60 UNITS @ 1"

99936KMI4 0.000 $0.87 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "INT TO 07/31/15"
08/03/2015 99936KMI4 0.870 $-0.87 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED .87 UNITS @ 1"

3133EENH9 0.000 $7,100.00 "FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK" "INT 02/05/15 TO 08/05/15 ON 1000000"
08/05/2015 99936KMI4 7,100.000 $-7,100.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 7100.00 UNITS @ 1"

0.000 $0.00 "MONTHLY FEE TO 07/31/15" "$300.00"
912828H94 0.000 $5,000.00 "UNITED STATES TREASURY NOTE" "INT TO 08/17/15 ON 1,000,000"

08/17/2015 99936KMI4 5,000.000 $-5,000.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 5000.00 UNITS @ 1"
3134G6R62 0.000 $13,234.38 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "INT 05/26/15 TO 08/26/15 ON 3850000"

08/26/2015 99936KMI4 13,234.380 $-13,234.38 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 13234.38 UNITS @ 1"
99936KMI4 0.000 $0.75 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "INT TO 08/31/15"

09/01/2015 99936KMI4 0.750 $-0.75 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED .75 UNITS @ 1"
0.000 $-300.00 "MONTHLY FEE TO 08/31/15" "$300.00"

3133EEJY7 0.000 $13,707.78 "FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK" "INT TO 09/18/15 ON 2,000,000"
09/18/2015 3133EEJY7 -2,000,000.000 $2,000,000.00 "FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK" "CALLED @ 100.00%"
09/18/2015 99936KMI4 2,013,707.780 $-2,013,707.78 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 2013707.78 UNITS @ 1"
09/21/2015 3133EFEA1 2,035,000.000 $-2,035,000.00 "FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK" "PURCHASED 2035000 09/16/15"
09/21/2015 99936KMI4 -2,035,000.000 $2,035,000.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 2035000.00 UNITS @ 1"

3130A5LD9 0.000 $16,125.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK" "INT 06/30/15 TO 09/30/15 ON 3000000"
09/30/2015 3130A5LD9 -3,000,000.000 $3,000,000.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK" "CALLED @"
09/30/2015 99936KMI4 3,016,125.000 $-3,016,125.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 3016125.00 UNITS @ 1"

271371WQ5 0.000 $2,493.33 "EAST CAROLINA UNIVERSITY NC" "INT 07/23/15 TO 10/01/15 ON 440000"
914716XK6 0.000 $781.95 "UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA AT" "INT TO 10/01/15 ON 130,000"
914716XN0 0.000 $3,578.40 "UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA" "INT TO 10/01/15 ON 315,000"
99936KMI4 0.000 $19.12 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "INT TO 09/30/15"

10/01/2015 99936KMI4 6,872.800 $-6,872.80 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 6872.80 UNITS @ 1"
10/05/2015 65829QAC8 25,000.000 $-26,256.75 "NORTH CAROLINA ST LTD OBLIG" "PURCHASED 25000 09/30/15"

65829QAC8 0.000 $-534.72 "NORTH CAROLINA ST LTD OBLIG" "ACCRUED INT TO 10/05/15 PAID ON"
10/05/2015 99936KMI4 -26,791.470 $26,791.47 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 26791.47 UNITS @ 1"
10/06/2015 3130A6J73 3,000,000.000 $-3,000,000.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK" "PURCHASED 3000000 09/28/15"
10/06/2015 99936KMI4 -3,000,000.000 $3,000,000.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 3000000.00 UNITS @ 1"

0.000 $-312.69 "MONTHLY FEE TO 09/30/15" "$312.69"
3136G2GR2 0.000 $10,012.50 "FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC." "INT 04/28/15 TO 10/28/15 ON 1335000"

10/28/2015 99936KMI4 10,012.500 $-10,012.50 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 10012.50 UNITS @ 1"
0.000 $1,095,000.00 "FROM WELLS FARGO BANK" "RECEIPT OF INCOMING WIRE"

10/29/2015 99936KMI4 1,095,000.000 $-1,095,000.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 1095000.00 UNITS @ 1"
266705C34 0.000 $3,329.75 "DURHAM COUNTY NORTH CAROLINA" "INT TO 11/02/15 ON 190,000"
429749DE1 0.000 $5,953.60 "HIGH POINT NC COMB ENTERPRISE SYS" "INT TO 11/02/15 ON 305,000"
65829QAC8 0.000 $625.00 "NORTH CAROLINA ST LTD OBLIG" "INT TO 11/02/15 ON 25,000"
99936KMI4 0.000 $37.79 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "INT TO 10/31/15"

11/02/2015 99936KMI4 9,908.350 $-9,908.35 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 9908.35 UNITS @ 1"
11/02/2015 99936KMI4 37.790 $-37.79 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 37.79 UNITS @ 1"
11/03/2015 3466227Y3 105,000.000 $-113,443.05 "FORSYTH COUNTY NORTH CAROLINA" "PURCHASED 105000 10/29/15"

3466227Y3 0.000 $-331.15 "FORSYTH COUNTY NORTH CAROLINA" "ACCRUED INT TO 11/03/15 PAID ON"
11/03/2015 99936KMI4 -113,774.200 $113,774.20 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 113774.20 UNITS @ 1"

0.000 $-300.00 "MONTHLY FEE TO 10/31/15" "$300.00"



City of Hendersonville Investment Account Activity

Period: July 1, 2015 - March 30, 2016
710655010

Settlement 
Date

Security 
Number Units $ Amount Tran Desc. Line 2 Tran Desc. Line 1

Account Number

3136G2H91 0.000 $13,531.25 "FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC." "INT 05/20/15 TO 11/20/15 ON 2165000"
11/20/2015 99936KMI4 13,531.250 $-13,531.25 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 13531.25 UNITS @ 1"
11/27/2015 3136G2SZ1 1,000,000.000 $-1,000,000.00 "FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC." "PURCHASED 1000000 10/29/15"
11/27/2015 99936KMI4 -1,000,000.000 $1,000,000.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 1000000.00 UNITS @ 1"
11/30/2015 271371WN2 110,000.000 $-114,606.80 "EAST CAROLINA UNIVERSITY NC" "PURCHASED 110000 11/24/15"

271371WN2 0.000 $-540.83 "EAST CAROLINA UNIVERSITY NC" "ACCRUED INT TO 11/30/15 PAID ON"
11/30/2015 99936KMI4 -16,058.520 $16,058.52 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 16058.52 UNITS @ 1"

0.000 $115,147.63 "FUNDS WIRED FROM WELLS FARGO" "MISCELLANEOUS RECEIPT"
11/30/2015 99936KMI4 16,058.520 $-16,058.52 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 16058.52 UNITS @ 1"

914713K27 0.000 $3,457.13 "UNIVERSITY OF NORTH CAROLINA NC" "INT TO 12/01/15 ON 525,000"
975680CZ0 0.000 $2,260.00 "WINSTON SALEM NC LTD OBLG" "INT TO 12/01/15 ON 200,000"

12/01/2015 99936KMI4 5,717.130 $-5,717.13 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 5717.13 UNITS @ 1"
99936KMI4 0.000 $74.81 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "INT TO 11/30/15"

12/01/2015 99936KMI4 74.810 $-74.81 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 74.81 UNITS @ 1"
0.000 $0.00 "MONTHLY FEE TO 11/30/15" "$315.32"

3134G6S53 0.000 $11,943.75 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "INT 06/16/15 TO 12/16/15 ON 1365000"
12/16/2015 99936KMI4 11,943.750 $-11,943.75 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 11943.75 UNITS @ 1"

3134G6S95 0.000 $20,250.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "INT 06/17/15 TO 12/17/15 ON 3000000"
12/17/2015 99936KMI4 20,250.000 $-20,250.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 20250.00 UNITS @ 1"

0.000 $2,958,000.00 "FROM WELLS FARGO BANK" "RECEIPT OF INCOMING WIRE"
12/23/2015 99936KMI4 2,958,000.000 $-2,958,000.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 2958000.00 UNITS @ 1"
12/28/2015 3130A6TY3 2,000,000.000 $-2,000,000.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK" "PURCHASED 2000000 11/30/15"
12/28/2015 99936KMI4 -2,000,000.000 $2,000,000.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 2000000.00 UNITS @ 1"
12/29/2015 3134G8BL2 1,000,000.000 $-1,000,000.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "PURCHASED 1000000 12/01/15"
12/29/2015 99936KMI4 -1,000,000.000 $1,000,000.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 1000000.00 UNITS @ 1"

99936KMI4 0.000 $108.94 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "INT TO 12/31/15"
01/04/2016 99936KMI4 108.940 $-108.94 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 108.94 UNITS @ 1"

3130A3UP7 0.000 $1,250.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK" "INT TO 01/06/16 ON 1,000,000"
3130A6J73 0.000 $7,875.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK" "INT 10/06/15 TO 01/06/16 ON 3000000"

01/06/2016 3130A3UP7 -1,000,000.000 $1,000,000.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK" "RECD PROCEEDS ON MATURITY OF"
01/06/2016 99936KMI4 1,009,125.000 $-1,009,125.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 1009125.00 UNITS @ 1"
01/07/2016 3130A3J70 20,000.000 $-20,004.35 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK" "PURCHASED 20000 01/06/16"

3130A3J70 0.000 $-15.28 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK" "ACCRUED INT TO 01/07/16 PAID ON"
01/07/2016 3134G8BL2 1,000,000.000 $-999,998.72 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "PURCHASED 1000000 01/06/16"

3134G8BL2 0.000 $-244.44 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "ACCRUED INT TO 01/07/16 PAID ON"
01/07/2016 99936KMI4 -1,020,262.790 $1,020,262.79 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 1020262.79 UNITS @ 1"

0.000 $-326.91 "MONTHLY FEE TO 12/31/15" "$326.91"
99936KMI4 0.000 $8.22 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "INT TO 01/31/16"

02/01/2016 99936KMI4 8.220 $-8.22 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 8.22 UNITS @ 1"
3133EENH9 0.000 $7,100.00 "FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK" "INT TO 02/05/16 ON 1,000,000"

02/05/2016 99936KMI4 7,100.000 $-7,100.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 7100.00 UNITS @ 1"
0.000 $-328.08 "MONTHLY FEE TO 01/31/16" "$328.08"

912828H94 0.000 $5,000.00 "UNITED STATES TREASURY NOTE" "INT TO 02/15/16 ON 1,000,000"
02/16/2016 99936KMI4 5,000.000 $-5,000.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 5000.00 UNITS @ 1"

0.000 $260,000.00 "FUNDS WIRED FROM WELLS FARGO" "MISCELLANEOUS RECEIPT"
02/24/2016 99936KMI4 260,000.000 $-260,000.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 260000.00 UNITS @ 1"
02/25/2016 429749DD3 250,000.000 $-255,025.00 "HIGH POINT NC COMB ENTER SYS REV" "PURCHASED 250000 02/22/16"

429749DD3 0.000 $-2,813.58 "HIGH POINT NC COMB ENTER SYS REV" "ACCRUED INT TO 02/25/16 PAID ON"
02/25/2016 99936KMI4 -257,838.580 $257,838.58 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 257838.58 UNITS @ 1"

3134G6R62 0.000 $26,468.75 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "INT TO 02/26/16 ON 3,850,000"
0.000 $4,000.00 "FUNDS WIRED FROM WELLS FARGO" "MISCELLANEOUS RECEIPT"

02/26/2016 3137EADU0 1,895,000.000 $-1,894,825.58 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "PURCHASED 1895000 02/24/16"
3137EADU0 0.000 $-763.26 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "ACCRUED INT TO 02/26/16 PAID ON"

02/26/2016 3134G6R62 -3,850,000.000 $3,850,000.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "CALLED @ 100.00%"
02/26/2016 99936KMI4 1,984,879.910 $-1,984,879.91 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 1984879.91 UNITS @ 1"

0.000 $12,000.00 "FROM WELLS FARGO" "INCOMING WIRE"
02/26/2016 99936KMI4 12,000.000 $-12,000.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 12000.00 UNITS @ 1"
02/29/2016 3136G2LM7 2,000,000.000 $-2,000,700.00 "FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC." "PURCHASED 2000000 02/26/16"

3136G2LM7 0.000 $-11,325.00 "FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC." "ACCRUED INT TO 02/29/16 PAID ON"
02/29/2016 99936KMI4 -2,012,025.000 $2,012,025.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 2012025.00 UNITS @ 1"



City of Hendersonville Investment Account Activity

Period: July 1, 2015 - March 30, 2016
710655010

Settlement 
Date

Security 
Number Units $ Amount Tran Desc. Line 2 Tran Desc. Line 1

Account Number

99936KMI4 0.000 $59.63 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "INT TO 02/29/16"
03/01/2016 99936KMI4 59.630 $-59.63 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 59.63 UNITS @ 1"

3133EENH9 0.000 $1,301.67 "FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK" "INT TO 03/08/16 ON 1,000,000"
03/08/2016 3133EENH9 -1,000,000.000 $1,000,000.00 "FEDERAL FARM CREDIT BANK" "CALLED @ 100.00%"
03/08/2016 99936KMI4 1,001,301.670 $-1,001,301.67 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 1001301.67 UNITS @ 1"

0.000 $-380.43 "MONTHLY FEE TO 02/29/16" "$380.43"
0.000 $2,892,000.00 "FUNDS WIRED FROM WELLS FARGO" "MISCELLANEOUS RECEIPT"

03/14/2016 99936KMI4 2,892,000.000 $-2,892,000.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 2892000.00 UNITS @ 1"
3134G6S53 0.000 $5,971.88 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "INT TO 03/16/16 ON 1,365,000"

03/16/2016 3134G6S53 -1,365,000.000 $1,365,000.00 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN MORTGAGE CORP." "CALLED @ 100.00%"
03/16/2016 3130A7K53 1,365,000.000 $-1,364,849.85 "FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK" "PURCHASED 1365000 03/11/16"
03/16/2016 3136G3BB0 3,889,000.000 $-3,889,000.00 "FEDERAL NATIONAL MORTGAGE ASSOC." "PURCHASED 3889000 02/19/16"
03/16/2016 99936KMI4 -3,882,877.970 $3,882,877.97 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "SOLD 3882877.97 UNITS @ 1"

0.000 $10,000.00 "FUNDS WIRED FROM WELLS FARGO" "MISCELLANEOUS RECEIPT"
03/16/2016 99936KMI4 10,000.000 $-10,000.00 "NORTH CAROLINA CAP MANAGMNT FD#NCCMT" "PURCHASED 10000.00 UNITS @ 1"



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY

Submitted By:   Department: 

Date Submitted:   Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________ Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?   If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

Tammie Drake Admin

03.22.16 Tammie Drake

04.07.16

Council Action

16

SEVENTH AVE ADVISORY COMMITTEE: At your March meeting, you reappointed Mr. Ron Kauffman and appointed
Sheryl Fortune to this Committee. There is an additional vacant at-large position (Neither Farrell Beam nor Jim Kastetter
wanted to be reappointed.) The City Manager is requesting the position remain vacant to allow time to recruit applicants.

ANNOUNCEMENTS:
BOARD OF ADJUSTMENT: There is a vacant alternate position due to the resignation of Ms. April Thompson. There are
no applications on file at this time.

HISTORIC PRESERVATION COMMISSION: There is a vacancy on the HPC due to Jo Tyler's resignation. There are no
applications on file at this time for the HPC.

ENVIRONMENTAL SUSTAINABILITY BOARD: There are five City resident positions and two of those are vacant.

ABC BOARD: The term of Charles Byrd who is currently serving as Chair will expire in June. He has expressed a desire to
be reappointed. This will be on your May agenda for consideration.

TOURISM DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY: The term of Lew Holloway will expire 06/30/15. He serves in the Seat 5
at-large position and according to the resolution by Henderson Co. to create the Authority, he cannot be reappointed for
at least one year. Mr. Connet is willing to serve in this position.

N/A

I nominate ...

board membership lists



CITY OF HENDERSONVILLE 
AGENDA ITEM SUMMARY 

 
Submitted By:             Department:   

Date Submitted:            Presenter:   

Date of Council Meeting to consider this item:

Nature of Item: 

Summary of Information/Request:           Item #

Budget Impact:  $____________________  Is this expenditure approved in the current fiscal year 
budget?       If no, describe how it will be funded. 

Suggested Motion: To disapprove any item, you may allow it to fail for lack of a motion.

Attachments:

John Connet Admin

3/28/2016 John Connet

4/7/2016

Discussion/Staff Direction

18

City Manager John Connet requests a closed session in accordance with NCGS 143-318.11(a) (5) to establish or instruct
the staff concerning the position to be taken by or on behalf of the City Council on negotiating for the acquisition of real
property identified property off of N. Main Street owned by TCB Property Development LLC

TBD

N/A

I move that the City Council enter closed session in accordance with 143-318.11 (11)(5) to establish or instruct the staff
concerning the position to be taken by or on behalf of the City Council on negotiating for the acquisition of real property.


	01 Apr 7 agenda
	05ai 20160303_CC_Mins
	05aii 20160212_CC_Mins
	05b Budget_Amendments(1)
	05ci Deputy Fire Chief Grade Revision
	05cii Position_Allocation_Revisions
	05d Award Contract Audit Firm 4-7-16
	05e Fee Schedule Adjustment for Patton Pool Punch Pass
	05f Tax over under pmts
	05g Lamond Easement Agreement agenda
	05h HVL W&S Mission Statements
	05i Multi-Area Streambank Restoration Project
	05j Sanitary Sewer Asset Inventory and Assessment
	05k High Vista ULEA
	06 Week of Young Child proclamation
	07 Kimley-Horn Presentation
	08 Pardee Rezoning 1
	09 Lakewood Terrace 1
	10 Duncan, Cheria_Request to Waive SDCs pdf
	11 AdoptionOfParkingPermitSchedule
	12 Charter amendment resolution Mayor and Council Compensation
	13 N Oak St Widening
	15b Investment Report 4-7-16
	16 Board appts
	18 Closed Session

	Agenda: 


